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NOTICE
REGENCY HOSPITAL LIMITED
CIN: UBS110UP1987PLCO0ETS2
Registered Office: A-2 Sarvodaya MNagar, Kanpur- 208005, Uttar Pradesh
Tel:+31-0512- 350-2480; Email: company.secretary & regencyhealthcare.in
Website: www.regencyhealthcare.in

Motice is hereby given that the 34" Annual General Meeting ("AGM") of Regency Hospital Limited will be held on Friday, the

27" day of Octobar 2023 at 11:30 AM. (IST) at the Corporate Office B-5, Sarvodaya Nagar, Kanpur, Uttar Pradesh-208005,
India totransact the following business,

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
Item No. 1- Adoption of financial statements

To consider and adopt the audited financial staterments (Standalone and Consolidated) for the financial year ended 31 March
2023 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors therson,

Item No. 2 - Re-appointment of Director

To appoint a Director in place of Dr. Rashmi Kapeoor (DIN: 01818323), who refires by rotation in terms of Section 152(6) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and baing eligible, seeks ra- appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
item Mo, 3 - Ratification of Remuneration to Cost Auditors

To consider and if thought fit, ratify the remuneration payable to Mr. Rishi Mehan Bansal, Cost Accountants (Registration No:
102056), Cost Auditors of the Company, for the financial year ending 31 March 2024 and pass the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

*Resoclved that pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(3) and all other appiicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,
2013 (including any statutory modification(s), enactmentis) or re-enaciment(s) theraof, for the fime being in force), and the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended from time totime, the Company hereby ratifies the remuneration of
T 30,000 (Rupees Thirty Thousand Only) plus applicable taxes and reimbursement for out of pocket expenses payable to Mr.
Rishi Mohan Bansal, Cost Accountants | Registration No: 102056), who have been appointed by the Board of Directors on the
recommendation of the Audd Committee, as Cost Auditors of the Company, to conduct the awdit of the cost records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ending 31 March 2024,

"Resolved further that the Board of Diractors, be and is hereby authorized to do all acts, deeds, matters and things as may be
deemed necessary and/or expadient in connection therewith orincidental thereto, to give effect to the foregoing resolution.”

Item No. 4 - Regularization of Mr. Rajiv Kumar Bakshi {DIN: 00264007) a= an Independent Director
To consider and, ifthought fit, pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

‘Resolved that pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 150 and 152, Schedule |V and other applicable provisions, if any, of
the Companias Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment
thereot for the time being in force), the provisions of the Aricles of Association of the Company and based on the
recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committae and the Board of Directors of the Gompany, approval of
the Members be and is hereby accorded for appointment of Mr. Rajiv Kumar Bakshi (DIN: 00264007), who was appointed as
an Additicnal Director {in the capacity of an Independent Director) of the Company by the Board of Directors with effect from 31
May 2023, and who has submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria of independence under Section 149(6) of the Act
and is eligible for appointment under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder and is not liable to refire by
rotation, to hold office for a term of three consecutive years w.e.i. tha date of this AGM.
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"Resolved further that the Board of Directors, be and is hereby authorized to do all acts, deeds, matters and things as may be
deemed necessary and'or expedient in connaction therewith or incidental thereta, to give effect 1o the foregoing resolution.”

Item No. 5-Increase in Borrowing limits under Section 180 (1) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013 upto T 700 Crores.
To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

"Resolved that in supersession of the special resolution passed by the Members of the Company at the Annual General
Meeting held on 22nd December 2018 and pursuant to the provisions of Section 180(1 ){c) and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory maodifications thereof) and any rules and regulations made
thereunder and pursuant to recommendation of Board of Directors, the consent of the members of the Company be and is
hereby accorded by way of special resclution to borrow money from time to time for the purpose of Company’s business on
such terms and conditions as the Board may deem fit, by way of loans or otherwise from banks or financial institufions, up foan
aggregate amount of T 700 Crores (Rupees Seven Hundred Crores) only notwithstanding that the monies to be borrowed,
together with the monles already borrowed by the Company (apart from the lemporary loans obtained from the Company's
bankers in the ordinary course of business), excead the aggregate of the paid up capital of the Company and its free reserves
and security premium.

*Resolved further that the Board of Directors, be and is hereby authorized to do all acts, deeds, matters and things as may be
deemed necessary andfor expedient in connection therewith or incidental thereto, to give effect to the foregoing resolution.”

ltem Mo. 6 - Increase in Investment limits under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 upto ¥ 240 Crores.
To consider and, itthought fit, pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

‘Resolved that pursuant to the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act 2013 read with the Companies (Meetings of
Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory
maodifications thereof) and any rules and regulations made thereunder and pursuant to the recommendation of Board of
Diractors, the consant of members of the Company be and is heraby accorded for making investment in Mutual Fund(s) foran
Amount not exceeding Rs. 240 Crores (Rupees Two Hundred Forty Crores only) in aggregate or inone or more tranches in
units of existing/new mutual fund schemes, whether liguid, epen ended or close endad, managed by onea or more renownad
fund house(es) as considerad necessary in the best interest of the Company.

"Resolved further that the Board of Directors, be and is heraby authorized to do all acts, deeds, matters and things as may be
deemed necessary and/or expedient in connaction therewith or incidental thereto, to give effect to the foregoing resolution.”

[tem No. 7 - Issuance, Offer and Allotment of up to 2,277,212 (Twenty-Two Lakh Seventy- Seven Thousand Two
Hundred And Twelve) cumulative, Compulsorily, Convertible Preference Shares on Preferential basis by way of
Private Placement To The Investor;

To considar and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

"Resolved that
(a) pursuantto:

(i

(i)

the provisions of sections 42, 55, 62(1)(c) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read along with
Rule 9 and 13 of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, Rule 14 of the Companies (Prospectus and
Allotment of Securities) Aules, 2014 and any other rules framed thereunder (including any statutory modifications,
amendments thereto or re- enactment thereof, the circulars, orders, notifications, regulations, rules, guidelines, if any, issued
by the Government of India) (the "Act");

Foreign Exchange Management Act. 1999 and rules specified thereunder (including any statutory modifications,
amendments therato or re-enactment thereof, the circulars, orders, notifications, regulations, rules, guidelines, if any, issued
by the Government of India); and
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(i) the memorandum of association and articles of association of the Company; and

(iv) the recommendation made by the board of directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the "Board” which shall

(i

deemed to include any commities thereof) at its meeting held on 20th September 2023:

the consent of members of the Company be and Is hereby accorded for the issue, offer and allotment of up-to 22,77 212
(Twenty Two Lakh Seventy Seven Thousand Two Hundred and Twelve) Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference
Shares having a face value of INR 10/- each at a premium of INR 648.70/- on such terms as set out in Annexure A (*CCPS"), to
Morwest Capital, LLC ("Investor"} in the manner set out below (the "lssue"), on a preferantial basis by way of private
placement through issue of sarally numbered private placement offer cum application letter recorded as Form PAS - 4 (the
"Offer Letter") on such terms and conditions in accordance with the provisions of the Actand in the manner setout in the;

Share Subscription Agresmeant dated 28th September, 2023 enterad into by and amongst (a) the Company, () Rashmi
Kapoar, Atul Kapoor and Abhishek Kapoor (collectively referred 1o as the "Promoters”) and () Norwest Capital, LLC ("SSA™);
and

(i} Shareholders Agresment dated 28th September, 2023 enterad into by and amongst (a) the Company, (b) Rashmi Kapoor,

Atul Kapoor and Abhishek Kapoor (collectively referred to as the "Key Promoters®), (c) Atul Kapoor HUF, Soni Kapoor, Arun
Akshat Kapoor HUF, Arun Kapoor HUF, Arun Kapoor {collectively refarred to as the "Other Promoters”) and (d) Morwest
Capital, LLC

("Shareholders Agreement” or "SHA"); (554 and SHA ara collectively referred to as "Transaction Documents"),

Particulars of disclosures required to be disclosed as per Rule 9{2) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules,
2014 isasfollows: -

{EI:I the prlc}nty with respect to As set out in the terms as
payment of dividend or | Perthe Annexure A.
repayment of capital vis-a-
vis equity shares;

As set outin the terms as
perthe Annexure A,

(c) the participation in surplus | As set outin the terms as
assets and profits, on winding- | Perthe Annexure A,

up which may remain after the
entire capital has been repaid

(d) the payment of dividend on As set out in the terms as
cumulative or non-cumulative | Perthe Annexure A.

(B) | the participation in surplus fund

basis
shares into equity shares P exure A.
(f) the voting rights As set outin the terms as

perthe Annexure A.

(@) | the redemption of preference | As setoutin the terms as
shares perthe Annexure A.
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(i)

0]

(i}

Resolved further that a copy of the valuation certificate, issued by M's Sundae Capital Advisors Private Limited (SEBI Regn.
MNo. INMOOD01 2494 and |IBBI Ragn. No IBBI/RY- E/03/2021/136) be and is hereby noted by the members.

Resolved further that the draft of the Offer Letter in Form PAS-4 in accordance with the Companies {Prospectus and
Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014, tabled before the meeting, duly initialed by the Chairman for the purpose of
identification, be and is hereby approved.

Resolved further that the Company is authorized to record the name of the Investor and maintain such record of private
placement offer ofthe CCPS in Form PAS-5 under the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Hules, 2014,

Resolved further that Dr. Atul Kapoor (DIN 01449229), the Managing Dirgctor and Dr. Rashmi Kapoor (DIN 01818323), the
Whole time Director of the Company be and are hereby severally authorised to make and accept any modifications in the
Offer Letter and Form PAS-5 and to setfle all questions or difficulties that may anse in regard to the Issue including amending
or modifying any of the terms of such Issue or allotment, as may made pursuant to and in accordance with the Transaction
Documents or otherwise.

Resolved further that monies received by the Company from the Investor as share application monigs to allot CCPS,
pursuant to the lssue shall be kept by the Company in a separate bank account maintained by the Company for this purpose
and shall be utilized by the Company in accordance with section 42 of the Act,

Resolved further that Dr, Atul Kapoor (DIN 01449229), the Managing Director and Dr. Rashmi Kapoor (DIN 01818323) the
Whaote Time Director of the Company, be and are hereby severally authorized on behalf of the Company to accept any
change(s) or modification{s) as may be suggested by the appropriate authorities andior agreed pursuant to and in
accordance with the Transaction Documents, to execute forms on behalf of the Company and do all such other acts, deeds,
matters or things as may be necessary, appropriate, expedient or desirable to give effect to this resolution and for matters
connected herewith or ancillary or Incidental therato, with further powers to delegate all or any of the above authorities
conferrad to them to any officer(s)/authorities person(s) of the Company, including but not limited to:

signing and sending the relevant Offer Letter to the Investor and to sign and maintain Form PAS-5;

making all applications/filings to the appropriate authorities including filing of Form FG-GPR with the Reserve Bank of India
under the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules, regulations framed there under; and

to settle all such guestions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in relation fo the offer/lssue, alloiment and utilisation of the
proceads and fo finalise and execute all documents and writings as may be necessary, proper, desirable or expedient in
implemeantation of this resolution.

Resolved further that Dr. Atul Kapoor (DIN 01449223), the Managing Director and Dr. Rashmi Kapoor (DIN 01818323) the
Whole Time Director and Mr. Yogi Srivastava, the Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby severally
authorized to cerify a copy of this resolution and issue the same to all concerned parties.”

By Order of the Board of Directors
of Regency Hospital Limited

Dr. Atul Kapoor

Date: 29 September 2023 Managing Director

Registered Office: A-2 Sarvodaya MNagar DIN: 01449229
Kanpur-208005 Uttar Pradesh
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NOTES:

1.

10.

12

13

14.

An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in respect of the Special
Business to be transacted in the AGM as set out under Item Mos. 3, 4, 5, 6 & 7 above and relevant details of the Director as
mentioned under ltem No. 2 & 4 as reguired under Secretarial Standards-2 on General Meetings issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India, is annaxed hareto.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote at the
meeting on his/hear behalf. Such a proxy need not to be member of the Company.

Members are requested to note that a person can act as a proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding 50 in number and
halding in the aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting nights. A Mamber
holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appeint a single person as proxy
and such parson shall not act as proxy for any other person or shareholder, During the period beginning 24 hours before the
time fixed for the commencemeant of AGM and until the conclusion of the meeting, a mamber would be entitled to inspect the
proxies lodged during the business hours of the Company, provided that not less than three days of notice in writing Is given
ta the Company.

Thea instrument of proxy, in order to be effective, must be received at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48
hours before the commencement of the Meeting. A Proxy Form is annexed to this Notice. Proxies submitted on behalf of
limited companies, societies, ete. must be supported by an appropnate resolution or authority as applicable.

Institutional/Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Annual General Meeting
are reguested to cerified copy (PDF/JPEG format) of the Board Resolution, authorizing their representatives to attend and
vole at the AGM, pursuant to Secticn 113 of the Act, to Company at by email to company.secretary @ regencyhealthcare.in.

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, maintained under Section 170 of the Act, and
the Register of Contract or Arrangaments in which Directors are interested, maintained under Section 189 of the Act, will be
available for inspection by the members at the AGM.

In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holders who are higher in the order of the names will be entitled
to vote.

Members/proxies/authorized representatives are requested to bring the duly filled Attendance Slip enclosed herewith to
attend the Meeting.

As per Sectlon 72 of the Act, the facility for submitting nominations is available for members In respect of the shares held by
them. Members who have not yet registered their nomination are requested to register the same by submitting Form SH-13.
The form can be downloaded from the Company's website.

Section 20 of the Companies Act, 2013 permits service of documents on Members by a company through electronic mode.
Hence, in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules framed thereunder, the Annual Repord 2022-23 is
being sent through electronic mode to those Members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company/Depository
Participant unless any Member has requested for a physical copy of the Report, For Members who have not registared their
e-mail addresses, physical copies of the Annual Report 2022-23 are being sant by the permitted modes. Members may note
that the Annual Report 2022-23 and Motice of AGM will also be available on the Company's website at
hitps.fregencyhealthcare.infinvestor-relations’.

. Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, about their namea, postal address, e-mail address, telephone’ mobile

numbers, PAN, power of attomey registration, Bank Mandate details, ete. to their DPs in case the shares are held in
electronic form and to the ATA In case the shares are held in physical form, in prescribed Form Ne. ISB-1 and other forms,
quating their folio number and enclosing the self-attested supporting document.

To prevent fraudulent transactions, Members are advised Lo exarcise due diligence and notify the Company of any changes in
address or demise of any Member as soon as possible. Members are also advised not to leave their demat account(s)
dormant for long. Penodic statement of holdings should be obtained from the concemed Depository Participant and holdings
should be verified from time to time.

Members holding shares in physical form, in identical order of namies, in more than one folio are requested o send to the
Company or RTA, the details of such folios together with the share certificates along with the requisite KY'C documents for
consolidating their holdings in one folio. Requests for consolidation of share certificates shall be processed in dematerialized
form.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014 {as amended), the Company is pleased to provide the faciflity fo Members to exercise their
right to vote on the resolutions proposed to be passed at AGM by electronic means. For this purpose, the Company has
entered into an arrangement with National Securities Depasitory Limited (NSDL) as the authorized agency for facilitating
voling through electronic means, The facility of casting votes by a member using Remote e-Voting system will be provided by
MSOL. The Members attending the AGM who have not already cast their votes by Remote e-Voting shall be able to exercise
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15.

16.

17.

their right at the meeting. The Members who have cast their vote by Remote e-Voting prior to the Meeting may also attend the
AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again. Members may contact Mr. Yogi Srivastava, Company Secretary, for any
grievances connected with electronic means at yogi_srivastava @ regencyhealthcare.in Tel. #0512- 3502661,

The remote e-voting period will commence on Monday, 23 Octobar 2023 at 8.00 a.m. IST and will end on Thursday, 26
October 2023 at 5.00 p.m. IST. During this pancd, members holding shares either in physical form or in dematarialized form,
as on Friday, 20 October 2023 i.e. cut-off date, may cast their vote electronically. The e- voting module shall be disabled by
NSDL for voting thersafter. A person who is not a Member as on the cut-off date should treat this Natice for information
purpose anly, Members have the opficn to cast their vote on any of the resolutions using the remote e-vaoting facility either
during the period commencing from Monday, 23 October 2023 at 9.00 a.m. IST and will end on Thursday, 26 October 2023 at
5.00 p.m. IST. Members who have cast their votes by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend/participate in the
AGM but they shall not be entitled to cast their votes again. Further, members who have voted on some of the resolutions
during the remote a-voting period are also eligible to vote on the remaining resclutions during the AGHM.

A person, whose name is recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial Owners maintained by the
depositories as on cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of Remote e-Voting or voting at the Meating.

The Board of Directors has appointed Mr. Surendra Kumar Sahu, Practicing Company Secretary (M. No. 5182, COP No.
4040), Proprietor of M/s SKS & Company as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote e-Vioting process in a fair and
transparent manner.

The Scrutinizer shall immediately after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, unblock the votes cast through remote e-Voting
{votes cast during the AGM and votes cast prior to the AGM and make, not later than three days of the conclusion of the AGM,
a consolidated Scrutinizer's Repart of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, forthwith to the Chairman of the
Company orany parsen authorized by him inwriting whe shall countersign the same.

The Results declared along with the Scrutinizer's Report shall be placed on the website of the Company at
hitps:/fregencyhealthcare.in/,

THEINSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:-

The Remote e-Voting period begins on Monday, 23 October 2023 at 09.00 A.M. and ends on Thursday, 26 October
2023 at 05.00 P.M. The Remote e-Voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose
names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e., Friday, 20 October
2023 may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of Shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up
equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being Friday, 20 October 2023,

How do | vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?
The way fo vote electronically on NSDL e-Voling systerm consists of "Twao Steps" which are mentioned below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

A)

Login method for e-Vioting for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode

Login method for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of

Shareholders Login Method

Individual 1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz, https:/eservices.nsdl.com
Shareholders holding) either on a Personal Computer or on & mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the
securities in demat "Beneficial Owner" icon under "Legin"” which is available under 'IDeAS’" section, this will prompt
mode with NSOL. you to enter your existing User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able

to see e-Voting services under Value Added Services. Click on "Access to e- Voting” under e-
Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on Company name or e-Vioting
service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casfing
your vote during the Remote -Voting period. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option
to regisier is available at https:'eservices.nsdl.com. Select "Register Online for IDeAS Portal”
aor  click at https:/feservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/ldeasDirectReq.jsp.

2. Visit the e-Voting websilte of NSDL. Open web browser by Wyping the following URL:
https:fwww.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a moblle. Onee the home
page of e-Voling system is launched, click on the icon "Login® which is available under
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open, You will have to enter your User 1D (i.e.
your sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code
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as shown on the screen. After successiul authentication, you will be redirectad to NSDL
Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service
provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e- Voting website of NSDL for casfing your vate
during the Remate e-Voting period.

3. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App "NSDL Speede” facility by
scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless voling experience.

NSDL Mobile App is avaoilable on

B Google Play

Individual
Shareholders
holding securities
in demat mode
with CDSL

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing user id and
password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voling page without amy further
authentication. The users to login Easi /Easiest are reguested to wvisit CDSL website
www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & Mew System Myeasi Tab and then user your existing
my easi username & passwaord.

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for eligible
companies whare the evoting is in progress as per the information provided by company. On
clicking the evoting option, the user will be able fo see e-Vioting page of the e-Voting service
provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period. Additionally, there is also links
provided to access the system of all e-Voling Service Providers, so that the user can visit the e-
Voting service providers' website directly,

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option 1o register is available at CDSL website
wiwvw.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System Myeasl| Tab and then click on registration
option.

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account Number and
PAN No. from a e- Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page. The systern will
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobila & Email as recorded in the Damat
Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option where the
evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers,

Individual
Shareholders
(holding securities in
demat mode) login
through thair
depository
participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository
Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility, Upon logging in, vou will be able to see e-
Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after
successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-\Voting
sarvice provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirectad to e- Voting wabsite of NSDL for casting your vote
during the Hemote e- Voting period.

Important note: Members who are unabie to retrieve User IDf Password are advised to use Forget User 1D and Forget Password
option avallable at abovementionad website,
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Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login through
Depositoryi.e. NSDLand CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Sharahalders holding securitiesin | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by

demat mode with NSDL sending a request at evoling@nsdl.co.in or call at 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 -
24887000

Individual Shareholders holding securities in | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by

demat mode with COSL sanding a request at helpdask.evoting @ cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no.
1800225533

B) Login Method for e-Voting for Shareholders other than Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode and
Shareholders holding securities in physical mode.

H o Log-into NSDL e-Voting website?

1. Visitthe e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https./fwww.evating.nsdl.com/ eitheron a
Personal Computer or on a mokbile.

2. Oncethe home page of a-Voting system is launchad, click on theicon "Login® which is available under ‘Shareholder /Member’
section.

3. Anew screen will open. You will have 1o enter your User 1D, yvour Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the
SCTeen,
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at hitps./esendices.nsal.com/ with your
existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in fo NSDL eservices affer using your log-in credentials, cfick on e-Voling and you can
proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

4.  YourUser D details are given below :

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat Your User ID is:
{NSDL or CDSL) or Physical

a) For Members who hold shares in demat 8 Character DF 1D followed by 8 Digit Client 1D
account with NSDL. For example if your DP 1D is IN30D*** and Client 1D is 12°7*** then
your user 1D is IN300 = 127",

b) For Members who hold shares in demat 16 Digit Beneficiary ID
account with GDSL. For example il your Beneficiary ID is 12**=*********** then your user
1D |5 | B=rewinkrikiads

c) ForMembers holding sharesin Physical Form, EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the Company
For example if folio numberis 001" and EVEN is 101456 then user 1D
iz 101456001"*

5. Password details for Shareholders othear than Individual Shareholders are given below:
a) Myouare already registered for e-Voting, then you can use your existing password to login and cast your vote.

b} Hyouare using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password' which was communicated
to you. Once you refrieve your 'initial password’, you need to enter the 'initial password’ and the system will force you to change
yourpassword,

c)  Howto retrieve your initial password'?

iy Hyouremail 1D is registered in your demat account or with the company, your initial password’ is communicated to you on your
email 1D, Trace the email sent 1o you from NSDL from your mailbox, Cpen the email and opan the attachment i.e. a .pdf file.
Openthe .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, 1ast 8 digits of client 1D for CDSL
account orfolio number for shares heldin physical form. The . pdffile contains your 'User 1D and your 'initial password'.

iy [ youremail |0 s not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those shareholders whose email ids
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a)

c)

d)

o

are not registered.
ityou are unable to retrievae or have not received the " Inftial password" or have forgotten your password:

Click on "Forgot User Details/Password?" {If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option
avallable on www.evoling.nsdl.com.

Physical User Reset Password?" (if vou ara holding shares in physical mode) option available on wew_evoting.nsdl.com.

If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at evoling @ nsdl.co.in mentioning
your demat account numberfolio number, your PAN, your name and your registerad address etc.

Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Vioting system of NSDL.
After entering your password, tick on Agree to "Terms and Conditions" by selecting on the chack box,

Mow, you will have to click on “Login® button.

Aftar you click onthe "Login® button, Home page of e-Voting will opan.

2: t your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system?

1.

After successhul login at Step 1, you will be abla to see all the Companies "EVEN" in which you are holding shares and whose
voting cycle is in active status.

Select "EVEN" of Company for which you wish to cast your vote during the Remaote e- Voling period.
Mow you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

Cast your vole by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for which you wish to
castyourvote and click on "Submit" and also "Confirm® when prompted,

Upeon confirmation, the massage "Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.
Yo can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page.
Onee you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vole,

General Guidelines for Shareholders

1.

Institutional Shareholders {i.e. othar than individuals, HUF, MR etc.) are reguired to sand scannad copy (PDF/JPG Format) of
the relevant Boar Resolution/ Authority lettar etc. with attested spacimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(igs) who
are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to sksco2001 @ gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting @ nsdl.co.in,
Institutional Shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resclution / Power of
Attorney [ Authority Letter efc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab
intheir login.

Itis strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password
confidential. Legin to the e-Voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessiul attempts to key in the correct password. In
such an event, you will need to go through the "Forgot User Details/Password? or "Physical User Reset Password?" option
available onwww.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

in case of any queries, you may refer the Freguently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-Voting user manual for
Shareheolders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22
44 30 or send a request to Amit Vishal, Assistant Vice President, or Pallavi Mhatre, Senior Manager, National Securities
Depositery Ltd., at eveting @ nsdl.co.in.

Process for those Shareholders whose emall ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring user id and
password and registration of e mail ids for e-Voting for the resolutions set out in this notice:

1.

In case shares are hald in physical mode please provide Folio Ma., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate
(front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (sell attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by
email to investor @ regencyhealthcare.in.

In case sharas are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary I1D), Nama,
client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self
aftested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to (investor @ regencyhealthcare.in). If you are an Individeal Sharehoiders holding
securlties in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) L.e. Login method for e-
Voting for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

Alternatively ShareholderMembers may send a request to evoting @ nsdl.co.in for procuring user id and password for e-Voting
by providing above mentionad Documents.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
Statement pursuant to Saction 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended ('Act’)
The following Statement sets out all material facts relating to Item Nos. 3, 4, 5, 6 &7 mentioned In the accompanying Notice,

Item No. 3

In tarms of Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to
time, the Company is required to undertake the audit of its cost records for products covered under the Companies (Cost
Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, to be conducted by a Cost Accountantin practice.

In compliance with the above, the Audit Cormmitiee of the Company at its meeting held on 15 September 2023, considered the
appointment of Mr. Rishi Mohan Bansal {Registration Mo. 102058) as the Cost Auditors of the Company for FY. 2023-24. At
the said meeting, the Audit Committee also considered the remunaration of ¥ 30,000/« (Rupees Thirty Thousand only) (plus
applicable taxes and reimbursament of out-of-pockel expenses) payabie to the Cost Auditors of the Company for FY. 2023-
24,

The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, in its Meeting held on 15 September 2023 approved
the appointment and remuneration of Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for F.Y. 2023-24.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148(3) of the Act read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors as recommended by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board
must be ratified by the Members of the Company. The consent of the Members is sought for passing an Ordinary Hesolution as
sat out at lterm No. 3 of the Notice for ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors of the Company for the
Financial Year ending 31 March 2024,

Mone of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives are concerned or interasted in the
Resolution set outin Item Mo 3 of the Notice.

The Board of Directors recommends the Resolution set forth in iterm No. 3 for approval of the Members.

Item No. 4

The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, appointed Mr. Hajiv Kumar
Bakshl (DIN: 00264007), as an Additional Director (in the capacity of Independent Director) of the Company, with effect from
31 May 2023 under Section 149, 150 and 152 of the Act and Article 75 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Rajiv
Kurmar Bakshi is eligible to be appointed as an Independent Director and the Company has also received a declaration of
independence from him. Further, he is neither disqualified from being appointed as a Director in terms of Sechon 164(2) of the
Act, not debarred from holding the office of director by virtue of any ROC order or any other such authority.

In tha apinion of the Board, Mr, Rajiv Kumar Bakshi fulfils the conditions as set outin Section 149{6} and is thereby aligible for
appointment as an Independeant Director. Briefl profile of Mr. Rajiv Kumar Bakshiis as follows:

In a career spanning over 33 years with Bank of India, acquired rich experience of Banking operations with a thorough
knowledge of process flow, International Banking, Treasury, Large Corporate Credit and Risk Management, Planning and
Business Process Reengineering. Various positions and assignments held include a sfint as Faculty in the Training College,
postingin Londen branch, Head of Treasury and as Chief Executive, Singapore Operations of Bank of India.

Pioneered a new foray of the Bank into life Insurance business with the setting up of a Joint Venture Life Insurance Company in
collaboration with Daiichi Mutual Life of Japan and Union Bank of India.

As Execufive Director of Bank of Baroda, he looked after the important functions of large credit, Risk Management,
Intermational Banking, Traasury, Information Technology, Audit & Business Process Re- engineering. He represented the
bank on its Kenya & Tanzania subsidiaries as Chairman of their respective Boards, as well as Director on the Zambian Joint
Venture. He played an active role in the Life Insurance Joint Venture of Bank of Baroda India First life Insurance Company Lid
and a Director on its Board.

After superannuation from Bank, he served as GGovernment appointed trustee on Stressed Assets Stabilization Fund (SASF)
of IDB|. He also worked as member of RBl Services Board for 5 years ending August 2018,

He also worked for 7 years (ending Mov 2019) as Senior Adviser with Centrum Financial Services Lid a category 1 Merchant
bank with full suite of products.

Since October 2013, he served as member of the Expert Committes appointed by REBI to assist the Administrator of Punjab &
Maharashtra Coop Bank Ltd. He also worked as Adviserto a Small Finance Bank for one year ending 25 January 2023,

The Board firmly believes that Mr. Rajiv Kumar Bakshi's knowledge coupled with deep understanding will surely help the
Company steer further ahead in its futura-fit journey. The Board of Directors based on the recommendation of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committea considars the appointment of Mr. Rajiv Kumar Bakshi as an Independent Director in the interast
of the Company.

11




EGENCY
r&l'ﬁﬁﬁ‘” Annual Report 2022-23

MNone of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives are concemed or interested In the
Resolution set out in ltem Mo. 4 of the Notice.

Tha Board of Directors recommends the Resolution set forth in ltem Mo. 4 for approval of the Membars.

Item MNo. 5

The members of the Company had at Annual General Mesating dated 22 December 2018 accorded their consent to the Board
of Directors to borrow money Up to an amount not exceeding ¥ 350 Crores (Rupees Three Hundred Fifty Crores) only.
Considering the Company's long term strategic and business objectives and project expansion, the Company needs
additicnal funds. For this purpose, the Company may, from time to time, raise finance from various Banks and/or Financial
Institutions and’ or any other fending institutions and/or Bodies Corporate and/or such other persons/ individuals as may be
considerad fit, which, tegether with the monies already borrowed by the Company (apart from lemporary loans obtained from
the Company's bankers in ordinary course of business) exceed the aggregate of the paid-up capital and free reserves of the
Company. Given the future capex reguirements of the Company, it is proposed to increase its borrowing limits to enable the
Company to remain ready for any further strategic investments. Howevar, utilization of the borrowing limits will be done
prudently and in the bestinterest of the Company

In terms of the provisions of Section 180{1){c} of the Act, borrowing powers in excess of the aggregate of the paid-up capital,
free reserves and securities premium account of the Company, can be exercised by the Board only with the consent of the
Members obtained by a special resolution. Theretore, itis necessary to obtain approval of the Members by means of a special
resolution to enable the Board fo borrow monies, provided that the total amount so borrowed by the Board shall not exceed
T700 Crores (Rupees Seven Hundred Crores) only or the aggregate of the paid up capital, free reserves and securities
premium account of the Company, whichever is higher.

Mone of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives are concemned or interested in the
Resolution set outin item No. 5 of the Notice.

The Board of Directors recommends the Resolution set forth in Item No. 5 for approval of the Members.

Item MNo. &

In order to make optimum use of funds available with the Company and also to achieve long term strategic and business
objectives, the Board of Directors of the Company proposes to make use of the same by making investment in mutual funds as
and when required,

Members may note that pursuant to Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act™), the Company can give loan or give any
guarantee or provide security in connection with a loan to any other body corporate or person and acquire securities of any
other body corporate, in excess of 60% of its paid up share capital, free reserves and secunities premium account or 100% of its
free reserves and securities premium account, whichever is more, with approval of Members by special resclution passed at
the ganeral maating.

in view of the aforesaid, it is proposed to take approval under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, by way of special
resolution, up to a limit of Rs. 240 Crores (Rupees Two Hundred Forty Crores) only, as proposed in the Motice.,

Mone of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives are concemned or interested in the
Resolution set cut in Item No. 6 of the Motice.

The Board of Directors recommends the Resolution set farth in Item Mo, 6 for approval of the Membaers,

Item No. 7

The Company was incorporated on 8th June 1987, As of today, Company has a paid-up capital of INR 14,04,27,790 (Indian
Rupees Fourteen Crore Four Lakh Twenty Seven Thousand Seven Hundred and Ninety). The Company intends to raise
further capital by issuing up to 22,77.212 (Twenty Two Lakh Seventy Seven Thousand Two Hundred and Twelve) Cumulative,
Compulsorily, Convertible Preferance Shares having a face value of INR 10 (Indian Rupees Ten) each at a premium of INR
648.70 (Indian Rupees Six Hundred Forty Eight point seventy) on such terms as set out in Annexure A ("CCPS") on
preferantial basis by way of private placemeant through issue of private placemant offer letter to:

MORWEST CAPITAL, LLC (the “Investor®) pursuant to the (i} S5A dated 28th September, 2023, entered into inter alia, by the
Company, Rashmi Kapoor, Atul Kapoor, Abhishek Kapoor and the Investor; and (i) Shareholders Agreement dated 28th
September, 2023, entered into inter alia, by and amongst the Company, Rashmi Kapoor, Atul Kapoor, Abhishek Kapoor, Atul
Kapoor HUF, Soni Kapoor, Arun Akshat Kapoor HUF, Arun Kapoor HUF, Arun Kapoor and the Investor {({i) and (i) shall
collectively be referred to as the “Transaction Documents®).

Pursuant to proviso to Rule 14 (1) of the Companies (Prospectus and Alletment of Securitias) Rules, 2014 following
disclosures are made:
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Particulars of the offer including date of passing
of Board rasolution.

Private placement of the 2277212 (Twenty Two Lakh Seventy
Sevan Thousand Two Hundred and Twelve) CCPS.

Board Approval date- 25th September 2023

Kind of securities offered and the price at which
security is being allotted.

Cumulative Compulsonly Convertible Preference Shares having a
face value of INR 10/- each at a premium of INR 648.70/-

Basis or justification for the price (including
premium, if any) at which the offer or invitation
is being made.

Valuation cerificate, issued by M/s Sundae Capital Advisors Private
Limited (SEBI Regn. Mo. INMO0O0O12494 and |IBEI Regn. Mo
IBEIRY-E/03/2021/136).

Mame and address of valuer who performed
valuation.

M/s Sundae Capital Advisors Private Limited, 1177, 11th Floor,
VEGAS Plot No. 6, Sector 14 (Morth) Dwarka City Centre, New Delhi
- 110 OF5 (SEBI| Regn. Mo, INMO0D0012494 and IBBI Regn. Mo
IBBI/RV-E/03/2021/138).

Amaount which the Company intends to raise by
way of such securities.,

INR 148,98,99,544.40/-

Materal terms of raising such secunties,
proposed time schedule, purposes or objects
of offer, contribution being made by the
promoters of directors either as part of the offer
or separately in furtherance of objects;
principle terms of assets charged as
sgcurities.

Tha securitias shall be convertible into equity sharas in the mannar
as described in Annexure A, The purpose of the offeris to raise the
funds far, inter-alia, expanding the business operations of the
Company, mesling capital expenditure and working capital
requirements needed in connection with the Company's business
and general corporate purposes. The Promoters are not contributing
as part of the Offer. Mo assets are being charged for this private
placemant.

The material facts and information concemed with and relevant to tha issue of the CCPS fo enable the members understand the
meaning, scope and implications of the itams of business and to take dacision thereon pursuant to Rule 9(3) of Companias
(Share Capital and Debanture) Rules 2014 and Rule 13(2) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules 2014, ara
listed herein baelow for their consideration:

1. | Tha objects of thaissue. For raising funds for, inter-alia, expanding the business operations of
the Company, meeting capital expenditure and working capital
reguiraments needed in connection with the Company's business

and general corporate purposes.

2. | Thetotal number of shares or other securities o

2277212 (Twenty Two Lakh Sewventy Seven Thousand Two
be issued and nominal value of each share.

Hundred and Twehea) CCPS having a face value of INR 10/- each.

3, | Nature of preference shares i.e. cumulative or
non- cumulative, participating or non-
participating, convertible or non-convertible.

Cumulative Compulsorily Converiible Preference Shares.

4, | Mannerof issue of shares, Private Placement.

5. | Terms of issue. including terms and rate of | ASPerAnnexureA

dividend on each share.
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6. | Terms of redemption. Mot Applicable as CCPS shall be compulsorily convarted into equity
shares of the Company as per the terms set outin Annexurs A,
: Mot Applicable as CCPS shall be compulsorily converted into equity
7. | Manner and modes of redemption.
B3 shares ofthe Company as perthe terms set outin Annexure A
; . INR 658.70 per CCPS {having a face value of INR 10/~ each and a
8. | The price or price band at’ within which the premium of INR 648.70/).
allotment is proposed.
. . ) valuation cerificate, issued by M/s Sundae Capital Advisors Private
9. | Basis on which the price has been arrived at | |imited (SEBI Regn. No. INMO0D0012494 and IBBI Regn. No
along with the report of the registered valuer. IBBIRV-E/03/2021/136).
10.| Relevant date with reference to which the price | 315t Aug2023.
has been arrived at.
11.| The class or classes of persons to whom the
allotment is proposed to be made. Foreign Investor (Corporate Body).
12.] Intention of promoters, directors or key s pmbr:ft.ir' diraﬂltqrpur_key rg?nageﬂal personnel of the Company
managerial parsannel to subscribe to the offer. are subscribing to this Private Placement.
13.| The proposed time within which the allotment | 4298Ys.
shall be compiated.
14.| The names of the proposed allottees and the | The names of the proposed allottes - Morwest Capital, LLC.The
percentage of post preferential offer capital that | percentage of post preferential offer capital that may be heald by
miay be held by them. them-9.50%
15.] The change in controf, if any, in the company | Thereis ne change in contral,
that would occur consaquent to the preferential
offer.
MA.
16.| The number of parsons to whom allotment on
preferential basis has already been made
during the year, interms of number of securities
aswell as price.
17.| The justification for the allotment proposed fo NA
be made for consideration other than cash '
together with the valeation report of the
registered valuer,
18| The pre-issus and post issue shareholding Detail finned Belbin a5 ARRa B
pattern (on fully diluted basis) of the Company i S e
including the expactad dilution in equity share
capital upon conversion of preference shares.
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Annexure A
TERMS OF CCPS
Definitions-
A. “Applicable Law" includes all statutes, enactments, acts of legislature or parliament, ordinances, rules, bye-laws,

GmMmMmo

a)

b)

regulations, notifications, guidelines, policies, directions, directives and orders, requirement or other governmental
restricfions or any similar form of decision of, or determination by, or any interpretation, policy or administration, having the
torce of law of any of the foregoing, of any governmant, statutory authority, tribunal, board, court having jurisdiction over the
matter in question, whether in effect as of the Execution Date or thareafter, or any recognized stock exchange(s) on which the
Shares may be listed.

“As If Converted Basis" meaans a calcutation assuming that all Dilution Instruments axisting at the tima of determination have
been exercised or converted into Shares, excluding any options issued or reserved for issuance under any stock opticn plan or
scheme by whatever name called of the Company,

“Dilution Instruments" includes any Shares, secuntias, rights, options, warrants or arrangement (whether oral or in writing)
which are convertible into or entitle the holder to acquire or receiva any Shares of the Company, or any rights to purchase or
subscribe to Shares or securities by their terms convertible into or exchangeable for Shares; excluding any arrangement
{whethar oral or in writing) binding the Company pursuant to which a bank or a financial institution is entitied to convert any
amount due to it into Shares upon default by the Company, and assuming that such default has not occurred as of the relevant
date.

“Subscription Shares” means the CCFS.
“Subscription Shares Price" means INR 143,99, 99 544 40 only.

"Notice" means a notice in writing and the terms "Motify" or “Notification” shall be construed accordingly.
“Key Promoters” means-

Abhishek Kapoor
Dr. Atul Kapoor
Dr. Rashmi Kapoor

All capitalized terms not defined in the said Schedule shall have the meaning assigned o them in the Shareholders Agreement dated 28h
September 2023, enlered info infer alia, by and amongst the Company, Rashmi Kapaor, Alul Kapoar, Abhishek Kapoor, Atul Kapoor HUF, Sanl
HKapoor, Arun Akshat Kapoor HUF, Arun Kapoor HUF, Arun Kapoor (the "SHA").

The number of Equity Shares to be issued to the holders of the Subscription Shares upon conversion shall, subject to the other
terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, be as setout in Paragraph 3 below and paragraph 3 of Schedule 8 of the SHA.

Tha CCPS shall carry a pre-daetermined cumulative dividend rate of 0.01% (2ero-point zero one parcent) par annum on an As If
Converted Basis. In addition to the same, if the holders of Equity Shares are paid dividend in excess of 0.01% (zero-point 2ero
one percent) per annum, the holders of the CCPS shall be entitled to dividend at such higher rate. The dividend shall be
payable, subject to cash flow solvency, in the event the Board declares any dividend tor the relevant year and shall be paid to
the holders of CCPS in priority to other classes of Shares.

Conversion-

The holders of the CCPS may convert the CCPS in whola or part into Equity Shares at any time before 19 (nineteen) years from
the date of issuance of the same, subject to the provisions of the terms of issuance of Subscription Shares as set out herein
and the SHA. Inthe event the conversion of Subscription Shares entitles the holder of Subscription Shares to any fraction of an
Equity Share. then such fraction shall be rounded up to the nearest whole number.

The holders of Subscription Shares shall, at any fime, be entitied to call upon the Company to convert all or any of the
Subscription Shares by issuing a Notfice to the Company accompanied by a share cerificate representing the Subscription
Sharas (wheare such Shares are in physical form) sought to be converted. Immediataly, and no later than 7 {seven) days from
the receipt of such Notice, the Company shall issue Eqguity Shares in respect of the Subscription Shares sought to be
converted. The record date of conversion of the Subscription Shares shall be deemed to be the date on which the holder of
such Subscription Shares |ssues a Motice of conversion to the Company. The Subscription Shares, or any of them, if not
converted earlier, shall automatically convert into Eguity Shares at then applicable conversion rate, (i) on latest permissible
date prior to the issue of Sharas to the public in connection with the occurrence of a Public Offer under Applicable Law, or (i) on
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(a)

(b)

(c)

the day following the completion of 19 (nineteen) years from the date of issuance of the same.

Subject to the provisions of the terms of issuance of Subscription Shares as set out herein and the SHA, each of the
Subscription Shares shall convert into such number of Equity Shares that is equal to the Subscription Shares Price (as may be
adjusted from time to time) divided by the conversion price. The initial conversion price of Subscription Shares shall be
Subscription Shares Price. Mo fractional Shares shall be issued upon conversion of Subscription Shares, and the number of
Equity Shares to be issued shall be rounded up to the nearest whoie nurmber.

Liguidation Preference - In any Liguidation Event, subject to Applicable Law. holders of Subscription Shares shall have a
preference over the other Shareholders of the Company as provided in Clause 11 (Liguidation Freference) of the SHA.

Registration rights. The holders of Subscription Shares shall receive typical and customary registration rights, where
avallable, in all global market(s) where the Company lists the Shares. Termination of the Transaction Documents shall not
aftect the obligation of the Company to provide registration rights to the holders of Subscription Shares.

Meeting and voting rights. The holders of Subscription Shares shall be entitled to receive notice of, attend meetings and vote
{on an As If Converted Basis) on all matters that are submitted to the vote of the Shareholders of the Company {including the
holders of Equity Shares). Key Promoters and the Company hereby acknowledge that the Investor has agreed to subscribe to
the Subscription Shares, on the basis that the Investor will be able to exercise voting nghts on the Subscription Shares, asifthe
same were converted into Equity Shares. The Subscription Share shall entitle the holder to the number of votes equal to the
number of whole or fractional Equity Shares into which such the Subscription Share could then be converted in accordance
with Clause 3 of this Annexure-1 and paragraph 3 of the Schedule B of the SHA. To this effect, so long as Applicable Law does
not permit the holders of Preference Shares to exercise voting rights on all Shareholder matters submitted to the vote of the
Shareholders of the Company (including the holders of Equity Shares), then until the conversion of all Subscription Shares into
Equity Shares, the Key Promoters shall vote in accordance with the instructions of the Investor at a general meeting or provide
proxies without instructions to the Investor for the purposes of a general meeting, in respect of such number of Equity Shares
held by each of them such that a relevant percentage ("Relevant Percentage”) of the Equity Shares of the Company are voted
on in the manner required by the Investor. For the purposes of this paragraph, the Relevant Percentage In relation to the
Investor shall be equal to the percentage of Equity Shares in the Company that the Investor would hold if the Investor was to
electto convert the Subseription Shares into Equity Shares in accordance with Clause 3 ofthis Annexure -1 and paragraph 3 of
the Scheduls 8 of the SHA. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the holders of Subscription Shares shall at all times be entitled to
vote on all such matters that affect their ights directly or indirecthy.

Valuation Protection. Ifthe Company offers any Dilution Instruments to a new investor or a Third Party after the Closing Date,
at a price l2ss than the effective conversion price of the Subscription Shares ("Dilutive issuance”) then the holders of
Subscription Shares shall be antitled to a broad-based weighted-average basis anti- dilution protection as provided for in
Schedule 7 of the SHA. In such an event, the Company and the Key Promoters shall be bound to cooperate with the holders of
Subseription Shares and the Company, such that the Company forthwith takes all necessary steps as detailed in the aforesaid
Schedule 7 of the SHA. The Company shall Notifty the holdars of Subscription Sharas of the impact of tha Dilufiva Issuance
prior to such issuance and obtain confirmation from them that the same conforms to these terms ofissue.

Adjustments.

I, whilst any Subscription Shares remain capable of being converted into Equity Shares, the Company splits, sub-divides
(stock split) or consolidates {reverse stock split) the Equity Shares into a different number of securities of the same class, the
number of Equity Shares issuable upon a conversion of the Subscription Shares shall, subject to Applicable Law and receipt of
requisite approvals, be proportionately increased in the case of a split or sub-division (stock split), and likewise, tha number of
Equity Shares issuable upon a conversion of the Subscription Shares shall be proportionately decreased in the case of a
consolidation (reverse stock split).

H, whilst any Subscription Shares ramain capable of baing converted into Equity Shares, the Company makas or issugs a
dividend or other distribution of Equity Shares to the holders of Equity Shares then the number of Equity Shares to be issuedon
any subsequent conversion of Subscription Shares shall, subject to Applicable Law and receipt of requisite approvals, be
increased proportionately and without payment of additional consideration therefor by the holders of Subscription Shares.

lithe Company, by re-classification or conversion of Shares or otherwise, changes any of the Equity Shares into the same ora
different number of Shares of any other class or classes, the right to convert the Subscription Shares into Equity Shares shall
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(d)

theraafter represent the right to acquire such number and Kind of Shares as would have been issuable as the result of such
change with respect to the Equity Shares that were subject to the conversion rights of the holder of Subscription Shares
immediately prior to the record date of such re-classification or conversion.

The holders of Subseription Sharas shall be entitled to the cumulative benafit of all adjustmeants referred to herain,

Amendment of Terms. (a) Any amendment of the terms of Subscrption Shares {including Clause 11 (Liguidalion
Preference)) of the SHA; or (b) waiver of any nghts; that would adversely affect the rights of the holders of Subscription Shares
contained in this Annexura-A and the SHA (including Paragraph 3 {Liguidation Preference)) shall require the consent of the
holders of Subscription Shares. Without prajudice to the foregoing, the issuance of any Dilution Instruments by the Company
that are of a different series or class but have rights pan passu to the rights of the Subscription Shares (including liguidation
preference) shall not be considered as an amendment to the terms of issuance of the Subscription Shares and the approval of
the holders of Subscription Shares, in accordance with this Paragraph, will not be required for such issuance or for undertaking
any consequential amendments to the terms of the Subscription Shares.

Annexure B

The pre-issua and post-issue shareholding pattern (on a fully diluted basis) of the Company including the expected dilution in
equity share capital upon conversion of CCPS is as balow-

Cap Table -
5. No. Category Pre-issue Post-issue
No. of % of Mo. of % of
Shares held | Share holding Shares held | Share holding
A, Promaoters’
Haolding
Indian
Individual 9,166,727 65.20 9,155,727 56.10
Sub-total 9,155,727 65.20 9,155,727 56.10
Foreign
Promoters - - . -
B. Mon-Promoters'
Holding
Institutional
Investors 772102 5.49 &7 80,121 41.42
Mon-institutional
Investors a7 10,807 26.43 - -
Private
Corporate Bodies aa,221 0.63 88,221 0.54
Directors and
Relatives - - - -
Indian public 3,07,796 219 2,07.796 1.89
Others
(including NRls} 8,126 0.06 B,126 0.05
Sub-Total (B) 48,87,052 34.80 71,64,264 43.90
Grand Total 1,40,42,779 100 1,63,19,991 100
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The provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules prescribed thereunder reguire the approval of the members of the
Company by way of a special resolution, for a company offering or making an invitation to subscribe its securities on a
preferential basis by way of private placement.

The relevant transaction documents would ba avallable for inspection at the registered office of the Company from the date of
issue of this notice, till the date of the proposed general meeting.

Mone of the Directors, key managerial personnel andfor their relatives, isinany way concerned with or interested, financially or
otherwise, in the resolution, except to the extent of their respective shareholding in the Company.

The Board at its meeting held on 29th September 2023, had approved the |ssue and offer of CCPS (Including its terms) on
preferential basis by way of private placement and recommends the adoption of the resolution as set out in item no. 7 of the
Motice as a spacial resolution.

By Order of the Board of Directors
of Regency Hospital Limited

Dr. Atul Kapoor
Date: 29 September 2023 Managing Director
Registered Office: A-2 Sarvodaya Magar DiN: 01449229

Kanpur-208005 Uttar Pradesh
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE

Details of the Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the 3d4th Annual General Meeting in accordance with the
provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and Secretarial Standard-2 ($5-2) Issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India
(ICSI1), as on date of Notice.

Dr. Rashmi Kapoor
Whaie Time Director, DIN: 01818323

Experience & Expertise: Dr. Rashmi Kapoor is associated with Hegency Hospital as a Director, Department of Pediatrics in
Pediatric Critical Care and Pulmonology. She is the first pediatrician to start Pediatric flexible bronchoscopy in 2007 in the state of
Uttar Pradesh. She was the first one to start a department of Pediatric Intensive care unit (PICU) in the state of Uttar Pradesh in the
year 1998 and developed departiment of Pediatric pulmonology for the first time in the private sectorin the state inthe year 2008.

Age/ Qualification: 66 years/M.B.B.S, M.D

Terms & Conditions of Appointment/ Re-appointment: As per Board Resolution dated 27 February 2020, 3 June 2020 and
AGM resolution passed at 31st AGM dated 20 Novembaer, 20201

Remuneration last drawn: ¥ 92,40,000 and other terms as per AGM resolution dated 20 November 2020.
Date of first appointment on the Board: 8 June 1987
Shareholding in the company: 34,33 502 Equity Shares
Relationship with other Directors, Manager and other Key Managerial Personnel:
1. Related as Spousa to Dr. Atul Kapoor, Managing Director
2. Related as Mother to Mr. Abhishek Kapoor, Executive Director - Strategy & Expansion

Mumber of Meetings of the Board attended during the year: Already being disclosed in Board's Report forming part of Annual
Report 2022-23.

Name of Companies in which she holds Directorship (other than Regency Hospital Limited):
1. Regency Institute of Mursing
2 Sibling Lifecare Private Limited

Mame of Committees of the Companies in which she holds Membership:

Company- Regency Hospital Limited

1, Stakeholders Relationship Committee- Member
2. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee- Member
3. Risk Management Committee- Member
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Mr. Rajiv Kumar Bakshi
Additional Director, DIN: 00264007

Experience & Expertise: Mr. Rajiv Bakshl has experience of over 33 years with Bank of India, acquired rich experience of Banking
operations with a thorough knowledge of process flow, Imternational Banking, Treasury, Large Corporate Credit and Risk
Management, Planning and Business Process Reengineering. Various positions and assignments held include a stint as Faculty in
the Training College, posting in London branch, Head of Treasury and as Chief Executive, Singapore Operations of Bank of India.
Pioneerad a new faray of the Bank into lite Insurance business with the setting up of a Joint Vienture Life Insurance Company in
collaboration with Dalichi Mutual Life of Japan and Union Bank of India,

As Executive Director of Bank of Baroda, he looked after the important functions of large credit, Risk Managemeant, International
Banking, Treasury, Information Technology, Audit & Business Process Re- engineering. He represented the bank on its Kenya &
Tanzania subsidiaries as Chairman of their respective Boards, as well as Director on the Zambian Joint Venture. He played an
active rolein the Life Insurance Joint Vienture of Bank of Baroda India First life Insurance Company Ltd and a Director on its Board.

After superannuation from Bank, he served as Government appaintad trustes on Stressed Assets Stabilization Fund (SASF) of
IDBI. He alsc worked as member of RBI Services Board for 5 years ending August 2018,

He also worked for 7 years (ending Mov 2019) as Senior Adviser with Centrum Financial Services Ltd a categony 1 Merchant bank
with full suite of products.

Since October 2019, he served as member of the Expert Committee appointed by RBI to assist the Administrator of Punjab &
Maharashira Coop Bank Ltd. He also worked as Adviserto a Small Finance Bank for one year ending 25 January 2023,

Age/ Qualification: 71 years/M.Sc., CAIIB. Diploma in Bank Management

Terms & Conditions of Appointment/ Re-appointment: As per Board Resolution dated 31 May 2023 and AGM resolution
passad at 34th AGM dated 27th October 2023,

Remuneration last drawn: Nil, only sitting fees is paid on the basis of Board Meeting and Committee Meeting Attendance.
Date of first appointment on the Board: 31 May 2023
Shareholding in the company: Nil

Relationship with other Directors, Manager and other Key Managerial Personnel: Not related to Directors, Manager and
other Key Managsrial Personnel

Number of Meetings of the Board attended during the year: Nil

Name of Companies in which he holds Directorship (other than Regency Hospital Limited):

1. M R Agarwal Industries Limited

2. Brady and Morris Engineerning Company Limited
3. A K. Capital Finance Limited

4, Hiveloop Capital Private Limited

5. Infopercept Consulting Private Limited

Name of Committees of the Companies in which he holds Membership:
Company- Regency Hospital Limited

1. Morination and Remuneration Committes- Member
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PROXY FORM (Form No: MGT-11)

[Pursuant to Section 105(8) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies

{Management and Adminisirafion) Rules, 2014]

REGENCY HOSPITAL LIMITED
CIN: U85110UP1987FPLCODBTS2

Registered Office: A-2 Sarvodaya Nagar, Kanpur- 208005, Uttar Pradesh
Tel:+91-0512-350-2480, Email : company,secretary @ regencyhealthcara.in

Website: www.regencyhealthcare.in

34" Annual General Meeting - 27" October 2023

Marme of the Member(s)

Registered address

Registered E-mail address

Folio Mo/ Client Id

DPID

I'We, beingthemember(s)of........coviiiiiiiiiiiiiieeee

company, hereby appoint

=T 1 = TS,

Mame:

......... shares of the above named

or failing him/her

SN I 1 1 7= ||

BRI B B ot L e L o e s o G B P

or failing him/her

R F=T 1 L= TS,

e ignature:

O S s i S o e e R e S L S B S B R
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as my/ our proxy fo attend and vote (on a poll) for mefus and on my‘our behalf at the 34th Annual General Meeting of the
Company, to be held on Friday, the 27th day of October, 2023 at 11:30 AM. (I5T) at the Corporate Qffice of the Company at B-5

Sanvodaya Magar, Kanpur-208005 Uttar Pradesh and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated
below:

Resolution Resolution Vote (optional see Note 2)
number {Please mention no, of shares)

For Against 1 Abstain

Ordinary business

1, Adoption of financial statements
2, Re-appointment of Director

Special business

a3 Ratification of Remuneration to Cost Auditors

4, Regularization of Mr. Rajiv Kumar Bakshi (DIN: 00264007)
asan Indepandent Director

8, Increase in Borrowing limits under Section 180 (1) {c} of
the Companies Act, 2013 upto ¥ 650 Crores

6. Increase in Investment limits under Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 upto ¥ 240 Crores

T. Issue and offer of up to 2 277,212 (Twenty-Two Lakh Seventy

-Seven Thousand Two Hundred And Twelve) Cumulative,
Compulsorily, Convertible Preference Shares on preferential
basis by way of Private Placement.

SiIgnedthis ....cocviinivinivenen QY O vosivennrasrmsrrinnsrans 2023, Affix Revenue
Stamp of not
................................................................... Less Than
Signature of the member Signature of the proxy holder(s) Rs. 1
Motes:

1. The form in order to be effective, should be duly stamped, completed, signed and deposited at the registered office of the
Company, not less than 48 hours before the Annual General Meeting (on or before 2.00. p.m. 15T on 25 Cctober 2023).

2. Itisoptional to indicate your preference. Please put a tick mark in the appropriate column against the resolutions indicated in

the box. Ifyou leave the "For® or "Against” column blank against any or all resolutions, your Proxy will be entitled to vote in the
manner as he/she may deem appropriate.
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Attendance Slip

REGENCY HOSPITAL LIMITED
CIN: U85110UP1987PLCO08792
Registered Office: A-2 Sarvodaya Nagar, Kanpur- 208005, Uttar Pradesh
Tel:+91-0512-350-2480, Email : company.secretary @ regencyhealthcare.in
Website: www.regencyhealthcara.in

34" Annual General Meeting - 27" October 2023

Registered Folio Mo DP 1D no. / Client 1d no..

Mo of shares held

| cerify that | am a member/proxy! avthorized representative for the member of the Company.

| hereby record my presence at the 34th Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Friday, the 27th day of October
2023 at11:30 AN {IST) at the Corporate Office of the Company at B-5 Sarvodaya Magar Kanpur-208005, Uttar Pradesh.

Mame of the member/ proxy Signature of the member/ proxy
{In BLOCK letters)

Mote: Please fill this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the meeting hall.
Meambers are requested o bring their copies of the Annueal Report to the AGM.
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Board's Report

Dear Members,

Annual Report 2022-23

The Board of Directors are pleased to present the 34™ Annual Report of Regency Hospital Limited (“the Company”) along with the
audited financial statements (standalone and consolidated) for the financial year ended 31" March, 2023,

Highlights of Financial Performance

{% in Millions unless stated otherwise)

Particulars Consolidated Standalone
2022-23 2uz1-2zm 2021-22
Rewvenue from operations 4 289 52 3677.26 4244 55 3,644 35
Other income 32,74 61.71 3711 66.63
 Total income 4,322.26 3,738.97 4,281.66 3,710.98
Expenses
Cost of matenals consumed 8989.57 849 .30 999.90 857.13
Employee benefit expenses 693,63 S588.11 B73.76 554,94
Finance costs 1BB.85 187.03 188 57 186,74
Cepreciation and amortisation 283.67 262 B9 28212 261.52
expenses
| Other expensas 172361 1,494.78 1,712.17 1.485,08
Total expenses 3,879.44 3,362.11 3,856.52 3,345.41
ProfitfLoss] before tax and 442 BZ 376.86 42514 365.57 |
share of profit of Associate
accounted for using the equity
method
Share of profit of Associate 7.28 474 - -
accounted for using the equity
method
Profit/{Loss) before tax 450.11 381.60 42514 365.57
attributable to the shareholders
| of the Parent Company
Tax expense
Current tax 110.44 40.14 106.24 36.92
Income tax relating to earlier year (5.24) 0.06 (5.34) -
Defarred Tax 31.68 5540 31.33 55.63
Total Tax Expense 136.18 95.60 131.23 92.55
Profit/|[Loss]) for the vyear 313.83 286.00 293.91 273.02
attributable to the shareholders
of the Parent Company
Other comprehensive income
[tems that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
Re-measurement (losses) on post 510 {10.65) 507 (10.65)
employment benefit obligations
Income tax relating to abowve items (1.28) 268 (1.28) 2.68
Other comprehensive income/ 3.82 {7.97) 3.79 (7.97)
(loss) for the year attributable
to the shareholders of the
Parent Company
Total comprehensive income 31M7.75 278.03 297.69 265.05
l{loss) for the year attributable
to the shareholders of the
Parent Company
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Company's Performance Overview

For FY 2022-23, the Company reported a Consclidatad
revenue from Operations of T42B9.52 compared to
¥ 3.677.26 reported for FY 2021-22.

At standalone level, the Company reported a Revenue from
Operations of T 4,244 55 compared to T 3,644.35 raported for
FY¥ 2021-22,

Regency's primary chjective is to become the most trusted
healthcara provider, Accordingly, your Company makas etforts
to consistently improve the quality of all its services. Your
Company has put together ultra-modarn healthcare facilities
equipped with best-in-class diagnostic and therapeutic
technology and a competent team of clinical and paramedical
staff.

All the Regency’s centres are focused on delivering the best
possible clinical cutcomes. The organisation invested in high
end madical infrastructure and equipment including Dosimetry
system, Radiography Machine, Bone Densitometer and Intra
Vascular Ultrasound System.

The Company has emerged in Diagnostic Business, it has tied
up with various Collection Centres to expand its Diagnostic
Business in Kanpur. The Company continuas its endeavour 1o
provide quality healthcare services with an emphasls on high
degree of clinical outcomes and an unparalleled patient
expearience.

Transfer to Reserves

The Board of Directors has decided to retain the entire amaunt
of profit for the Financial Year 2022-23 in the statement of profit
and loss.

Dividend

The Board of Directors of your Company have not
recommendead any Dividend for the year under review.,

Names of Companies which have becoma or ceased to be
its Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures or Associate Companies
during the year

There are no Companies which have become or ceased to be
Subsidiary, Joint Venture and / or Associate of the Company
during the financial year 2022-23.

Subsidiaries and Associate Company

The Company has 2 subsidiaries and 1 Associate Company as
on 31 March 2023,

1. Sibling Lifecare Private Limited ("SLPL")

SLPL is the Wholly Owned Subsidiary of the Company which is
a wholesale supplier of the medicinespharmacy to the
Compamny.

2. Regency Institute of Nursing ("RIN")
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RIM is the Whally Owned Subsidiary of the Company whichis a
Section 8 Company; that has been established to overcome the
inevitable demand of highly trained and qualified Murses in the
state of Uttar Pradesh and across India.

3. Regency Nephrocare Private Limited {"RNPL")

RNPL is an Asscciate Company which is a part of Fresenius
group which provides services in dialysis centres in more than
35 countries across Europe, Middle East, Africa and Latin
America. Fresenius Medical Care is the world's leading
provider of products and services for patients with chronic
kidney failure.

During the year, the Board of Directors reviewed the affairs of
the Subsidiaries. In accordance with Section 128(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we have prepared the Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Company, which form part of this
Annual Report. Further, a statement containing the salient
features of the financial statements of our Subsidiaries in the
prescribed format AOC-1 is annexed fo the Financial
Statementsin the Annual Report.

In accordance with Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013,
the annual accounts of the Subsidiary and Associate
Companies and the related detailed information shall be made
available to Shareholders of the Company upon request and it
shall also be made available on the website of the Company i.e.
hitps:Vregencyhealthcara.infinvestor-relations/. The annual
accounts of the Subsidiary and Associate Companies shali
also be kept open for inspection by any Shareholder in the head
office of the Company and the respective offices of its
Subsidiary Companies till the date of the AGM during business
hours,

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
Board of Directors

. Re-appointment of Managing Director & Whole Time
Director

The Sharehcolders of the Company at their Extra Ordinary
General Mesating held on 215t March 2023, based on the (i)
recommendations of the Board of Directors and Momination
and Remuneration Committee; and (i) considering the
expartise of Dr. Atul Kapoor (DIN: 01449229) and Dr. Rashmi
Kapoor (DIN: 01818323} in the Company's business and their
exceptional leadership and strong performance, had approved
their re-appointment as the Managing Director and Whaole Time
Director of the Company respectively for another term of thres
years with effizct from 1 April 2023 upto 31 March 2026,

ll. Retirement by Rotation and subsequent re-
appointment

In accordance with the provisions of Secfion 152 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014
(including any statutory medification(s) or re-enactmeant{s}
thereef for the time being in force) and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Act and the Articles of Association of




the Company, Dr. Rashmi Kapoor, Whele Time Director (DIN:
01818323). is llable to retire by rotation at the ensuing AGM and
being eligible have offered hersell for re-appointment. The
Board of Directors recommends her re-appointment as Whole
Time Director of the Company, liable to retira by rotation.

The details of Director being recommended for reappaintment
as renuired under Secretarial Standard-2 (S5-2) is contained in
the accompanying Motice convening the ensuing Annual
General Mesting of the Company. Appropriate Resolution
saeking your approval to the re-appointment of Director are
alsoincluded in the Notice,

Appointment & Resignation of Non-Executive Directors

In terms of Section 1449, 150, 152 and 161 read with Schedule
IV and the Companies (Appointment and OQualification of
Directors) Rules, 2014, and other applicable provisions it any
(including any statutory modifications or re-enaciment thereot
for the time being in force), and in accordance of Anicles of
Association of the Company and based on the
recommendations of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, Mr. Rajiv Kumar Bakshi (DIM; GO264007) was
appointed as an Additional Director {Non-Executive &
Independent) on the Board of the Company w.ef. 31 May 2023
subject to the approval of members in the ensuing general
meeting.

Further, Ms. Tanushree Shyam Bagrodia has resigned from the
Directarship of the Company with effect from 8 May 2023 & Mr.
Arun Shrivastava has resigned from the Directorship of the
Company with effect from 10 August 2023,

Key Managerial Personnel

Ms. Ankita Gupta had resigned from the post of Company
Secretary of the Company w.e.f. 25 March 2023. Accordingly,
the Company on recommendation of the MNomination and
Remuneration Committes at its Board Meeting held on 31 May
2023 appointed Ms. Kriti Misra as Company Secratary of the
Company and she was also nominated as Key Managerial
Personneglin terms of Section 203 of the Companies Act 201 3.

Declaration by Directors

The Company has recelved the necessary declaration from
each Independent Director in accordance with Section 149(7)
of the Act, that they meet the criteria of independence as laid
outin Section 1428(6) of the Act.

In the opinion of the Board, there has been no change in the
circumstances which may affect their status as Independent
Directors of the Company and the Board is satisfied of the
integrity, experfise, and experience of all Independent Directors
on the Board. Mone of the Directors of the Company are
disqualified from being appointed as Directors as specified
under Section 164(1) and 164(2) of the Act read with Rule 14(1)
of the Cormpanies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors)
Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification{s} and/or re-
enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) or are debarred
or disqualified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") or any
other such statutony autharity.

All members of the Board and senior management have
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affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct for Board and
senior management for the financial year 2022-23.

Meetings of the Board

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on
Companybusiness policy and strategy apart from other Board
businesses. The Board/Committee Meetings are pre-
scheduled and a tentative annual calendar of the Board and
Committee Meetings is circulated to the Directors well in
advance to facilitate them to plan their schedule and to ensure
meaningful paricipation in the meetings. The nolice of
Board/Committee Meetings is given well in advance to all the
Directors. Tha Agenda of the BoardCommittes Meetings is set
by the Company Secretary in consultation with the Chairman
and Managing Directarof the Company.

During the financial year 2022-23, all the Board and Committes
meetings were conducted through audio visual means as per
the circulars! rules issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs
("MCA").  During financial year ended 31 March 2023, six
Board Meetings were held on 26 May 2022, 9 August 2022, 1
September 2022, 29 September 2022, 18 November 2022 and
21 February 2023. The maximum interval between any two
meetings did not exceed 120 days, as prescribed under the Act.

The details of attendanca of Directors at Board Meetings during
the financial year 2022-23 are reproduced below:

g | Names of Director(s) & Mumber | Mumber | % of
No,| Director idantification of of | Meeting
MNumber {DIN} Mestings |Meetings ﬁﬁﬂ;ﬂ
held  |attended | g0 year
1 | O Ah Knpoor (01448208 i 1 100
2 | O, Aashmi Kapoor (01813323) B 5 #3333
3 | M Anil Kumar Khamika {DOZ70032) B 2] Wk
4 | M. Ranindra Math Mohanly (TBRS550) & a Ly
5 | M A Sheivestave [0EG40882) 6 i 00
8 | Mr. Charies Anloe Janssen (0926867E) B 2 35333
7| Ms, Tamusnres Shyar Bagrodia (0ES65606) B 1 TEET
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Audit Committee

The Board has constituted a well-gualified Audit Committes.
The Company's Audit Committee comprises of Mr. Rabindra
Math Mohanty, Independent Director as the Chairman, Mr. Anil
Kumar Khemka, Independent Directar and Dr. Atul Kapoor,
Managing Director as members of the Committes. The
Committee performs the functions as enumerated in Section
177 of the Companias Act, 2013. The meeatings of Audit
Committee are also attended by other Directors, Chief
Financial Officer, Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditor as
special invitees. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary
to the Committee. The minules of each Audit Committes
mesating are placed in the next meeting of Board and Audit
Committes.

The Audit Committes met five times during the financial year
2022-23 on 26 May 2022, 9 August 2022, 1 September 2022,
18 November 2022 and 21 February 2023. The composition of
Audit Committes of the Board of Directors along with the datails
of the meetings held and attended by the members of the
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Committes during financial year 2022-23 is detailed balow:

3. | Name of the Designation | Numier of | Number of | % of

Mo Member Maslings Meatings Mestings
hald Atteridad Atbarsidocd

1 |Mr, Rabndra Hath Mahanky | Chainman 5§ & 100

2 | De Al Kageor Mermbaer 4 5 100

3 | Mr Anil Kumar Khamks Membar i 5 190

Nomination and Remuneration Committes

In adherence of Section 178(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the
EBoard of Directors had approved a policy on Directors’
appointment and remuneration including criteria  for
determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of
a Director and other matters provided w's 178(3), based on the
recommendations of the MNomination and Remuneration
Committee. The broad parameters covered under the Policy
are Company Philosophy and Frinciples on Momination and
Remuneration of Directors, Nomination and Remuneration of
the Key Managerial Personnel {Other than Managing’ Whole-
time Directors), Key-Executives and Senior Management.

The main features of the Policy are as follows -
Objective

Definitions

Hole of Committes

Appointment criteria and qualifications
Term /Tenure

Evaluation

Removal & Retiremeant

Remuneration to Wholetime / Executive /! Managing
Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel

Remuneration to Mon- Executive /Independent Director
10. Freguency of Mestings

11. Committee Members Interest

12. Momination and Remuneration Duties

e I S L

9,

The MNomination and Remuneration Committege was re-
constituted and Mr. Arun Shrivastava, Independent Mon-
Executive Diractor, was appointed as a member of Nomination
and Remuneration Commitiee w.e.f. 31 May 2023 in place of
Ms, Tanushree Shyam Bagrodia, who ceased to be member of
Momination and Remuneration Committee upon her
resignation as a Director of the Company w.e.l. 8 May 2023.
However, Mr. Arun Shrivastava also resigned from the Board of
Regency Hospital Limited w.e.f. 10 August 2023,

The Company's Nomination and Remuneration Policy is
enclosed to this Board's Heport as an Annexure A.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

During the financial year 2022-23, the Company has spent
T 232 Mn towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
expenditure, after taking set-off of excess CSH spends of 0.6
Mn made by the Company in pravious financial yaars in terms
of the CSA annual action plan approved by the CSR Committee
and the Board of Directors, from time to time. The Annual

28

Annual Report 2022-23

Report on CSR activities, in terms of Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Corporate Social
Respansibility Policy) Rules, 2014 ("CSR Rules") is set out in
Annexure B to this Report.

The CSR policy is available on the website of Company at
http:{fregencyhealthcare.in/wp-content/upleads/Corporate-
Social-Responsibility-Policy. pdf.

The CBR Policy outlines its Company's CSA initiatives which
are implemented through its CSR arm/ trust Le. Amrita
Charitable Trust, which focuses on Special Education,
Psychological Evaluation and Intervention, Occupational
therapy, Physiotherapy and Speech Therapy. As per the
aforesaid Policy, RHL shall undertake CSR activities as
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") read with
Schedule Vil of the Act.

The CSR Committee confirms that the implementation and
monitering of the CSA Policy was done in compliance with the
CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.

Performance Evaluation

In terms of the requirement of the Act, an annual performance
evaluation of the Board was undertaken which included the
evaluation of the Board as a whole and peer evaluation of the
Directors, The criteria for performance evaluation cover the
areas relevant 1o the functioning of the Board such as ils
composition and operations, Board as whole and group
dynamics, oversight and effeckveness, parformance, skills and
structure etc. The performance of individual Directors was
evaluated on the parameters such as preparation,
participation, flow of information, conduct, independsant
judgement, and effectiveness. The performance evaluation of
Independent Directors was done by the entire Board of
Directors and in the evaluation of the Directors, the Directors
being evaluated had not participated. As an outcome of the
evaluation, it was noled that Board as a whole has a
composition that is diverse in experience, skills, expartisea,
competence, gender balance, and fosters lively, free
expression and constructive debates, The discussion guality is
robust, well intended and leads to clear direction and decision.

Directors' Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to Section 134{3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Directors to the best of their knowledge hereby state and
confirm that:

(&) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable
accounting standards had been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures;

(b} The Directors had selectad such accounting policies and
applied them consistently and made judgments and
eslimates that are reasonable and prudent 5o as to give a

true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at




the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the
Company for that period;

(c) The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding
the asseis of the Company and for preventing and

detecting fraud and other irregularities;

{d) The Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a

going concern basis;

The Directors, had laid down internal financial controls to
be followed by the Company and that such internal
financial controls are adequate and were operating
effectively; and

()

iff The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and
that such systems were adeqguate and operating

effectively.

Related Party Transactions

The Company follows robust internal processes before
entering fransactions with related parties and the
considerations which govern the transactions with related
parties are the same as those applicable for other vendaors of
the Company. All the transactions are undertaken for the
benefit of the Company and in compliance with the applicable
laws.

As a part of the Company’s annual planning process, befare the
beginning of a financial year, details of all transactions
proposed 1o be executed with related parties, including
estimated amount of franzactions to be executed, mannear of
determination of pricing and commercial terms, etc. are
presented to the Audit Committee for its consideration and
approval, The details of said transactions are also placed
before the Board of Directors for their information. The Board
members interested in a transaction do not participate in the
discussion of the itern wherain that item is being considerad.
Further approval is sought during the year for any new
transaction/modification to the previously approve limits/terms
of contracts with the related parties.

Al contracts/arrangementsfransactions entered into by the
Company during the year under review with related parties
were in the ordinary course of business and en amm's length
basis interms of provisions of the Act.

The Company had no materially significant related party
transaction, which is considered to have potential conflict with
the interests of the Company at large. However, details of
Related Party Transactions undertaken by the Company are
disclosed in Form ADC-2 which is attached as an Annexure C
tothis Heport.
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The Board of Directors of the Company has on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee, adopted a palicy to
regulate fransactions between the Company and its Related
Parties, in compliance with the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder. This Policy
was considered and approved by the Board and has been
uploaded on the website of the Company at
http://regencyhealthcare.infwp-content/uploads/Related-
Party-Transactions-Policy.pdf.

Risk Management

The Company recognises that risk is an integral and inevitable
part of business and is fully committed to manage the risks ina
proactive and efficient manner. The Company has a disciplined
process for continuously assessing risks, in the internal and
external environment along with minimising the impact of risks.
The chjective of Risk Management process in the Company is
to enable value creation in an uncertain environment, promots
good governance, address stakeholder expectations
proactively and improve organisational resillence and
sustainable growth.

The Company has in place a Risk Management Policy which
articulates the approach to address the uncerainties in its
endeavour to achieve its stated and implicit objectives. The
Risk Management Committee of the Company has been
entrusted by the Board with the responsibility of reviewing the
risk managemeant process in the Company and to ensure that
key strategic and business risks are identified and addressed
by the managament.

The Company periodically reviews and improves the adsquacy
and effectiveness of its risk management systems considering
rapidly changing business environment and evolving
complexitias. The Company, through the Risk Management
procass, aims o contain the risk within the nsk appatita. There
are no risks which in the opinion of the Board may threaten the
existenca of the Company. The detailed Risk Management
Policy of the Company is available at
hitp://regencyhealthcare.in/wp-content/uploads/Risk-
Maragerment-Policy.pdf.

Loans, Guarantees and Investments

Details of loans, guarantees and investments coverad under
the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules,
2014, as on 31 March 2023, are set out In Notes 10 and 16 of
the standalone financial statements.

Deposits

Dwring the year under review, your Company has neither
invited nor accepted any deposits from the public, in terms of
Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014 and any provisions of the
said Section are not applicable to your Company.




Annual Return

In terms of Section 22(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule
12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules,
2014, the Annual Return of the Company as on 31 March, 2023
is available on the website of the Company at
hitpsyiregencyhealthcare.in/investor-relations).

Share Capital

During the financial year 2022-23, there was an increase in the
Authorised Share Capital of the Company which was approved
by the Shareholders at the Extra Crdinary General Meeting
convenead on 21 March 2023,

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company was increased
to T 205,00,00,000 (Rupees Two Hundrad Five Crores only)
divided Into 550,000,000 (Five Crores Fifty Lakhs) Equity
Shares of $10 each and 150000000 (Fifteen Crores)
Preference Shares of T 10 each from the existing
¥55,00,00,000 (Rupess Fifty Five Crores) only divided into
5,50,00,000 (Five Crore Fifty Lakhs) Equity Shares of 10
each, Other than this there was no change in the issuead,
subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Company.

Human Resource Management and related disclosures

Our employees are our most important assels. We are
committed to hiring and retaining the best talent. For this, we
focus on promoting a collaborative, transparent and
participative organization culture, and rewarding merit and
sustained high performance. Qur human resources
managemeant focuses on allowing our employess to develop
their skills, grow in their caresr and navigate their next. Your
Company has established an organization structure that s
aglle and focused on delivering business results. With regular
communication and sustained efforts, it is ensuring that
employees are aligned on commen objectives and have the
right information on business evolution. Your Company
strongly believes in fostering a culture of trust and mutual
respect in all its employees and seeks to ensure that Regency
values and principles are understood by all.

Auditors and Auditor's Report

Statutory Auditors

Walker Chandiok & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants, (Firm
registration no. 001076M/NS00013) was appointed as
Statutory Auditars of the Company in the 31st Annual General
Meeting held on 20 November, 2020 forthe second term of five
(5) years from the conclusion of the AGM till the conclusion of
J6th AGM to be held in the year 2025 as required under Section
139 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, The Statutory Auditors have
confirmed that they satisfy the independence criteria as
required undear the Act they are not disqualified from being re-
appointed as Auditors of the Company,

The Report given by Walker Chandick & Co LLP, Chartered
Accountants on the Financial Statements of the Company for
the year 2023 is part of the Annual Report. The Notes on
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financial statement referred to in the Auditor's Report are self-
explanatory and do not call for any further comments. There
has been no gualification, reservation, adverse remark or
disclaimer given by the Auditors in their Report. During the year
under review, the Audifors had not reported any matter under
Section 143 (12) of the Act, therefore no detail is required to be
disclosed under Section 134 (3) {ca) of the Act,

Cost Accounts and Cost Auditors

The Company has maintained cost records as spacified by the
Central Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the
Act. Mr. Rishi Mohan Bansal, Cost Accountant, Kanpur
iMembership Mo. 3323) carred out the cost audit of the
Company for the financial year 2022-23.

The Board of Directors of the Company, on the
recommendation made by the Audit Committee, have
appointed Mr. Rishi Mohan Bansal, Cost Accountant, Kanpur
(Membership Mo. 3323) as the Cost Auditors of the Company o
conduct the audit of cost records of applicable products for the
financial year 2022-23.The Company has received their written
consent that the appeointment is in accordance with the
applicable provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder.
The Cost Auditors have confirmed that they are not disqualified
to be appointed as the Cost Auditors of the Company for the
financial year ending 2022-23. The Cost Audit Report for the
financial year 2021-22 has bean filed with the Central
Government within the stipulated fime on 14 September 2022,
During the year under review, the Cost Auditors had not
reported any matter under Section 134 (3) (ca) of the act,

The remuneration proposed to be paid to the Cost Auditor,
subject to ratification by the Members of the Company at the
ensuing 34th AGM, shall be 30,000/~ (Rupess Thiry
Thousand only) excluding taxes and out of pocket expenses, if
any.

Secretarial Auditors and Secretarial Standards

The Secretaral Audit was carried out by M/s. SKS & Co.,
Company Secretaries for the financial year ended 31 March
2023. The report given by the Secretarial Auditors is annexed
as Annexure D and forms an integral pan of this Report. The
Secretarial Audit Report was self-explanatory and does not call
for any turther comments. The Secretarial Audit Report does
not contain any qualification, reservation, advarse remark or
disclaimer.

In terms of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors appointed M/s.
SKS & Co., Company Secretaries as the Secretarial Auditors of
the Company in relation to the financial year ending 31 March
2023, The Company has received their written consant that the
appaintment is in accordance with the applicable provisions of
the Act and rules framed thereunder. During the year under
review, the Secretarial Auditors had not reported any matter
under Section 143 (12) of the Act, therefore no detail is required
o be disclosed under Section 134 (3) (ca) of the Act.




The Company has complied with all the applicable provisions of
Secretarial Standard on Mestings of Board of Directors (S5-1),
Revised Secratarial Standard on General Meetings (35-2) and
Secratarial Standard on Report of the Board of Diractors (55-4)
raspectively issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of
India,

Internal Auditors

The Company has in place a robust Intzrnal Auwdlt function. In
accordance with the provisions of Section 138 of Companies
Act, 2013, read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, your
Company had appointed S M A M & Co., Chartered
Accountants, as an Internal Auditors of the Company for the
period of two years commeancing from 1 July 2022 to 30 June
2024 inits Board Meeting dated 26 May 2022,

However, S M A M & Co., Chartered Accountants has tenderad
their resignation w.el 23 May 2023 and Company has
appointed BDO India LLP, Chartersd Accountanis, as an
Internal Auditors of the Company for the period a one year
commencing from 1 April 2023 to 31 March 2024,

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent

M/s Skyline Financial Services Private Limited shall continue to
actasthe Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company.

Vigil Mechanism

The Company has a Vigil Mechanism that provides a formal
channel for all s Directors, employees and business
associates including customers to approach the Chairman of
the Audit Committee and make protected disclosures about
any unathical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation
of the Regency's Code of Conduct. Mo person is denled access
to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Vigil Mechanism
in the Company fosters a culture of trust and transparancy
among all its stakeholdears,

The Company promotes ethical behaviour in all its business
activities. The Company has a robust vigil mechanism through
its Whistle Blower Policy which is in compliance with the
provisions of Section 177(10) of the Companies Act, 2013,

The Whistle Blower Policy has been appropriately
communicated within the Company and is available on the
website of the Company at http:/regencyhealthcare.infwp-
content/uploads/\Whistle-Blowear-Policy.pdi. The Whistla
Blower Policy aims to;

a. allow and encourage stakeholders to bring to the
managemeant's notice concams about unethical behaviour
actual or suspected fraud or viclation of the Company’s
code of conduct.

b. ensuretimely and consistent organisational response,

c. buildand strengthen a culture of transparency and trust.

d. provide protection against victimisation,

Internal Financial Controls and their adequacy
The Board has adopted policies and procedures for ansuring
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the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence fo the Company's policies, safeguarding of its
assets, prevention and detection of fraud, error-reporting
mechanisms, accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records.

The Company has designed and implemented the
comprehensive Intermal Financial Controls System  ower
financial reporting to ensure that all transactions are
authorised, recorded and reported comectiy in a timely manner.
The Company's Internal Financial Controls over financial
reporing provides reasonable assurance over the integrity and
refiability of financial statements of the Company.

Periodical programs of Internal Audits are planned and
conducted which are also aligned with business objectives of
the Company. The meetings with Internal Auditors at Board
level are conducted wherein the status of audits and
management reviews are informed to the Board.

The Company actively tracks all changes in Acecounting
Standards, the Act and other related regulations and makes
changes to tha undarlying systems, processas and financial
controls to ensure adherence tothe same.

The Company uses an established SAP ERP HANA 4 System
to record day to day transactions for accounting and financial
reporting. The SAP system s configured to ensure that all
transactions are integrated seamlessly with the undariine
books of accounts, which helps in obtaining accurate and
complete accounting records and timely preparation of reliable
financial disclosures.

Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and
Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

Information reguired under Saction 134(3)(m) of the Act read
with Rule & of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, for the
financial year ended 31 March 2023, in refation to the
consenvation of energy, technology absorption, foreign
exchange earnings and out go is annexed as Annexure E and
forms an integral part of this Report.

Policy on prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace
As per the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women
at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013 ("Prevention of Sexual Harassment Act"), the Company
has formulated a Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment at
Workplace for prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual
harassment at workplace and an Intemal Complaints
Committee ("ICC") has also been set up to redress any such
complaints received. The constitution of ICC is as per the
provisions of POSH and includes extemnal Members from NGO
orthosa individuals having relevant experience.

The Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment
at the workplace and Is committed to providing a safe and
conducive work environment to all its employees viz.




permanent, contractual, temporary, trainess and associates
and any person visiting the Company atits office.

All employees are committed to ensure that they work in an
environment that not only promotes divarsity and equality but
also mutual trust, equal opportuniy and respect for human
rights. The Company periodically conducts sessions for
employees across the organisation to build awarensss about
the Policy and the provisions of Prevention of Sexual
Harassment Act.

The Committes meets on quarterly basis and as & when
required and provides a platform for female employees for
registration of concerns and complaints. if any.

During the year under Review i.e. 2022-23 gight (8) meatings
wera held across all Centres of the Company to discuss on
strengthening the safety of employees at the workplace. In
addition, the awareness about the Policy and the provisions of
Prevention of Sexual Harassment Act are also contained in
Employee Handbooks and communication regarding the
Policy forms an integral part of Induction Programs imparted to
personnel of the Company. During the year under review, no
complaints/cases were received by Company or required to be
referred to |CC.

Capacity Expansions

The Company continued to invast in expansion of its healthcare
facilities to fuel its next phase of growth, accordingly during the
year under review the Company identified a land parcel in
Varanasi which is proposed for construction of multi- speciality
hospital wherein MOU has been axecuted for implamenting this
expansion. Further, the construction of Gorakhpur Hospital and
Super Speciality Hospital in the acquired land which is adjacent
1o flagship hospital of the Company is in full swing.

Liquidity

Our principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents
and the cash flow that we generate from cur oparations. We
continue to maintain sufficient cash to meet our strategic and
operaficnal requirements. Liguidity enables us to be agile and
ready for meeting unforeseen strategic and business needs
and apportunities.

Material Changes affecting the Company

There were no materal changes and commitmants affacting
the financial position of the Company which had occurred
betwean the end of financial year and the date of the Report
which had affectad the going concern status of the Company.

Changeinthe Nature of Buginess
During the financial year ended 31 March 2023, there was no
change in the nature of business of tha Company.

Statement on Investor Education and Protection Fund
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 of the Act, Investor
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Education and Protection Fund Authority {Accounting, Audit,
Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 ("IEFPF Rules") read with the
relevant circulars and amendments thereto, the amount of
dividend remaining unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven
yaars from the due date is required to be transfarred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund ("|IEPF"), constituted
by the Central Government. During the year under raview, no
amount was due for transfer to IEPF.

Details of Significant and Material Orders, if any

There are no significant and material orders passed by the
Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concem
status and the Company's operations in futura.

Dther Disclosures

i.  No application has been made undear the Insolvency and
Bankruptey Code; hence the requirement to disclose the
details of application made or any procesding pending
under the Insolvency and Bankruptey Code, 2016 (31 of
2016} during the year along with their status as at the end
of the financial year is not applicable; and

The reguirement to disclose the details of difference
between amount of the valuation done at the fime of
onetime settlement and the valuation done while taking
loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions along with the
reasons thereof, is not applicable.

Appreciations

Wa thank our customers, vendors, dealers, investors, business
associates and bankers for their continued support during the
yvear. We place on recard our appreciation for the contribution
made by our employees at ali lavels. Our consistent growth was
made possible by their hard work, solidarity, cooperation and
suppart.

Your Company has been able to operate efficiently because of
the culture of professionalism, creativity, integrity and
continuous Improvement in all functions and areas of its
operations as well as the efficient utilization of your Company's
resolrces for sustainable and profitable growth.

The Board conveys deep sense of appreciation towards
contributions made by every member of Regency Family during
the year and expresses a heartfelt thanks and gratefulness to
its Private Eguity Investors for their continued support and
patronage throughout the year.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Date : 15 September 2023 Atul Kapoor
Place : Kanpur Chairman and Managing Director
DIMN: 1449229
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Annexure A - Nomination and Remuneration Policy

1. OBJECTIVE

The Momination and Remuneration Committea and this Policy
shall be in compliance with Section 178 of the Companies Act,
2013 read along with the applicable rules thereto. The Key
Ohbjectives ofthe Committes would be:

1.1. To guide the Board in relation to appointment and removal
of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior
Management.

1.2. To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board
and provide necessary report o the Board for further
evaluation of the Board.

To recommend to the Board on Remuneration payable 1o
the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior
Management.

To provide to Key Managsral Personnel and Senior
Management reward linked directly to their effon,
performance, dedication and achievement relating to the
Company's oparations.

To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long
term sustainability of talenfed managerial persons and
create compatitive advantage.

1.3,

1.4,

1.5.

1.6.

1.7. To develop a succession plan for the Board and to regularly
review the plan.

To devise a policy on Board diversity.

2.
21.

DEFINITIONS

Act means the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed
thereunder. as amended from time to time.

2.2. Board means Board of Directors of the Company.
2.3
2.4.

Directors mean Directors of the Company.
Key Managerial Personnel means

2.4.1. Chief Executive Officer or tha Managing Director or tha
Manager,

2.4.2_Whole-time Director;

2.4.3. Chief Financial Officer;

2.4.4. Company Secretary; and

2.4.5. such other officer as may be prescribed.,

2.5. Senior Managamant means personnel of the Company
who are members of its core management team excluding
the Board of Directors including Functional Heads.

3. ROLE OF COMMITTEE

3.1, Matters to be dealt with, perused and recommended to
the Board by the MNomination and Remuneration

Committea
The Committee shall:
3.1.1. Formulate the criteria for determining gqualifications,
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positive attributes and independence of a Director.

3.1.2. Identify persons who are qualified to become Director
and persons who may be appointed in Key Managerial and
Senior Management positions in accordance with the
criteria laid down In this policy.

3.1.3. Recommend to the Board, appointment and ramaval of
Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel.

3.2. Policy 1 i I | of D KMP
and Senior Management

3.2.1. Appointment eriteria and qualifications:

a) The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity,
gualification, experntise and experience of the person for
appaintment as Director, KMP or at Senior Management
level and recommend to the Board his/her appointment.

A person should possess adequate gualification, expertise
and experience for the position he / she is considered for
appointment. The Committee has discretion to decide
whether gualification, expertisa and experience
possessed by a person is sufficient / satisfactory for the
concermad position.

b)

The Company shall not appoint or continue the
amployment of any person as Whole Time Director who
has attained the age of seventy years. Provided that the
term of the person holding this position may be exiended
beyond the age of seventy years with the approval of
shareholders by passing a special resolution based on the
explanatory statement annexed to the notice for such
maotion indicating the justification for extension of
appaintment beyond seventy years.

3.2.2. Term/ Tenure:

Managing Director/Whole-time Director; The Company
shall appoint or re-appoint any persan as its Executive
Chairman, Managing Director or Executive Director for a
term not exceeding live years al atime, No re-appointment
shall be made earlier than one year before the expiry of
term.

Independeant Director; An Independent Director shall hold
office tor a term up to five consecutive years on the Board
of the Company and will be eligible for re-appointment on
passing of a special resolution by the Company and
disclosure of such appointment in the Board's repart. - No
Independent Director shall held office for more than two
consecutive terms, but such Independent Director shall be
eligible for appointment after expiry of three years of
ceasing to become an Independent Director. Provided that
an Indepandent Director shall not, during the said period of
three years, be appointed in or be associated with the
Company in any other capacity, either directly or indiractly.
However, if a person who has already served as an
Independent Director for 5 years or more in the Company
as on October 1, 2014 or such other date as may be

a)

b}




determined by the Committee as per regulatory
reguirement; hel she shall be eligible for appointment for
one more term of 5 years only. - At the time of appointment
of Independent Director it should be ensured that number
of Boards on which such Independent Director serves is
restricted to seven Listed Companies as an Independent
Director and three Listed Companies as an Indepandent
Director in case such person is serving as a Whole-tima
Director of a Listed Company o such other number as
may be prescribed under the Act

3.2.3. Evaluation:

The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance
of every Director, KMP and Senior Management
Personnel at regularinterval (yearly).

3.2.4. Removal:

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentionad In the
Act or under any other applicable Act, rules and
regulations thereunder, the Committee may recommend
to the Board with reasons recordad in writing, remaoval of a
Director, KMP or Senior Management Personnel subject
to the provisions and compliance of the said Act, rules and
regulations.

3.2.5. Retirement:

Tha Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel
shall retire as per the applicable provisions of the Act and
the prevalling policy of the Company. The Board will have
the discretion to retain the Director, KMP, Senior
Management Personnel in the same position/
remuneration or otherwise even after altaining the
retirement age, for the benefit of the Company.

3.3. Policy relating to the Remuneration for the Whole-time
Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel

3.3.1. General:

a) The remuneration/ compensation / commission etc. to the
Whole-time Director, KMP and Seniocr Management
Personnel will be determined by the Commitiee and
recommended to the Board for approval. The
remuneration [ compansation / commission etc. shall be
subject to the prior/post approval of the Shareholders of
the Company and Central Government, wherever
raquired, b) The remuneration and commission to be paid
to the Whaole-time Director shall be in accordance with the
percentage ! slabs / conditions laid down in the Articles of
Aszsociation of the Company and as per the provisions of
the Act c) Increments to the existing remuneration/
compensation structure may be recommended by the
Committes to the Board which should be within the slabs
approved by the Shareholders in the case of Whola-time
Director. d) Where any insurance is taken by the Company
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on behall of its Whole-time Director, Chiel Executive
Officer, Chief Financial Officer, the Company Secretary
and any other employees for indemnifying them against
any liability, the premium paid on such insurance shall not
be treated as part of the remuneration payabla to any such
personnal, Provided that if such person is proved fo be
quilty, the pramium paid on such insurance shall be treated
aspart of the remuneration.

3.3.2. Remuneration to Whole<time / Executive / Managing
Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel:

a) Fixed pay:

The Whole-time Director! KMP and Senior Management
Personnel shall be eligible for a monthly remuneration as
may be approved by the Board on the recommendation of
the Committes. The breakup of the pay scale and guantum
of perquisites including, employer's Contribution to PF,
pension schame, madical expanses, club faes etc. shall
be decided and approved by the Board' the Person
authorized by the Board on the recommendation of the
Committee and approved by the Shareholders and
Central Government, wheraver required.

b) Minimum Remuneration:

If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its
profits are inadequate, the Company shall pay
remuneration to itz Whole-time Director In accordance
with the provisions of Schadule V of the Act and if it is not
able to comply with such provisions, with the previous
approval of the Central Government.

c) Provisions for excess remuneration:

If any Whole-time Director draws or receives, directly or
indirectly by way of remuneration any such sums in axcess
of the limits prescrbed under the Act or without the prior
sanction of the Central Government, where required, he /
she shall refund such sums to the Company and until such
sum is refunded, hold it In trust for the Company. The
Company shall not waive recovery of such sum refundable
to it unless parmitted by the Central Government.

3.3.3. Remuneration to MNon- Executive / Independent
Director:

a) Remuneration/Commission:

The remuneration { commission shall be fixed as par the
slabs and conditions mentioned in the Adicles of
Association of the Company and the Act.

b) Sitting Fees:

Tha Non- Executive / Indepandent Diractor may receive




c)

d)

4.2

4.3

4.4

5.2

5.3

5.4

remuneration by way of fees for attending meetings of
Board or Committee thereof. Provided that the amount of
such fees shall not exceed T One Lac per meeting of the
Board or Committee or such amount as may be prescribad
by the Central Govemment from time to timea.

Commission:

Commission may be paid within the monetary limit
approved by shareholders, subject to the limit not
exceading 1% of the profits of the Company computed as
perthe applicable provisions of the Act.

Stock Options:

An Independent Director shall not be entitled to any stock
option of the Company.

MEMBERSHIP

The Committee shall consist of a minimum 3 MNon-
Exacutive Directors, majority of them being Independent.

Minimum three (2} members shall constitute a quorum for
the Committes meeting.

Membarship of the Committee shall ba disclosed in the
Annual Report.

Tarm of the Committea shall be continued unless
terminated by the Board of Directors.

CHAIRPERSON

Chairperson of the Committes shall be an Independent
Diractor.

Chairperson of the Company may be appointed as a
mamber of the Committee but shall not be a Chaimman of
the Committee,

In the absence of the Chairperson, the members of the
Committee present at the meeting shall choose one
amongstthem to act as Chairparson,

Chairman of the MNomination and Remuneration
Committee meeting could be present at the Annual
General Meeating or may nominate some other member to
answer the Shareholders’ guernes,

FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS

The meeting of the Committes shall be held at such regular
intervals as may be required.

COMMITTEEMEMBERS' INTERESTS

A member of the Committes is not entitled to be present
when his or her own remuneration is discussed at a
meeting or when his or her performance is being
evaluated.
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7.2 The Commitiee may invite such executives, as it considers
appropriate, to be present at the meetings of the
Committee.

SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company shall act as
Secretary of the Committee.

VOTING

Matters arising for determination at Committee meetings
shall be decided by a majority of votes of Members present
and voting and any such decision shall for all purposes be
deemed a decision of the Committee,

In the case of equality of votes, the Chairman of the
meeting will have a casting vote.
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10. NOMINATION DUTIES

The duties of the Committee in relation to nomination
matters include:

10.1 Ensuring that there is an appropriate induction in place for
new Directors and members of Senior Management and
reniawing its effectivenass;

10.2 Ensuring that on appointment to the Board, Non-Executive
Directors receive a formal letter of appointment in
accordance with the Guidelines provided under the Act;

10.3 ldentifying and recommending Directors who are to be put
forward for retirerment by rotation;

10.4 Determining the appropriate size, diversity and
compaosition of the Board,;

10.5 Setling a formal and transparent procedure for selecting
new Directors for appointment to the Board;

10.6 Developing a succession plan for the Board and Senior
Management and regularly reviewing the plan;

10.7 Evaluating the performance of the Board members and
Senior Management in the context of the Company's
performance from business and compliance perspective;

10.8 Making recommendations to the Board conceming any
matters relating to the continuation in office of any Director
at any fima including the suspension or termination of
sarvice of an Executive Director as an employes of the
Company subject to the provision of the law and their
service contract,

10.9 Dalegating any of its powers to one or mora of its members
orthe Secretary of the Committes;

10,10 Recommaend any necessary changes to the Board; and

10.11 Considering any other matters, as may be requested by
the Board.

11. REMUNERATION DUTIES

The duties of the Committea in relation to remuneration
matters include:




11.1 to consider and determine the Remuneration Poficy,
based on the performance and also bearing in mind that
the remunaration is reasonable and sufficient to attract
retain and motivate members of the Board and such other
factors as the Committee shall deem appropriate all
elements of the remuneration of the membears of the
Board,

11.2 to approve the remuneration of the Senior Management
including Key Managerial Personnel of the Company
maintaining a balance between fixed and incentiva pay
reflecting short and long term performance objectives
appropriate to the warking of the Company.

11.3 10 delegate any of its powers to one or more of its membears
or the Secretary of the Committes.

11.4 to consider any other matters as may be requested by the
Board,

11.5 Protessional indemnity and liability insurance for Directors
and Senior Management,

12, MINUTES OF COMMITTEE MEETING

Froceedings of all meetings must be minuted and signed
by the Chairman of the Committee at the subsequent
mesting. Minutes of the Committee meetings will be tabled
atthe subsequent Board and Committee meeting.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Date : 15 September 2023 Atul Kapoor
Place : Kanpur Chairman and Managing Director
DIM: 01449229
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Annexure B - Annual Report on CSR Activities

3.

a,

[Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy) Rules, 2014]

Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company

Our CSR initiatives are guided by our CSR Policy. Regency Hospital Limited conducts its CSR activities through its CSR wing
“Amrita Charitable Trust", a non-profit organisation registered under Societies Registration Act, 1860, The Company's
efforts in society are focussed on the ambition of enabling healthiar and happier lives for individuals and families, on providing
sarvices to those children having delay in varnous areas of development like motor speech disordar, activities of daily fiving,
interpersonal skills, functional academics and vocational training.

Your Company's commitment to the society is sincera and longstanding. The CSR Policy of the Company is available on tha
website at (hitps:/regencyhealthcare.infinvestor-relations/). In accordance with the CSR philosophy of the Company &
specified activities under Schedule Y11 10 the Companies Act, 2013, the TSR activities of the Company covers following areas
viz, Special Education, Psychological Evaluation and Intervention, Occupational Therapy, Physiotherapy and Speech
Therapy.

Composition of CSR Committes

The CSR Committee of the Board is responsible for oversesing the execution of the Company's CSH Policy, The CSR
Committae comprises of Independent Director, Managing Director and Whole Time Director at the end of B Y, 2022-23 and the
detzils partaining to the same are tabulated as under.

5. No.| Name of Director Designation / Nature Number of Number of
of Directorship meetings of CSR meatings of
Committee held CSR Committee
during the year attended during
the year
1. Anil Kumar Khemka Independent Director, 1 1
Chairman of the Committee
2. Dr. Atul Kapoor Managing Director, 1 1
Mamber of the Committes
3. Cr. Rashmi Kapoor Whole Time Director, 1 1
tdember of the Committes

Web-link whare Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the Board are disclosed
on the website of the Company

httpefregencyhealthcare.infwp-content/uploads/Corporate-Social-Hesponsibility-Policy, paf,

Executive Summary along with the web-link of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-
rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable

Mot Applicable for the financial year 2022-23.

{a) Average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5): 7 14,10,73,278.52

{b) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5): T 28,21 466.00

{c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: Nil
{d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: ¥ 5,99 410.00

{e) Total CSA obligation for the financial year (b +c - d): ¥ 22 22 056.00

{a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project):  23.21,000.00
{b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil

{c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable

{d) Total amount spent for the financial year (a + b+ ¢): T 23,21,000.00
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(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year 2022-23:

Total Amount Unspent {in ¥)
Amount Total Amount transferred to Unspent Amount transferred to any fund specified
Spentforthe | CSR Account as per section 135(6) under Schedule VIl as per second proviso
financial to section 135(5)
year (inT)
Amount Date of transfer Name of the Fund | Amount Date of transfer
23,21,000.00 3
(f) Excess amount for set off, if any: Nil
5. No. Particular Amount (in )
(i} Twao percent of average net profit of the Company
as per Saction 135(5)
(ii) Tatal amount spent for the financial year
(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial yaar [{iij-{i)]
v} Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes
or activities of the previous financial years, if any
(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [{ii)-(iv)]
7. Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding threa financial years:
1 2 3 4 5 6 T 8
S. |Preceding Amount |Balance | Amount|Amount transferred] Amount
No |financial year(s)| transferred| Amount |spent in to any fund remaining to
to Unspent|in the specified under | be spent in
CSR Unspent |financial| Schedule VIl as per| succeeding |
Account |CSR year | second provisoto | financial |Deficiency,
under Account (in?) | Section 135(5), if | years (in ?) if any
Section under any
135 (6) Section
(in ) 135 (6)
{in T)
Amount | Date of
{in ¥) | Transfer
MIL
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8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through CSR amount spent in the financial year: Mo

9, Specify the reasoni(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per Section 135(5):
Mot Applicable

For and on behalf of CSR Committee

Atul Kapoor Anil Kumar Khemka
Managing Director Chairman C5R Committee
DIN: 01449229 DiM: 00270032

Date : 15 September 2023
Place : Kanpur
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Annexure C - Form AQC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014,

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties
referred to in Sub Section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm's length
transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.

Particulars

Z W
o

Details

Mame (s) of the related party & nature of relationship

Mature of contracts/arrangements/transaction

Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction including the value, if any

MNIL
lustification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions

Date of approval by the Board

Amount paid as advances, if any

Date on which the special resolution was passed in General meeting as required under first
proviso to Section 188

I mO|N|@| =

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Date ; 15 September 2023 Atul Kapoor
Place : Kanpur Chairman and Managing Director
DIN: 01445225
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2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.
| Name of Mature of Nature of Duration of Salient Terms of the Date of | Amount
the related | relationship | contracts/ contracts/ contracts/ approval| paid as
party arrangements/ | arrangements| arrangements/ by the advances
transaction transaction transactions including Board, if| if any
the value, if any any
| Atul Managing 1. Managerial 1. 3 years il 1. Board Resolution dated 25 il
Kapoor Director Remuneration | 31 March 3 Junae 2020 & | February
2023 Shareholder Resolution | 2022
dated 20 Movember 2020
for % 1.21,50,000
excluding benefits and
amenities
2. Availing 2 9years3 2 % 4020300 as Land
Lease service Meonthsw.ef. | Rent for the property
for land 1 Jan 2022 situated at A-2, Sarvodaya
MNagar, Kanpur
| Rashmi Whole Time | 1. Managenal 1. 3 years fill 1. Board Resolution dated | 25 Mil
Kapoor Director Remuneration 31 March 3 June 2020 & |February
2023 Shareholder  Resolution | 2022
dated 20 November 2020
for ¥ 52,40,000 excluding
benefits and amenifies
2. Availing 2,7 year 2. % 3900000 as Office
Lease service w.ef 1 Rent for the property
for land MNovember situated at 117/H-1/1157,
2020 Pandu Nagar, Kanpur
3. Doctor's fees | 3. 1 year 3 ¥ 18811090 as
Doctors fee for patient
cansultant
4. Share in 4. 1 year
Investigation 4 36,00,000 for
Charges Availing  services  for
Investigation charges.
| Arun 1. 1. 1 year 1. ¥ 13,899,998 as Salary 25 MNil
Kapoaor Remuneration for office or place of profit |February
as office or in Regency Institute of 2022
place of profit Mursing
2. Availing 2. Syears 3 2. % 4020300 as Land
Lease Service | Monthswef |Rent for the property
for land 1 Jan 2022 situated at A-2, Sarvodaya
Relative of Magar, Kanpur
Diractor
| Abhishek Jyearswef | ¥ 6468000 as Salary for |25 il
Kapoor 1 April 2020 office or place of profit February
Remuneration 2022
| as office or
| Jahnvi place of profit 1 year ¥ 18,00,000 as Salary for |25 Mil
Kapoor office or place of profit February
2022

41




EGENCY
r&l'ﬁﬁﬁ‘” Annual Report 2022-23

| Regency Associate 1. Leasing of 1 year 1. ¥ 7202889 Mn as |25 Mil
MNephrocare | Company Land & Building Rent for Leasing of Land |February
Put. Ltd. & Building situated at 2022
Renal, Swaroop Nagar,
Hanpur
2. Medical Fee 2. ¥ 83886009 for
Payable Availing Services of
kit'package for dialysis
| Sibling Purchase of 1 year T 54,0737 874 for |25 Mil
Lifacare Medicines Purchase of Medicines/ |February
Pyt Ltd Pharmacy 2022 &
15
Whally September
Owned 2023
|| Subsidiary
| Regency Rent 1 year T 42 87.500 Mn for rental | 25 Mil
Institute of services February
MNursing 2022

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Date : 15 September 2023 Atul Kapoor
Place : Kanpur Chairman and Managing Director
DIN: 01449229
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Form Mo. MR-3
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2023

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies Appointment and
Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

The Members

REGEMNCY HOSPITALLIMITED,

{CIN: U85110UP1987PLCO0BT42)

A-2 SARVODAYANAGAR KANPUR, ULP. 208005

Wa hava conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance
of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence fo
good corporate practices by Regency Hospital limited
(hereinafter called the "Company”). Secretanal Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing our opinion therean.

In our opinion as based on the information provided to us
by the Company its officers, agents and authorized
reprasentatives during the conduct of secretarial audit and
our verification of the books. papers, minute books, forms
and raturns filed and other records maintained and made
available to us by the Company. We hereby report that in
our opirion, the Company has, during the audit period
covering the linancial year ended on 31.03.2023 complied
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that
the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the
mannar and subject fo tha reporting made herainafier:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books,
forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
Fegency Hospital Limited (“the Company®) for the
financial year ended on 31.03.2023 according to the
provisions of;

The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made
theraundar,

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-
laws framed there under;

The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the
rules and regulations made  theresunder to the extent of
Foreign Direct Investment, Ovarseas Direct Investment
and External Commercial Borrowings;

Environmental Protection Act, 1986,

Indian Medical Council Act 1958;

Drug and Cosmetic Act, 1940 and Amendment Act, 1982;
Drugs and Cosmetic Rulas, 1945,
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The Pharmacy Act 1948, Blood Bank Regulations, Drugs
Control Act 1850, and other laws applicable on the
hospitals.

| further report that, having regard to the compliance
system pravailing in the Company and on examination of
relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, the
Company has complied with other Acts, Regulations,
Guidelines and Standards which are specifically
applicable on the operation of the businesses of the
Company.

We have also examined compliance with the Secretarial
Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries
of India.

During the period under review the Company has complied
with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines etc. mentionad above.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted
with proper balance of Executive Directors, MNon-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors,

Adequate notice is given ta all Directors to schedule the
Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda
were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system
exists for seeking and obtaining further Information and
clarifications on the agenda itemns before the mesting and
for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting
meambers’ views are captured and recorded as part of the
minutes; if any,

We further report that there are adequate system and
process in the Company commensurate with the size and
operation of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelinas,




We further report that during the Audit Period, the
Company has not undertaken any specific events! actions
that can have a bearing on the Company's compliance
rasponsibility In pursuance of the above referred Laws,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc.

FarSKS & COMPANY
Company Secretaries

Date: 15 September 2023
Place: Kanpur

(SURENDRAKLMAR SAHLY)

FCS 5182, C.P. No. 4040
Feer Review cedificate no. 1551/2021
UDIN : FOD5182EQ01022572

MNote: This Report is to be read with our letter of even date
which is annexed as Schadule- A and forms an integral
part of this Report.

44

Annual Report 2022-23
Schedule-A

The Members

REGEMCY HOSPITALLIMITED,

{CIN: U5 T10UP1898TPLCODBTSZ)
A-25ARVODAYAMAGAR KANPUR, U.P. 208005

Cur Report of even date is to be read along with this letter;
(i) Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of
the Management ot the Company. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on these secretarnial records
based onour audit,

(i) We have followed the audit practices and processes as
appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the
comectness of the contents of the secretarial records,
The verification was done on test basis to ensure that
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We
believe that the processes and practices, we followsd

provide a reasonable basis for our opinion,

We have not verified the compliance by the Gompany of
applicabie financial laws such as direct and indirect tax
laws and maintanance of financial records and books of
accounts since the same have been subject to review
by the statutory financial auvditors, tax auditors and
other designated protessionals.

{iif)

liv)  Tha status of compliance of other laws as listed in our
Repaort, wa relied upon the statement provided by the

Management,

(W) Wheraver required, we have obtained the Management
Representation about the compliance of laws, rules and
regulations and happening of evants, etc.

(wi) The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and
other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is
the responsibility of Management. Our examination
was limited to the verification of the same on test basis.
(viiy  The Secretarial Audit Feport is neither an assurance as
to the futura viability of the Company nor of the efiicacy
or effectivensss with which the Managemert has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

ForSKS & COMPANY
Company Secrelaries

Date: 15 Septembar 2023
Place: Kanpur

(SURENDRAKUMAR SAHLY)
FCS 5182, G.P. No. 4040
UDIN : FOOS5182E001022572
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Annexure E - Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Quigo
etc:

Information on conservation of Enargy, Technaology absorption,
Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo required 1o be disclosed
under Section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 201 3 read with
Rule B of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is provided
heraunder:

A

Conservation of Energy:

The cperations of your Company are not energy intensive,
however significant priarity and attention towards Energy
conservation is given at all levels. All efforts are made to
conserve and opfimize use of energy with continuous
monitoring, improvamant in maintenance and distribution
systems and through improved operational technigues.

The Company has reduced the internal energy
consumption through the following:

Replacemant of CFL lamps with led lights which helped to
achieve saving of electricity cost.

Phasing out of conventional AHU Blowers and replacing
them with EC Plug fans.

Installation of timers to regulate the AC units and switching
on alternate lights and corridors.

Contreliing usage of air conditioners in the non-occupied
arsas,

Design new buildings to match high efficiency standards
with respect to consumption of light and other snergy
resouUrces.

The Company constantly evaluates and invests in naw
technology to make the infrastructure more energy
efficient. As the costof energy forms a very small portion of
the total costs the financial implications of these measuras
are not maternial.

Technology absorption:

The efforts made towards technology absorption-
Updation of Technology is a continuous process,
absorption implemented and adapted by the Company for
innovation, Efforts are continuously made to implament
new machines requirad in the Healthcare Industry,

The benefits derived like product improvement, cost
reduction, product development or import
substitution- By the updated use of technology and new
machines, Company has been able to successfully retain
the patient's confidence with respect to its improved
treatment, Company is coupled with a team of gualified
Doctors and latest available diagnosis machines.
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In case of imported technology (imported during the
last three years reckoned from the beginning of the
financial year)-

Over the years, the Company has bought into the State of
U_P., the bestthat world has to offer in terms of technology.
In the continuous endeavour to serve the patient better and
to bring healthcare of intermational standards, your
Company has introduced |latest technology equipments in
its hospitals as:

128 Siice CT scan Machine

1.5 Tesla MRI Machine

PETCT Machine

True Beam Radiotherapy system

The expenditure incurred on HResearch and
Development - Research and Technology and innovation
continue to be one of the key focus area to drive growth. To
support this, Company avails services of gualiied and
experienced professionals / consultants. The
development work is carried by the concerned department
on an ongoing basis. The expenses and cost of assets are
grouped under the respective heads.

Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo-
the Actual Inflows: Mil
the Actual Outflows:

License Fees-

EURC

8,000

INR

7,10,400

Date : 15 September 2023
Place : Kanpur

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Atul Kapoor
Chairman and Managing Director
DIM: 01449229
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Regency Hospital Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial
statements of Regency Hospital Limited {'the
Company'), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31
March 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Othar Comprehansive Income), the Statemeant of Cash
Flow and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year
then ended, and notes to the standalone financial
statements, including a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act’) in the
manner so reguired and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the  Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind
AS") specified under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
and other accounting prnciples generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31
March 2023, and its profit (including other
comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes
in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted owur auwdit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of
the Act. Qur responsibiliies under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethice issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (1CGAIY)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled
ourother ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requiremants and the Code of Ethics. We believa that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis forour opinion,

Information other than the Financial Statements and
Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’'s Board of Directors are responsible for
the ather information. Other information dogs not include
the standalone financial statements and our auditors
repart thereon.

Cur opinion on the standalone financial statements does
rot cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the standalone financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
infarmation is materially iInconsistent with the standalone
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

The Annual Report is not made available to us at the date
of this auditor's report. We have nothing to repot in this
reqgard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged
with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The accompanying standalone financial statements
have been approved by the Company's Board of
Directors. The Company's Board of Directors are
responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect 1o the preparation and presentation of
these standalone financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income,
changes in eguity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133
of the Act and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other Irregularities;
salection and application of appropriate accounfing
policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adaquate intermal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completenass of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and ara free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparng the financial statements, the Board of
Directors are responsible for assessing the Comparny's
ability 1o continue as a going concern, disclasing. as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board
of Directors either intend fo liquidate the Company or to
cease operalions, or has no realistic alternative but to do
S0,

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for
overseeaing the Company's financial reporting process.




Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whathar the financial statements as a whole ara free from
material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or arror, and
to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, butis
not a guarantse that an audit conducted in accordance
with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material
misstatemeant when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or emor and are considerad matenal if,
individually orin the aggregate, they could reasonably ba
aexpectad o influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on
Auditing, specified under section 143{10) of the Act we
exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skapticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the rsks of material misstatemeant of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
deslgn and perform audit procedures responsive to those
nsks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulfing from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may invelve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misreprasentations, or the override of intemal control;

Obtain an understanding of intermal contral relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, under section 143(3)(i)
of the Act we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

Evaluate the approprateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management;

Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability fo
continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a
matarial uncertainly exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report 1o the related disclosures
in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor's report. Howewar, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concer,
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Evaluate the overall presentation, structura and confent
of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statemeants represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation;

Wae communicate with thosa charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during cur audit.

Reporton Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 197(16) of the Act based on our
audit, we report that the Company has paid remuneration
to its directors during the year in accordance with the
provisions of and limits laid down under section 197 read
with Schadule V to the Act.

As raquired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order,
2020 ('the Order) issued by the Central Govemmaent of
India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act we give in the
Annexure A a statemsnt on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

Further to our comments in Annexure A& as required by
saction 143(3) of the Act based on our audit, we report, {o
the extent applicable, that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the
accompanying standalone financial statements;

In our opinion, propar books of account as required by
law have bean kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books;

The standalone financial statements dealt with by this
report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial
statemants comply with Ind AS specified under section
133 ofthe Act,

On the basis of the written representations recaived from
the directors and taken on record by the Board of
Ciractors, nona of the directors is disqualified as on 31
March 2023 from being appeinted as a director in tems
of saction 164(2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements of the
Company as on 31 March 2023 and the cperating
effectiveness of such controls, refer o our separate
Report in Annexure B wharein we have expressed an
unmaodified opinion; and




a)

RESR

FHARZEE BA IPELIALITT

With respect to the other matters to be included in the
Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as
amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to
us:

The Company, as detailed in note 47 to the standalone
financial statements, has disclosed the iImpact of pending
litigation on itz financial posttion as at 31 March 2023;

The Company did not have any long4erm contracts
including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foresesable losses as at 31 March 2023;

There were no amounts which were required to be
transferred fo the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March
2023,

The management has representad that, to the best of its
knowledge and beliel, as disclosed in note 51(xil) to the
standalone financial statements, no funds have been
advanced or loanad or invested (either from borrowed
funds or securties premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the Company to or in any persons or entities,
including foreign entities ("the intermadiaries’), with the
understanding, whether recorded In writing or otherwise,
that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or enfities identified in any
manner whatscever by or on behalf of the Company ('the
Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf the Ultimate Benaficiaries:

The management has represented that, to the best of its
knowledge and beliel, as disclosed in note 51{xii) to the
standalone financial statements, no funds have been
received by the Company from any persons or anfitias,
including foreign entities (the Funding Parties’), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
('Ultimate Beneficlaries’) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
and

Based on such audit procedures performed as
considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the management
representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above
contain any matenal misstatemeant.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend
during the year ended 31 March 2023.
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Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 reguires all companies which use accounting
software for maintaining their books of account, to use
such an accounting software which has a featurs of audit
trail, with effect from the financial year beginning on 1
April 2023 and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11{g) of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as
amended} is not applicable for the current financial year,

ForWalker Chandiok & CoLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration MNo.: 001076N/MN500013

Rohit Arora

Partner

Membership Mo.: 504774
UDIM: 235047 74BGTGSGEET32

Place: Gurugram
Date: 15 September 2023




(i)

Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 12 of the
Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Regency Hospital Limited on the
standalone financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2023

Interms of the information and explanations sought by us
and given by the Company and the books of account and
records examined by us in the normal course of audit,
and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we report
that:

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing

(b)

(c)

full particulars, including quantitative details and situation
of property, plant and equipment and right of use assets.

{B) The Company has maintained proper records showing

full particulars of intangible assets.

Tha Company has a regular programme of physical
varification of its property, plant and egquipment and right
of use assets under which the assels are physically
verified In a phased manner over a period of three years,
which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the
zize of the Company and the nature of its assets. In
accordance with this programma, certain property, plant
and equipment and right of use assets were verified
during the year and no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.,

The title deeds of all the Immovable properties held by the
Company (other than properties where the Company is
the lassee and the lease agreements are duly exacutad
in favour of the lesses) disclosed in note 5 to the
standalona financial statements are held in the name of
the Company. For title deeds of immovable properties as
mentioned in the table below, which have been
mortgaged as security for loans or borrowings taken by
the Company, confirmations with respect to title of the
Company have been directly obtained by us from the
respective lendars.

{Amaount in INR millions)

Degeription
of property

Gross block
amaunt

Address of
Property

Land and Busding

A4, Satvdaya Nagsr Oncalogy
and Gastro Unit, Kanpur Nagar,
Uttar Pradesh {208005)

5063

Land and Busding

TITH0TK, Kakadeo, K-Block, B.ga
Scheme-1,

Hanpur- Utlar Pradesh

Land and Bugiding

13104 Block-C Schamea-Wil
Swarnop Magar, Kanpir (LB

5614

(d)

()

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and
Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible
assets during the year.

Mo proceedings have been initiated or are pending
against the Company for holding any benami property
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under the Prohibition of Benami Properly Transactions
Act, 1988 (as amended) and rules made thereunder.

The managament has conductad a physical verification
of inventory at reasonable intervals dunng the year,
except for kitlchen and other consumable items
aggregating to Rs. 8.81 milliens as at 31 March 2023,
which have not been wverfied during the year. No
discrepancias of 10% or more in the aggregate for each
class of inventory were noticed as compared to book
racords. However, in respect of inventories which ware
not physically verified we are unable to comment on the
discrepancies which could have arisen between physical
inventory and book records,

As disclosed in note 51(xiv) to the standalone financial
statements, the Company has been sanctioned a
working capital imit in excess of Rs 5 crore by banks
based on the security of current assets. The quarterly
statemeants, In respect of the working capital limits have
been filed by the Company with such banks and such
statements are in agreemeant with the books of account of
the Company for the respective periocds, which
wera/were not subject to audit/raview.

(a) The Company has provided advances in the nature of
loans and guarantee to Subsidiaries /Others during the
year as per details given below:

{Aamount in INH millions)
Particulars Guarantess | Securily | Loans | Advances
ey naluds
of loans

Agorogale amount pravidedigranted

during ihe year:

Sabaichiaras 7160 |
(rhers 4.00 |

Balance outRRNENG As &1 balance i

shoal data in mespac of above cases
Subiciarias 33 489
(Fhos 282 |

(b)

ic)

(d)

(&)

if}

In our opinion, and according to the information and
explanations given to us, guarantees provided and
terms and conditions of the grant of all advances in the
nature of loans and guarantees provided are, prima facie,
not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

The respect of advances in the nature of loans granted by
the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal has
been stipulated and the repayments/raceipts of principal
are regular. Further, no interest is receivable on such
advances in the nature of loans.

There is no overdue amount in respect of advances inthe
nature of loans granted to such other parties.

The Company has granted advances in the nature of
loans which had fallen dua during the year and were
repaid on or before the due date. Further, no fresh loans
were granted to any party to settle the overdue advances
in nature of loan.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in
the nature of loans, which are repayable on demand aor




(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(wii)
{a)

(b)

without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

In our opinion, and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has complied
with the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Actin
respect of lnans and investments made and guarantess
and security provided by it, as applicable.

In our opinlon, and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted
any deposits or there are no amounts which have been
deamed to ba deposits within the meaning of sections 73
to 76 of the Act and the Companies {Acceptance of
Deposits) Aules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly,
reporling under clause 3(v} of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

The Central Government has specified maintenance of
cost records under sub-saction (1) of section 148 of the
Act in respect of the products of the Company. We have
broadly reviewad the books of account maintained by the
Company pursuant to the Rules made by the Central
Government for the maintenance of cost records and are
of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts
and records have besn made and maintained. However,
we have not made a detziled examination of the cost
records with a view to detarmine whether they are
accurate or complete,

In our opinion, and according to the information and
explanations given to us, undisputed statutory dues
including goods and services tax, provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax,
sarvice tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added
tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as
applicable, have generally been regularly deposited with
the appropriate authorities by the Company, though there
have been slight delays in a few cases. Further, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were
outstanding at the year-end for a period of maore than six
maonths from the date they became payable,

According to the information and explanations glven to
us, there are no statutory dues referred in sub-clause (a)
which have not been deposited with the appropriate
authorities on account of any dispute except for the
following:

Mameg
of the

statute

ha.tum
of dues

Pariod to
which the
amount
relates

Forum
whera
dispute is
pending

Remarks.
if amy

Amaount
paid under
Protest
{Tmillion)

Gross
Amount
(Tmillion)

The

1961

income
Tax Act.

Income | 1.57 - MNA

ax

AY2020-21|Deputy
commissio
ner of
Income tax

Customs[Custom

Act 18962 fduty

1.82 Haon'bée
Allahiabad
High Court

3.85 1980-03 Pending
s diaposal
&t

Allahabad

High Cowrt
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(viil) According to the information and explanations given to us,

(i)
(@)

()

c)

(d)

(&)

{fy

()
(a)

()

()

no fransactions were surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 {43 of 1961) which have not been
praviously recorded in the books of accounts.

According to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has not defaulted In repayment of its
loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon
to any lender,

According to the information and explanations given to us
including confirmations received from banks! financial
institution and representation received from the
management of the Company, and on the basis of our
audit procedures, we report that the Company has not
been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or govermmant or any governmeant authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, money raised by way of term
loans were applied for the purposeas for which these were
obtained.

In our opinicn and according to the information and
explanations given to us, and on an overall examination
of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised
by the Company on short term basis have, prima facie,
not been utilised forlong term purposes.

According to the information and explanations given to us
and on an ovarall examination of the financial statements
of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds
from any entity or parson on account of or to maet the
obligations of its subsidiaries or associates.

According to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has not raised any loans during the vear
on the pledge of securties held in its subsidiaries or
associate companies,

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial
pubdic offer of further public offer (including debt
instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the informalion and explanations given to us
and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or (fully, partially
or optionally) converible debentures during the year
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3ix)(b) of the Order
iz not applicable tothe Company,

(a} To the best of our knowledge and according to the
information and explanations given o us, no fraud by the
Company or no material fraud on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the period covered by our
audit,




(D)

{c)

(xii)

{xiii)

{xiv)

(a}

(b)

(xv)

RESR

FHARZEE BA IPELIALITT

According to the information and explanations glven to us
including the representation made to us by the
management of the Company, no report under sub-
section 12 of section 143 of the Acthas been filed by the
auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the
Central Government for the period covered by our awdit.

According to the iInformation and explanations glven to us
including the repreésentation made to us by the
management of the Company, there are no whistle-
blowar complaints receivad by the Company during the
year,

The Company is not a Midhi Company and the Nidhi
Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3{xil) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, all transactions entered into by
the Company with the refated parties are in compliance
with sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable.
Further, the details of such related party transactions
have been disclosed in the standalone financial
statements, as requirad under Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind AS) 24, Helated Party Disclosures
specified in Companies {Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules 2015 as prescribed under section 133 of the Act

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has an internal
audit systemn as per the provisions of section 138 of the
Actwhich is commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

We have considered the reports issued by the Internal
Auditors of the Company till date for the perod under
audit,

According to the information and explanation given to us,
the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with its directors or persons connected with
its directors and accordingly, reporting under clause
3{xv) of the Order with respect fo compliance with the
provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to
the Company.

{xvi} The Company is not required to be registered under

(a)

section 45-14 of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,
Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi){a),(b) and (c)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

Based on the information and explanations given 1o us
and as reprasanted by the managemeant of the Company,
the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies
{Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) does not have any
CIC.
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{xvii) The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the

current financlal year as well as the immediately
preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors

[xix)

{0}
(a)

(b}

[}

during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(xviii) of the Orderis not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations givento us
and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and
expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the standalone financial statements, our
knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors and
management and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come
fo our attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report indicating that Company is not capable of meating
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheset as and
when they fall dug within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viabllity of the company. We
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantes nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the company as and when they fall
due,

According to the information and explanations given to
us, there are no unspent amounts towards Corporate
Social Responsibility pertaining to other than ongoing
projects as at end of the curent financial year
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3{xx)(a) of the Order
is notapplicable to the Company.

According fo the information and explanations given to
us, there are no unspent amounts towards Corporate
Social Responsibility pertaining to any ongoing project as
at end of the current financial year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not
applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial
statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment
has been included in respect of said clause under this
report.

For Walker Chandiok & CoLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Mo.: 0071076MN/NS00013

Rohit Arora

Partner

Membership Mo.: 504774
UDIN: 235047 74BGTGEGATI2
Place: Gurugram

Date: 15 Septermnber 2023




Annexure B

Independent Auditor’'s Report on the internal
financial controls with reference to the standalone
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section
3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the
Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of Regency Hospital Limited ('the Company’)
as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023, we have
audited the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company as atthat data.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged
with Governance for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of the Company's business, including adherence to the
Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assats, the
pravantion and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal
Financial Controls with Reference to Financial
Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company's internal financial controls with reference to
tinancial statements based on our audit. We conductad
our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
["WCANY prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to
the extent applicable to an audit of Internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements, and the
Guidance Mote on Audit of Intermal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting ('the Guidance Note') issued by
the ICAl Those Standards and the Guidance MNote
require that we comply with ethical reguirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate intemal financial
controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
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controls with reference to financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Qur audit of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements includes
obtaining an understanding of such internal financial
controls, assessing the risk that 2 matenal weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of intemal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depand on the
auditor's Judgement, Including the assessment of the
risks of matenal misstatemeant of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to financial statemeants .

with

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls

Reference to Financial Statements

A company's intemal financial controls with reference to
financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of standalone
financial statemeants for external purposeas in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s intemal financial controls with reference fo
financial statements Include those policlies and
proceduras that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary o permit
preparation of standalone financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevantion or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the standalons
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls
with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of intemal financial
controls with reference to financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of contrals, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not he detected. Also, projections
of any evaluation of the internal financial contrals with
reference to financial statements to fulure periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial contrals with
reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.
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Opinion

8.  Inouropinion, the Company has, in all material respects,
adequate infernal financial controls with raference to
financial statements and such controls were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2023, based on the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
ovar Financial Reporting issued by the Instifute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Charterad Accountants
Firm’'s Registration MNo.: 001 076MNS00013

Rohit Arora

Partner

Membearship Mo, 504774
LUDIN: 235047 T4BGTGSGATAZ

Place: Gurugram
Date: 15 September 2023
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Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023

{All amounts are in ¥ million, unless stated otherwise)

Notes As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
ASSETS
MNon-current assets
Froperty, plant and equipment ! 2.924.94 2.934.57
Right of use asseat 6 39827 413.50
Capital work-in-progress T 421.00 .79
Other intangible assets a8 12.78 9.09
Intangible assets under development g 6.32 6.67
Financial assets
Investments 10 153 15.31
Other Financial Assats 1 114.78 406.55
Income tax assets (net) 12 39.24 80.39
Other non-current assets 14 53.75 19.96
Total non-current assets 3,986.39 4.036.83
Current assets
Inventories 15 127.25 112.50
Financial asseis
Investments 16 3.21 271.26
Trade receivables 17 G26.04 208.33
Cash and cash equivalents 18 354.81 915.25
Other bank balances 19 38.89 0.88
Other financial assets 20 59.65 43,79
Other current assets 21 46.96 38.05
Total current assets 1,256.61 1,680.06
Total assets 5,243.00 5,716.69
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 22 140.43 140.43
Other equity 23 1,900.56 1,602,866
Total equity 2,040.99 1,743.29
Mon-current liabilities
Financial iahilities
Borrowings 24 1,328.63 1.4889.63
Lease liabilities 349.41 363.89
Other financial llabilities 25 2B.07 43.22
Deferrad tax abilities (net) 13 143.10 110.49
Total non-current liabilities 1.849.21 2,007.13
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 26 477.74 1,156.03
Leasa liabilities 69.12 69,49
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Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023
{All amounts are in ¥ million, unless stated otherwise)

Trade payables 27

{a) total cutstanding dues to micro and small enterprises 7.51 4.40

{b) total cutstanding dues of creditors other than micro and

small enterprises J27.66 273.00

Other financial labilities 28 243.66 254,34
Other current liabilities 29 221.21 188.02
Frovisions a0 5.90 21.19
Total current liabilities 1,352.80 1,966.47
Total liabilities 3,202.01 3,973.60
Total equity and liabilities 5,243.00 5,716.69
Summary of significant accounting policies 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statemeants.

Thiz is the Standalone Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandlok & CoLLP Faor andon behalf of the Board o Directars of
Chartered Accountamis Regency Hospital Limited

Fism's Regestraton Mo 001 076MMS00013

Rohit Arara Atul Kapoor RashmiKapoor
Parnes Managing Director Whale Time Dinsctar
Membership Mo: 504774 DiN: 01 a40z20 DHN- 1 818323
Rajesh Shroff Kriti Misra

Chiet Finanaial Officer Carmpany Sechetfary

Place : Gurugram Place : Kanpur Place : Kanpur
Date : 15 Saptember 2023 Date: 15Septembear 2023 [rate: 15 Septamber 2023
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Statement of Standalone Profit and Loss for the period ended 31 March 2023
(Al amounts are In T million, unless stated otherwise)

For the For the
Motes year ended year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Income
Revenue from operations kh 4,244 55 3,644.35
Other income 32 37.1 66,63
Total income 4,281.66 3,710.98
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 33 999.90 857.13
Employee benefit expenses 34 B73.76 554,04
Finance costs a5 188.57 186.74
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 36 28212 261.52
Other expenses 37 1,712.17 1.485.08
Total expenses 3,856.52 3.345.41
Profit before tax 425.14 365.57
Tax expense a8
Current tax 106.24 3602
Current tax relating to earlier year (6.34) !
Deferred tax 31.33 55.63
131.23 92.55
Profit for the year 293.1 273.02
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified fo profit or loss
Re-measurament (losses) on post
employment benefit obligations 5.07 {10.65)
Income tax relating to above items (1.28) 2.68
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year .79 (7.97)
Total comprehensive income for the year 287.69 265.05
Earnings per equity share
Basic a9 20.93 18.44
Dilutad 20.93 19.44

Summary of significant accounting policies 3
The accompanying notes lorm an integral part of these standalone financial statements
This is the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss reterred to in our report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & CoLLP Fer and an behall of the Board of Directors of
Charerad Accountants Regency Hospital Limited

Firm's Registration Mo, 001 STENNE00G13

HAohit Arora Atul Kapoor Rashmi Kapoor
Partner Managing Direcior Whala Time Director
Mambership Mo: 504774 D 01448225 DM OTETE32S
Rajesh Shrofi Kriti Misra

Chiet Financial Officar Company Secretary

Place: Gurugram Place : Kanpur Pl : Kanpur
Diate = 15 Saptember 2023 Date: 15Saptember 2023 Date: 15 September2023
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Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2023

{All amounts are in ¥ million, unless stated otherwise)

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

FPurchase of Property, plant and equipment {including
movement in capital work-in-progress, payable for capital
creditors and capital advances)

Froceeds from sale of property, plants and equipment
ROU related payments

Furchase of intangible assets

Intangibles under development

Purchase of currant investments

Froceeds from sale of current investments

Movement in Deposits

Interest recaived

Net cash (used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of principal component of lease obligation
Fayment of intarast on lease obligation

(Repayment)/ proceeds from shor-term borrowings (net)
Froceeds from loan taken

Repayment of principal component of borrowings

Interest Paid

Fund Raising Expenditure

Net cash (used in)generated from financing activities

Met increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
A. Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax 425.14 365.57

Adjustments for :
Other comprehensiva income 5.07 {10.65)
Depreciation and amortisation expensea 28212 261.52
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) 0.82 1.56
Finance cost 143.05 135.69
Imerest income {21.05) {39.19)
Profit on sale of mutual funds (1.08) (2.94)
Bad debts written off 94,78 53.43
Interast on lease liability 45.52 51.05
Operating profit before working capital changes 974.39 B16.00

Adjustments for :
{Increase) in inventories {14.75) (9.74)
{Increase) in trade receivables (422 .50) (127.78)
{Increase) in financial & other assets (25.01) (14.38)
Increase/idecrease) in trade payables 57.76 {46.99)
Increase in financial & other liabilities 69.21 114.15
Increase /(dacreasa) in provisions {15.30) 13.42
Movement in Loans 20,77 102.95
Cash generated from operations 915.57 B47.65
Income tax paid, net of refund {28.75) (26.03)

856.82

(556.08)
3.78
(1.52)
(5.84)
(6.32)
(325.08)
594,19
(37.53)
20.56

(313.84)

(72.78)
(45.52)
(26.62)
77.84
(890.40)
{148.34)

{1,103.82)

(560.64) |
91525 |

354.61

821.62

(274.44)
494

(0.08)
(1.70)
(284.38)
20.00
(0.03)
39.19

{496.48)

(68.50)
(51.08)
139.56
739.29
(164.20)
(132.97)

462.03

Ta8TAT
128.08

915.25
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Cash and cash equivalent above are comprise the
following : (refer note 18)
Balances with banks:

= in current accounts 81.12 905.33
Cash in hand 7.64 5.67
Tarm Deposits (with maturity up to 3 months) 265,85 4,25
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 354.61 815.25

Mote: The above Cash Flow Statement has besn prepared under the indirect method as satout in the applicable Indian Accounting Standard
[Indian Accounting Standard - 7 on “Statemant of Cash Flows" specilled undar saction 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act’) read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.]

Thiz s the Standalone Cash Flow Statement referred 1o in our report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & CoLLP Fee and an behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chanered Accountanis Regency Hospital Limited

Firm'e Registration Mo.: 00107 6k/N500013

Raohit Arara Atul Kapoor RashmiKapoor
Partras Maraging Director Whale Tirmse Director
Mambership Mo: 504774 CHM: 01448220 DiM: 01818523
Rajesh Shroff Kriti Misra

Ghigd Financial Cficer Campany Secretany

Place : Curugram Place : Kanpur Place : Kanpur
Date : 15 Saptember 2023 Date: 15Septembar 2023 Drate: 15 September 2023
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Regency Hospital Limited (Standalone)
Summeary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

1.

(ANl amounts in ¥ million, unless atherwise stated)

Corporate information

Regency Hospital Limited (the 'Company’) is & public
limited Company, incorporated on 8 June 1987, The
Company provides a wide range of super specialty
sarvices in the fisld of healthcara. The shares of the
Company wera listed at Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE)
and stand delisted with effect from 18 Novamber 2015 on
receipt of notice from BSE dated 3 Movember 2015 in
response to Company's application for delisting under
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of
Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 and Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
tAmendment) Regulations, 2015,

Basis of preparation of standalone financial
statements

These standalone financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the recognition and
measurement requirements of Indian Accounting
Standards (hereinafter referred to as the 'Ind AS') as
nofified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Fule 3 of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2016.

The standalone financial statements have bean prepared
on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting
policies are applied consistently to all the periods
presented in the standalone financial statemants. All
assets and liabilities have been classified as current or
non-currant as per the Company’s normal operating cycle
and other criteria as set outin the Division Il of Schedule 111
to the Companies Act, 2013, Based on the nalure of
products and the time between acquisition of assets for
processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalants, the Company has ascerained its operating
cycle as 12 menths for the purpose of current or non-
currant classification of assets and liabilities,

The standalone financial statements have been prepared
under historical cost convention basis except for the
following -

Cerain financial assets which are measured at fair value;

Defined benafit plans - plan assets measured at fairvalue,

Recent pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (*MCA™) has notified the
following new amendments to Ind AS which the Company
has not applied as they are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after April 1, 2023.
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Amendment to Ind AS 1 "Presentation of Financial
Statements"

The amendments require companies fo disclose their
material accounting policies rather than their significant
accounting policies. Accounting policy information is
raterial if, together with other information can reasonably
be expected 1o influence decisions of primary users of
general purpose standalone financial statements. The
Company does not expact this amendment to have any
significantimpact in its standalone financial statemants.

Amendment to Ind AS 12 “Income Taxes"

The amendments clarify how companies account for
deterred tax on fransactions such as leases and
decommissioning obligations. The amendments narrowed
the scope of the recognition exemption in paragraphs 15
and 24 of Ind AS 12 {recognition exemption} so that it no
longer applies to transactions that, on initial recognition,
give rize to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences.

Amendment to Ind AS 8 “Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors"

The amendments will Relp entities to distinguish between
accounting policles and accounting estimatss. The
definition of a change in accounting estimates has been
replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. Under
the new definition, accounting estimates ara "monetary
amourts in standaione financial staterments that are
subject to measurement uncertainty”, Entities use
measureament techniques and inputs to develop
accounting estimates if accounting policies reguire iterms
in standalone financial statements to be measured in a
way that involves measurement uncertainty, The
Company does not expect this amendment to have any
significant impact in its standalone financial statements,

Summary of significant accounting policies
Property plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of
acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing
cost it capltalization criterla are met and directly
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and
rebates are deducted in amiving at the purchase price.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset's camying
amount or recognised as a separate asseal, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
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Summeary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
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attributable to such subsequent cost associated with the
item will flow to the Company. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profit
and loss as incurrad.

In case an item of propery, plant and equipment is
acquired on deferred payment basis. interest expanses
inciuded in deferred payment is recognised as interest
expenseand not included in cost of asset.

Subsequent measurement {depreciation and useful lives)
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided
using written down value method over the estimated useful
life of the assets in & manner prescribed in Part C of
Schedule Il ofthe Companies Act, 2013.

The identified components are depreciated separately
ovar their usetul lives. The remaining components are
depraciated over the life of the principal proparty, plant and
aquipment.

The residual values, useful lives and method of
depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Where, during any financial year, any addition has been

All finite-lived intangible assets are accounted for using the
cost model whereby capitalised costs are amortised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is
based on a number of factors including the effects of
obsolescenca, demand, competition, and othar aconamic
factors (such as the stability of the industry, and known
technological advances), and the level of mainenance
expenditures required to obtain the expected fulure cash
fiows from the asset.

Residual values and useful lives are reviewed at aach
raporting date. Intangible assets are amortised over the
period of 5 years on a straight line method,

Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for impairmant
annually, or mora frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is
carried at costless accumulated impairment iosses,

De-recognilion

Gains or losses arsing from de-recognition of an
intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
assetand are recognized in the staternant of profit and loss
when the asset is de- recognized.

made to any assel, or where any assel has been sold, ¢ Leases
discarded, demolished or destroyed, or significant
components replaced; depreciation on such assets is The Company as alessee

calculated on a pro rata basis as individual assets with
specific useful lite from the month of such addition or, as
the case may be, up to the month on which such asseat has
been sold, discarded, demolished or destroyed or
replaced.

De-recognition

An itam of property, plant and equipment and any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss ansing
on de-recognition of the assel (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the income statemeant
when the assetis deracognised.

Intangible assats
Recognition and initial measurement

Purchased intangible assets are stated at cost less
accumulated amaortization and impairment, if any.

Subsequent measurement famoriisation)

&0

The Company’'s lease assel classes primarily consist of
leases for land and buildings. The Company assesses
whether a contract contains a lease. al inception of a
contract. A contract is, or containg, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a paericd of time in exchange for considaration, To
assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the
use of an identified assel, the Company assesses
whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified
asset (i) the Company has substantially all of the
economic benefits from use of the asset through the period
of the lease and (iii} the Company has the right to direct the
use of the assat.

At the date of commencament of the lease, the Company
recognises a right-of-use asset ("ROU") and a
corrzsponding lease liability for all lease arrangemants in
which it is a lesses, except for leases with a term of twelve
months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases.
For these shorn-term and low value leases, the Company
recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense
on a straight-line basis ovar the term of the leasa.
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Summeary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
(ANl amounts in ¥ million, unless atherwise stated)

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to axtend
or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term.
ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options
when itis reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost,
which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made al or prior to the
commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct
costs less any lease incentives. They are subseguently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses,

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the
commencement date on a straight-ine basis over the
shorter of the l2ase term and useful life of the underiving
assel,

The lease liability is initially measured at amontized cost at
the present value of the future lease payments. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the leaze or, if not readily determinabla, using the
incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of
these |leases. Leasa liabilities are remeasured with a
corresponding adjustment to the refated right of use asset
if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will
exercise an extension or a termination option.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acguisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset are
capitalized during the period of time that is necessary to
complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or
sale. A qualifying asset s one that necessarily takes
substantial period of time to get ready for 15 intended use.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs s suspended in the
period during which the active development is delayed due
to, other than tamporary, interruption. All ofher borrowing
costs are charged to the statement of profit and loss as
incurred,

Financial instruments

Financial instruments are recognised when the Company
bacomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted
for transaction costs, except for those carmed at fair value
through profit or loss which are measured initially at fair
valug,

If the Company determines that the fair value at initial
recognition differs from the transaction price, the Company
accounts for that instrument at that date as follows:

61

a)

b)

Annual Report 2022-23

at tha measuremeant hasis mentionad above if that fair
value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for
an identical asset or iability (i.e. a Level 1 input) or based
on a valuation technigue that uses only data from
observable marksts. The Company recognises the
differsnce between the fair value at initial recognition and
the transaction price as a gain or loss,

in all other cases, at the measurement basis mentioned
above, adjusted to defer the differance between the fair
value at initial recognition and the transaction price. After
initial recognition, the Company recognises that deferred
difference as a gain or loss only to the extent that it arises
from a change in a factor {including time) that market
participants would take inte account when pricing the
assetor liability,

Subsequent measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities is described below.

Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial
assets are classified into the following categories upon
initial recognition:

Financial assets at amortised cost - a financial instrument
is measured at amortised cost if both the following
conditions are met:

The assetis held within a business model whose objective
is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and
Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows thatl are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI1) onthe principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assels are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
affactive intarast method.

De-recognition of financial assats

Atinancial asset is primarily de-recognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the assat have expired or the
Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
fromthe asset.
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Financial liabilities
Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, the financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amorised cost using effective
interest method. Amortised cost is calculated after
considering any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The effect
of EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss.

De-recogmition of financial iabilities

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expiras.
When an existing financial iability is raplaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-
recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability. The differance in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financialinstruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
nat amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultanaously.

Impairment of financial assets

All fimancial assets except for those at FVTPL are subject
to raview for impairment at least at each reporting date to
identify whether there is any objective evidenca that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impairad.
Different criteria to determine impairment are applied for
each category of financial assets.

In accordance with Ind-AS 104, the Company applies
expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss for financial assets carried
at amortised cost,

ECL is the weighted average of difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Company expects (o receive, discountad at the original
effective interest rate, with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weaights.
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(i)

(ii)

When estimating the cash flows, the Company is required
to consider -

All contractual terms of the financial assets (including
prepayment and extension) over the expected life of the
assals,

Cash Tlows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

Trade receivables

For debtors that are not past due - The Company
gpplies approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial
Instruments, which requires lifeime expected credit
losses to be recognized upon initial recognition of
receivabies, Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses
resulting from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument.

The Company uses the expescted credit loss model to
assess any reguired allowances and uses a provision
matrix to compute the expected credit loss allowance for
trade receivables. Life time expected credit losses are
assessed and accounted based on company's historical
collection experience for customers and forecast of
macro-economic factors for each identified segment.

The Company defines default as an event when the
financial asset is past due for more than 365 days. This
definition is based on management’s expectation of the
time perod beyond which if a receivable is outstanding, it
is an objective evidence of impairment.

For debtors considered past due - any enhancemant in
the accrual done for expected credit loss on individually
significant receivables is made to recognise any additional
expected credit loss on amount recoverable. The
Company writes off trade receivables when there 5 no
abjective evidence that such amounts would not be
recovered. Financial assets thal are written-off are still
subjact to enforcemant activity by the Company,

Otherfinancial assels

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial
assets and risk exposure, the Company determines
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit
risk since initial recogniticn. If the credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Company measures the loss allowance at an amount
equal to 12-month expectad credit losses, alse at an
amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses,
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When making this assessment, the Company uses the
change in the nisk of a default occurring over the expected
life of the financial asset. To make that assessment, the
Company compares the risk of a defaull occurring on the
financial asset as at the balance sheet date with the risk of
a default occurring on the financial asset as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and
supportable information, that is available without undue
cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in
credit risk since initial recognition. The Company assumes
that the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial assetis
determined to have low credit risk at the balance shast
date.

Impairment of non-financial assets

For impairment assessmeni purposes, assets are
grouped at the loweast levels for which there ara largely
independent cash inflows (cash generating units), As a
result, some assets are lested individually Tor impairment
and some are tested at cash-generating unit lavel,

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether
there is any indication based on internal/external factors,
that an assel may be impaired. If any such indication
exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of
the asset. If such recoverable amount of tha asset or the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which
the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount and
the reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. If, at the
reporting date there is an indication that a previously
assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the
recoverable amount is reassessed which is the highar of
fair value less costs of disposal and value-in-use and the
assel Is reflected at the recoverable amount subject to a
maximurm of depreciated historical cost. Impairment
losses previously recognised are accordingly reversed in
tha statement of profit and loss.

To detarmine wvalue-in-use, management estimates
expected future cash flows from each cash-genarating unit
and determines a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the presant value of those cash flows, The data
used for impairment testing procedures are directly linked
to the Company's latest approved budget, adjusted as
necessary to exclude the effects of future re-organizations
and asset enhancements. Discount factors are
determined individually for each cash-generating unit and
reflect current market assessment of the time value of
money and asset-specific risk factors,

63

Fair value measureament

The Company measures cerain financial instruments,
such as, investments at fair value at each balance shest
dale.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
assel or paid to transfer a llability in an orderly transaction
betwean market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell tha asset or transfer the liability
takes place either;

Intha principal markat for the asset or liability, or

In the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market forthe assetor liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accassible by the Company.

The fair value of an assel or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market paricipants would use when
pricing the asset or lability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

Refer note 42 for fair value hierarchy.
Investment in subsidiaries

In accordance with Ind AS 27 - Separate Financial
Statements, investments in equity instruments of
subsidiaries can be measured at cost or at fair value in
accordance with Ind AS 102. The Company has opted fo
measure such investmeants at cost at initial recognition,
Subsequently, such investments in subsidiaries is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, Where
an indication of impaimment exists, the carrying amount of
the investment is assessed and written down immediately
to its recoverable amount. On disposal of these
invastmeants, the difference between net disposal
proceeds and the camying amounts are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

Inventories

Inventories comprise of phamacy, dmigs, consumable
and implants which are valued at lower of cost and net
realizable value, The cost of inventories comprises of all
costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
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and condition. Costs of inventories are computed using
weighted average cost formula. However, raw materials
and other items held for use in the production of
inventories are not written down below cost if the finished
products in which they will be incorporated are expected to
be sold at or above cost.

Met realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less any applicable selling
expenses. Provision for obsolescence and slow-moving
inventory is made based on managemeant's best estimates
of net realisable value of such inventories.

Expenses incurred for raising equity share capital

The Company is in the process of raising equity share
capital and has certain direct expenditure which shall be
adjusted against securities premium to the extent
permissible u's 52 of companies act 2013 on successful
completion of raising capital,

Revenue recognition

Revanue arises mainly from the sale of goods. To
determine whether to recognise revenue, the Company
follows a 5-step process:

Identifying the contract with a customar

Identifying the performance obligations

Datermining the transaction price

Allocating the transaction price to the periormance
obligations

Recognising revenus when/as performance obligation(s)
are satisfied.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized
when control of the goods or services are transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services net of returns and allowancas,
trade discounts and volume rebates. The Company has
generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue
arrangements because it typically controls the goods or
services before transferring them o the customer
Revenue Is usually recognized when it is probable that
economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow
to the entity, amount of revenue can be measured reliably
and entity retained neither ownership nor effective control
overthe goods sold or services renderad,
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Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over
fime, when (or as} the Company satisfies perdormance
obligations by transferring the promised goods or services
to its customers.

The Company recognises contract liabilities for
consideration received in respect of unsatisfied
performance obligations and reports these amounts as
other liabilities in the statement of financial position.
Similarly, i the Company safisfies a performance
obligation before it receives the consideration, the
Company recognises either a confract assel or a
receivable in its statement of financial position, depending
on whether something other than the passage of time is
required before the consideration is due.

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of pharmacy and pharmaceutical
supplies is recognized at the point in time when contral of
the asset is transterred to the customer, generally on
defivery of the pharmacy and phammaceutical tems. The
Company collects goods and service tax (GST) on behalf
of the government and, therefore, these are not economic
benefits flowing to the Company and thus excluded from
revenue. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at
the fair value of the considaration received or receivable,
net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and voluma
rebates

Revenue from healthcare services

Revenue from rendering of healthcare services (including
drugs, consumables and implants used in delivery of such
services) is recognized over the time based on the
performance of relaled services to the customers as per
the terms of contract. Income from medical services and
operation and management fee is recognised as and when
obligations ansing out of the contractual arrangements are
fulfiled and services are provided in terms of such
agreements

Revenue from other services

Income from other services like sponsorship income,
education income, clinical trials and other ancillary
activities is recognized based on the terms of the contract
and it is probable that economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the entity and amount of
revenue can be measured reliably.
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Otherincome
Interast

Interest incomea is recognized on time proportion basis
taking into aceount the amount outstanding and rate
applicable. For all financial assets measured at amortised
cost (refer 'e’ above), interestincome is recorded using the
effective interest rate (EIR) Le. the rate thal exactly
dizscounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the net carrying
amount of the financial assets. The future cash flows
include all other transaction costs paid or received,
premiums or discounts if any, ete.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand,
dermand deposits with banks/corporations and short-term
highly liquid investments (original malurity less than 3
months) that are readily convertible into known amount of
cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in
vallie,

Foreign currency transactions and translations
Functional and prasentation currency

The standalone financial statements are presented in
Indian Rupee (%", which iz also the functional and
presentation currency of the Company.

Transaclions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the
functional currency, by applying to the exchange rate
between the functional currency and the foreign currency
atthe date of the transaction.

Foreign currency monetary items are converted to
functional currancy using the closing rate. Mon-monetary
items denominated in a foreign currency which are carried
at historlcal cost are reported using the exchange rate at
the date of the transactions.

Exchange differences arising on monetary items on
settlement, or restatemeant as at reporting date, at rates
different from those at which they were initially recorded,
are recegnised in the statement of profit and loss in the
yearin which they arise,

Post-employment and short term employee benefits

The Company provides post-employment benefits
through varous defined contribution and defined benefit
plans.
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Defined contribution plans

A defined contribufion plan is a post-employment benefit
plan under which the Company pays specified
contributions to a separate entity and has no obligation to
pay any further amounts, Specified monthly contributions
to the recognised provident fund and approved
sUperannuation schemes, which are defined contribution
schemes, are charged to the statement of profit and loss
during the perod in which the employee renders the
related sarvice.

Defined benefit plans

The defined benefit plans sponsored by the Company
define the amount of the benefit that an employee will
receive on completion of services by reference to length of
service and last drawn salary. The legal obligation for any
benefits remains with the Company.

Gratuity is post-employment benefit and is in the nature of
a defined benefit plan. The liability recognised in the
standalone financizal statements in respect of gratuity is the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the
reporting date, together with adjustments for
unrecognised actuarial gains or losses and past service
costs. The defined benefit obligation is calculated at or
near the reporting date by an independent actuary using
the projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses ansing from past experience
and changes in actuarial assumptions are credited or
charged to the statement of OCI in the year in which such
gains or losses are determined,

Leave encashment banefits

Provision for compensated absences when determinad o
ba short term benefit is made on the basis of Company
paolicy as at the end of the yvear, Provision related to short
term compensated absences of employees is provided on
actual basis.

Short-lerm employee benelils

Expense in respect of other short-term benefits is
racognised on the basis of the amount paid or payable for
tha period during which services are rendered by the
employes.

Income taxes

Tax expense recognised in profit or loss comprises the
sum of deferrad tax and current tax not recognised in othar
comprehansive income or directly in equity.
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Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to
ba paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the
Income-tax Act, 1961, Current tax items are recognised in
carrelation to the underlying transaction either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised in full for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
underlying tax loss, unused tax credits (Minimum alternate
tax cradit entittement) or deductible temporary difference
will be utilised against future taxable income. This is
assessed based on the Company's forecast of future
operating results, adjusted for significant non-taxable
income and expenses and specific limits on the use of any
unused tax loss or credit. Unrecognised defarred tax
assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
future taxable profits will allow deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expectad 1o apply in the year whan the assel
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the reparting date. Deferrad tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in other
comprehansive income or directly in equity,

Current tax assets and cument tax liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts and there |5 an intention to settle the
asset and liability on a net basis. Deferred tax assets and
deferrad tax liabilities are offset when thera is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities; and the deferred tax assets and the
deferred tax liabilities relate to income laxes levied by the
same taxation authority.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share Is calculated by dividing the net
profit or loss for the period attributable to  equity
shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the perod. The weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events
including a bonus issue.

For the purposea of calculating diluted eamings per share,
the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the pericd are adjustad for the effects of
all dilutive potential equity shares.
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Provisions, contingent assets and contingent
liabilities

Provisicns are recognised only when there is & present
abligation, as a result of past events, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
raguired to settle the obligation, and when a reliable
estimate of the amount of obligation can be made at the
reporing date, These estimates are reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimates. If the effect of the tme value of money is
material, provisions are discounted to reflect its present
value using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the obligation. When provisions are
discounted, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost,

Contingent liability is disclosed for:

Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future
events not wholly within the control of the Company or

Present obligations arising from past events where itis nol
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
sattle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of
the obligation cannot be madea.

Contingent assets are not recognised. However, when
inflow of economic benefits is probable, related asset is
disclosed.

Significant management judgements in applying
accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The following are the critical judgments and the key
estimales conceming the future that management has
made in the process of applying the Company's
accounting policies and that may have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the standalons
financial Statements or that have a significant risk of
causing a materal adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Significant management estimates

Allowance for doubtful debts - The allowance for
doubtful debts reflects management’s estimate of losses
inharant in its credit portfolio. This allowance is based on
Company's estimate of the losses to be incurred, which
derives from past experence with similar receivables,
current and histoncal past due amounts, dealer
termination rates, write-offs and collections, the careful
monitoring of portfolio credit guality and current and
projected economic and market conditions.
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Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets -
Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of
depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date,
based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in
these estimates relate to technical and economic
obsclescence that may change the ufility of certain
software and other plant and eguipment.

Defined benefit obligations (DBO) - Management's
estimate of the DBO is based on a number of critical
underlying assumptions such as standard rates of
inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future
salary increases. Variation in these assumptions may
significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual
defined benefit expenses.

Provisions - The Company estimates the provisions that
have present cbligations as a result of past events and it is
probable that outfiow of resources will be required lo settle
the obligations. These provisions are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and are adjusted to reflect the
currant bast astimates,

Significant management judgments

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of non-
financial assets - The aevaluation of applicability of
indicators of impairment of assets requires assessment of
several external and internal factors which could result in
deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets.

Leases - The Company evaluates if an arrangement
gualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS
116. Identification of a lease reguires significant
judgement. The Company uses significant judgement in
assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals)
and the applicable discount rate.

The Company determines the lzase term as the non-
cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods
coverad by an option to extend the lease if the Company is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods
cavered by an option toterminate the lease if the Company
is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In
assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to
exercise an oplion to extend a lease, or not to exercise an
aption to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts
and circumstances that create an economic incentive for
the Company to exercise the option to extend the lease, or
not to exercisg the option to terminate the lease. The
Company revises the lsase term if there is a change in the
nan-cancellable period of alease.
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The discount rate is generally based on the incremental
bormowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated orfora
portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

Contingent liabilities - The Company uses significant
judgements to disclose contingent liabilities. Contingent
liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation
arising from past events, the existence of which will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurmaence of
one of more uncertain future svents not wholly within the
control of the Company or a present obligation that arises
from past events where it is either not probable that an
autflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation
or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.
Contingent assets are naither recognised nor disclosed in
the standalone financial statements.
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

{All amounts are in T million, unless stated otherwise)

A. Equity share capital

Balance as at 01 April 2021

Equity share capital issued during the year
Balance as at 31 March 2022

Equity share capital issued during the period
Balance as at 31 March 2023

B. Other equity

Balance as at 01 April 2021

Profit for the year

Other comprenensive income (net of tax)
Balance as at 31 March 2022

Balance as at 31 March 2022

Profit for the period

Other comprehensive income (net of tax)
Balance as at 31 March 2023

Amount

140.43

140.43

140.43

General Securities Reserve Retained Total
reserve Premium earnings

418.74 981.26 [62.19) 1,337.81

- - 273.02 273.02

- - {7.87) {7.87)

418.74 981.26 202.86 1,602.86

418.74 981.26 202.86 1,602.86

- - 2039 293.M

- - 3.79 3.789

418.74 981.26 500.56 1,900.56

This is the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & CoLLP
Chanered Accountanis

Firm's Registration Mo 001 07FeMNS00013

Rohit Arara
Piartrgs
Mambership Mo: 504774

Place : Gurugram
Date : 15 September 2023

68

Fiw and an behall of the Board of Direciors of
Regency Hospital Limited

Atul Kapoor
Managang Director
CHN: 01448220

Rajesh Shroff
Chied Financial Officar

Place : Kanpur

Date; 15September 2023

Date :

Rashmi Kapoor
Whole Tirme: Director
DiN: 01818323

Kriti Misra
Company Sacratary

Place : Kanpur
15 September 2023
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

(ANl amounis are in ¥ millicn, unless stated otherwise)
Right of use asset

Gross carrying value

Balance as at 01 April 2021
Addition during the year
Balance as at 31 March 2022
Addition during the year
Disposal during the year
Balance as at 31 March 2023

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at 01 April 2021
Charge for tha year

Balance as at 31 March 2022
Charge for the year
Adjustment for disposals
Balance as at 31 March 2023

Met block
Balance as at 31 March 2022
Balance as at 31 March 2023

Capital work-in-progress

Flant and machinery pending installation and
building under construction

Movermeant in capital work in progress:

Particulars

Balance as at 01 April 2021

Add: Additions during the year
Less: Capitalisation during the year
Balance as at 31 March 2022
Add: Additions during the year
Less: Capitalization during the year
Balance as at 31 March 2023
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ROU- Land ROU- Building Total
105.77 435.61 541.38
- 11.60 11.60
105.77 447.21 552.98
= 65.97 65.97

= {6.51) 16.51)
105.77 506.67 612.44
0.74 721 72.85
0.74 £5.89 66.63
1.48 138.00 139.48
0.85 74.55 7540

= {0.71) (071}

2.33 211.84 214.17
104.29 309.21 413.50
103.44 294.83 398.27
As at As at

31 March 2023 31March 2022

421.00 90.79
421.00 90.79

~Amount
T 6422
58.82
(33.25)
90.79
368.96
(38.75)
421.00
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(Al amounts are In ¥ millian, unless stated ofherwize)

Capital work in progress (CWIP) Ageing Schedule
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As at 31 March 2023 Amount in CWIP for a period of

Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 yoears More than 3 Total

year years

Projects in progress 369,95 43.50 17.53 - 421,00
Projects temporanly suspended - - - - -
Total 369.95 33.50 17.55 - 421.00
As at 31 March 2022 Amount in CWIP for a period of

Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3years  Maore than 3 Total

year years
Projects in prograss 59.82 3097 - a0.79
Projects temporanly suspendad - - - - -
Total 59.82 30.97 - - 80.79
Other intangible assets
Intangible Total

Gross carrying value
Balance as at 01 April 2021 17.07 17.07
Additions during the year 0.06 0.06
Balance as at 31 March 2022 17.13 17.13
Additions during the vear 12.3 12,31
Balance as at 31 March 2023 29.44 29.44
Accumulated depraciation
Balance as at 01 April 2021 3.91 3.91
Charge for the year 4.13 413
Balance as at 31 March 2022 8.04 B.04
Charge for the year 8.62 8.62
Balance as at 31 March 2023 16.66 16.66
MNet block
Balance as at 31 March 2022 9.09 9.09
Balance as at 31 March 2023 12.78 12.78

71




f&kﬁmmw
HEALTH Annual Report 2022-23
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al amounts are In ¥ millian, unless stated ofherwize)

9 Intangible assets under development
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Intangible assets under development 6.32 6.67
32 &7
Movement in intangible assets under development:
Particulars Amount
Balance as at 01 April 2021 4.97
Add: Additicns during the year 1.70
Less: Capitalisation during the year -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 6.67
Add: Additions during the year 6.32
Less: Capitalisation during the year (6.67)
Balance a= at 31 March 2023 6.32
Intangible assets under development Ageing Schedule
As at 31 March 2023 Amount in Intangible assets under development for a period of
Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
year years
Projects in progress 6.32 - - - 6.32
Projects tamporanly suspended - - - - -
Total 6.32 - - - 6.32
As at 31 March 2022 Amount in Intangible assets under development for a period of
Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years  More than 3 Total
year years
Projects in progress 1.70 1.42 3.55 - 6.67
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 1.70 1.42 3.53 - 6.67

MNote: Intangible assets under development represents the cost incurred for the purpose of new software being
developed by the Company. The Company has incurred T 6.32 million on the same during the cumrent year and
tha development is in process,

72




MNotes to the Standalone Financial Statements
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al amounts are In ¥ millian, unless stated ofherwize)

10

11

12

Investments (non-current)

Investment in equity shares (ungquoted, at cost)
Wholly owned subsidiaries

Sibling Lifecars Private Limited
10,000 (31 March 2022: 10,000} Equity sharas of ¥ 10 each fully paid up

Regency Institute of Mursing
100,000 (31 March 2022: 100,000} Equity shares of T 10 each fully paid up

Associales
Regency Mephrocare Private Limited
1,421,000 (31 March 2022: 1,421,000) Equity shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid up

Other financial assets (non-current)

Security deposits (unsecured, considered good)
Deposits with maturity more than 12 months*
Interest accrusd but not due on others

Annual Report 2022-23

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

0.10 0.10
1.00 1.00
14.21 14.21
15.31 15.31
As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

93.82 64.15
15.91 338.52
0.05 3.88
114.78 406.55

“Total deposits of T 1,14 million{ 31 March, 2022 ¥ 9,62 million) are pledged with Bank HDFC Bank Limited, Yes

bank Bank of Baroda against fund based and non fund based limit.

Income tax assets (net)

Income tax assefs (net)
Advance income tax

Less: Provision for income tax
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As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

184.48 119.37
145,22 38.98
39.24 80.39
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
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13 Deferred tax liabilities (net)

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Deferred tax liabilities (net) 143.10 110.49

Deferred tax asset arising on account of :

Provision for employees benefits 10.24) (4.33)
Allowance for expected credit loss (18.85) (12.05)
Provision far bonus = (8.15)
Expenses incurred on capital raising - (7.08)

(19.09) {31.59)

Deferred tax liability arising on account of :

Temporary difference on account of property, plant and
equipment (including Right of use assets, related lease

liabilities and deferred lease rent recoverabla) 162.18 141.38
Fair value measurement of investment 0.01 0.70

162.19 142.08
Net deferred tax liabilities 143.10 110.49
MNotes:

(i) Mavement in deferred tax assets/{liabilities) for year ended 31 March 2023:

As at Recognised Recognised As at
01 April 2022 in other in staterment 31 March 2023
comprehensive of profit
income and loss
Deferred tax assetf{liability) arising on account of ;
Provision for employee benefits 4.33 (1.28) (2.81) 0.24
Allowance for expected credit loss 12.05 - 6.8 18.8B5
FProvision for bonus 8.15 - (B.15) -
Expenses incurred on capital raising 7.08 - (7.06) -
Fair value measurement of investment {0.70) - (0.69) (0.01)
Temporary difference on account of property, plant and
equipment {including Right of use assets, related lease
liabilities and deferred lease rent recoverable) (141.38) - (20.80) {162.18)
MNet deferred tax assets/{liabilities) {110.49) {1.28) (31.33) (143.10)
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14

15

18

(Al amounts are In ¥ millian, unless stated ofherwize)

{ii} Movement in deferred tax assets/{liabilities) for year ended 31 March 2022:
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As al Recognised Recognised As at
01 April 2021 in other in statement 31 March 2022
comprehensive of profit
incame and loss
Deferred tax asset/(liability) arising on account of :
Provision for employees banefits 0.66 2.68 0.99 433
Allowance for expected credit loss 14.56 - 12.51) 12.05
Provision for bonus 4.21 - 3.84 8.15
Expenses incurred on capital raising 7.27 - 10.21) .06
Unabsorbed depreciation as per the Income- tax Act, 1961 44 62 - (44.62) -
Fair value measuremant of investment - - (0.70) (0.70)
Temporary difference on account of property, plant and
equipment {including Right of use assets, related lease
[fabilities and deferred lease rent recoverable) (128.85) - {12.53) {141.38)
Net deferred tax assets/{liabilities) (57.53) 2.68 {55.64) {110.49)

Mate: A deferred tax shall be recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extend that it is probabie that
taxable profit will be avallable against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised.

Other non-current assets
(unsecured, considerad good)

Deferred lease rent recoverable

Advance to othars
Capital advances

Inventories

Stock-in-trade

Pharmacy

Surgical, pathological and kitchen items
Other miscellaneous consumabie items
Stock-in-trade (net of provision)

Goods in transit

Investments (current)

Investment in Mutual Funds (at lower of cost and fair value, quoted)

As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
B.54 a.07

2.06 2.23

43.15 3.66

53.75 19.96

As at As at

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

MIL (31 March, 2022-4,37,546.657) units of HOFC Low Duration Funds - LT - Growth
1,225.405 (31 March, 2022-47 538.623) units of Axis Treasury Advantage Fund

- Regular Plan - Growth
MIL (31 March, 2022-43,350.176) units of Relance Low Duration funds
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7113 50.81
47 .38 43.78
B.44 10.27
126.95 110.B6
0.20 1.64
127.25 112.50
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
- 20,48

32 11871

- 132.07

3.21 271.26
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17 Trade receivables

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Unsecured, considered good G26.04 2088.33
Credit impairad 74.88 47 .87
Less: Allowance for expected cradit loss (74.B8) {47.87)

626.04 298.33
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18

19

21

{al amounts are in T million, wiless stated ofharwisa)

Cash and cash equivalents
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Balances with banks:

- in current accounts 81.12 905.33
Cash in hand 7.64 5,67
Tarm Deposits (with maturity up 1o 3 months)* 265.83 4,24
Interest accrued but not due on fixed deposits 0.02 0.0
354.61 915.25

*“Total deposits of T 2.77 million (31 March, 2022 ¥ 4.24 million) are pledged with HDFC Bank Limited against fund-based

and non fund-based limits,

Other bank balances
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Deposits with maturity mora than three maonths but less than 12 months® 36.40 .87
Interast accruad but not due on fixed deposits 0.49 .01
38.89 0.88
Other financial assets (current)
(unsecured, considerad good)
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Unbilied revenua 58.65 41.23
Interest accrued on income tax refund . 2.56
59.65 43.79
Other current assets
(unsecured, considersd good)
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Prepaid expanses 2ar2 20,78
Advances 1o vendor g2 13.06
Advance to employesas 2.81 3.07
Advances to others 0.26 .42
Balances with statutory and governmeant authorities 016 015
Deferred lease rent recoverable 0.8 .58
Expenses incurred for raising eguity share capital 15.68 -
46.96 38.05
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{A&l amounts are in T million, wiless stated ofharwisa)

Equity share capital

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Authorised equity share capital

55,000,000 (31 March 2022 - 55,000,000) Equity shares of Rs 10 each 550.00 550,00
Authorised preference share capital*
15,00,00,000 (31 March 2022 ; NIL) Equity shares of Rs 10each 1.500.00 =
2,050.00 550.00
Issued, subscribed and paid up equity share capital
14,042 779 (31 March 2022 - 14,042,770} Equity shares of Fz 10 each 14043 140.43
140.43 140.43

*{The Authorised Share Capital of the Holding Company has increased from Rs. 550.00 million (¥ Five hundred Fifty
million) divided into 5,50,00,000 (Fity five million) Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- [ Ten) to Rs. 2,050.00 million
(# Two thousand Fifty million only) divided into 5,50,00,000 (Fifty five million) Equity Shares of face value of Bs. 10/
(¥ Ten) each and 15,00,00,000 {one hundred fifty million} Preference Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- 7 Ten) sach vide
the Ordinary Resolution passed in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Regency Hospital Limited dated 21 March
2023.)

i} Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares:

As per the Memorandum of Association, the Company's authorised share capital consists of equity shares. All equity
ghares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the Company’s residual assets. The equity shares are entitled
to receive dividend as declared from time to time. The voting rights of an equity shareholder on show of hand ar through
proxy shall be in proportion to his share of the paid-up equity capital of the Company. On winding up of the Company, the
holders of equity shares will be entitlad to recaive tha residual assets of the Company, remaining after distribution of all
preferential amounts in proportion to the number of equity shares hald.

ii} Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
MNo. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount

Balance at the

beginning of the year 14,042,779 140 14,042,779 140
Add: Issuad during the year . . .
Balance al the end of
the year 14,042,779 140 14,042,779 140

iif} Shareholders holding more than 5% of share/ Promoters with any number of shares of the Company as at
balance sheet date:

Mame of Shareholder As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Mo. of shares % holding MNo. of shares % holding

Promoters and Promoter group (with any number of shareholdin

Dr. Rashmi Kapoaor 3,433,502 24.45% 3,433,502 24.45%
Dr. Atul Kapoor * 3,145,286 22.40% 2,702,260 18.24%
Atul Kapoor (HUF) 1,182,523 B.42% 1,182,523 8.42%
Anant Ram Kapoor * . 0.00% 886,252 6.31%
Soni Kapoor 649,210 4.62% 648,210 4.62%
Abhishek Kapoaor 177.508 1.26% 177,508 1.268%
Arun Akshat Kapoor HUF 67,200 0.48% 67,200 0.48%
Arun Kapoor HUF 52,272 0.37% 52,272 0.37%
Arun Kapoor * 448,126 3.19% 5,000 0.04%:
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Others (with shareholding more than 5% of share)

International Finance Corporation 2802217 19.95% 2,802 217 19.95%
Kois Holdings 908,580 6.47 % 808,580 B.47%
Healthquad Fund 7ro.aaz 5.440% 770,832 5.49%

* Bhares held by Mr. Anant Ram Kapoor, who deceased on 10 December, 2021, have bean transterred equally in the
namas of his legal heirs Mr. Atul Kapoor and Mr. Arun Kapoor on 07 April 2022 and 29 June 2022 respectively.

i) The Company has neither issued equity shares pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash or any
bonus shares nor has there been any buy-back of shares in the current year and five years immediately preceding the
balance sheet date.

23 Other equity Asat Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Securities Premium Reserve
Opening balance 981.26 981,26
Additions during the year - .

981.26 981.26

General reserve
Opening balanca 418.74 418.74
Add: Transferred from statemant of profit and loss - .
418.74 418.74

Retalned sarnings
Opening balance 202.86 (62.19)
Profit for the year 295.91 273.02
Other comprehansive incomea (net of tax) 3.79 (7.97)
500.56 202.86
1,800.56 1,602.86

Mature and purpose of reserves :

Securities Premium Reserve: Securilies premium reserve represents premium received on issue of shares, The
reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

General Reserve : General reserve represents profits transtferred from retained earnings from time to time to general
reserva for appropriate purposes based on the provisions of the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956. Consaequent fo
introduction of the Companies Act 2013, the requirement to mandatorily transfer a specified perceniage of the net profit fo
general reserve has been withdrawn. It can be wiilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
Retained Earnings : Retained eamings are the profits of the Company earned til date net of appropriations.

24 Borrowings - Non-current *

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Secured
Tem loans *
- from banks 1.553.35 2,366.76
Vehicle loan
- from banks 0.99 1.38
- from others 12.48 11.25
1,566.82 2,379.39
Less: Currant maturiies of long-term borrowings (238.19) (BES.88)
1,328.63 1,489.53

*Refer note 24{a) for terms of borrowings.

* Term Loan from Banks as on 31 March, 2022 includes Term Loan from Indusind Bank Limited amounting to
T 653.95 million which has been fully repaid on 7th April, 2022,
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2d4(a) Terms of repayment and security disclosure for the outstanding long term borrowings (including current
maturities of long term borrowings) Secured term leans from banks

Mame of bank Az at Az al | Rapayment terms Details of security
Financial 31 March 31 March
Institution 2023 2022
HOFC Bank Limitad . o4 | Duration: B months iincludmg & months Sacrad by way of charge on movatie plant
micratenum) baginning lrom 20 Aug 2015 te 20 and machinery. and othar fixed assets.
April 2022-:- 43 Equated Monthly Instalments
(EMIs) of T .43 miliion per manth beginming from
20 Feb 2016 fo 20 Fab 2020 - & maonths
moratorium  availed under rellel packags
provided by BBE 20 EMIs of T0.43 mifion per
monith from 20 Sept 2020 Gl 20 April 2022°
Dwration: 101 Months (including 12 Months |1 Firsl and exclusive charge on o current
HOFC Bank Limited 1587 e Moratorium) beginning from 01 Oct 2076 1o 01 azsets of Ragancy Huspnalgun'ﬂad.
Feb 2025 details as follows:-, 20 Equated |2 First and exclusive change on &l presant and
Monthly Instalments of TO.76 million from 01 future livad assats (movable & immovable)
Oct, 217 o 01 Feb, 2020- & months gxcluding sesete specifically charged to
moratorium  availed under relisf package olfiers landed,
provided By RBI from March 2020 1o August |3 Hypothecation and excusive charge oo plant
2090 -54 Equated Monthiy Instaliments of ¥ 0.76 ; ;T:gmm[d? :‘-ﬂdﬂlh::rgfietﬂ of the company
LI u
G e O T el 206 o g Fiob, . 4. Personal guarantse of Mr. &l Kagoor and
Irs. Rashmi Kepoor and Mr. AR Kapoor ™,
HDFC Bank Limited 377 4689 | Dusation; 107 months (including 15 months | EAulable Mongage of residantal 4z wel as
o proparty as mantonsd besow:
moratonum) beginaing from 01 Oct 20061000 [, ji7a0 Earvodya Nagar, Kangur
Aug 2025 detads as foflows:- 3 [EMIs) of |y, 117/1388-2 Sarvodya Nagar, Kanpur
067 million per manth from 01 Jan 2006 e 01 ah 1171101, K-Block Kakedes Hospitel Kanpur,
March 2020- 23 (EMIz) of 71.24 million per P
manth  from 01 April 2018 to 01 Fab 2020 &
months moratorivm  availed under relief
package provided by ABElfrom March 20 to Aug
2020 - 60 EMI= af T 1,34 million per month from
01 Sept 202040 01 Aug 2025
HOFC Bank Limisd 3337 AT | puration: 105 months Equated Maonthly
Inatalmants {EMIs) baginming from 05 Oct 2016
1005 June 2022 details as follows- 41 Equated
Monthly Instalments (EMIs) of ¥ 1.38 million per
manth baginning from 05 Oct 2016 to 05 Feb
2020 - B months moratorium evailed under reliaf
peckage provided by RBI from March 20 to
August 2020 - 58 EMIa of ¥ 0.43 milllon  per
mainth from 05 Sept 202060105 June 2022
HDFC Bank Limitad 20,72 o608 | Duration: 105 Equated Monthly Instalments | 1. First and exclusive: charge on all cument
(EMdI=) beginning from 20 January 2018 1o 20 aeapts (Stock. consumables and book debls
Sepl 2026 delaits &5 lolows-+6 EMI of ¥ 0.56 af Regancy Hospital Limited (Both present &
milion from 20 January 201810 20 June 2016, - |, JureciMSH) .
g;m;glb:ugﬁﬂ miillican Irom 20t July 2012 to (movable & im )} inciuding Lang &
e R A e R b el Building of Aagency Hospdal Limited {bath
availed under raliel package provided by RBI cumvent & fuLire of MSH)
from Marl:hEEFtc-AugustEDEﬂ-?S EMI o T 0.59 4. First & auchisive r.hargc Ih'f‘ﬂu.lgh equitable
milion from 20th Seplember 2020 o 20th martgage of Regency Hospital Limited
Saptamber 2026, 4 Hypolheeation and exclusie charge on plant
& machinary & othaer assats of the company
: AHL-MEH facility {Both currant & future
HDFC Bank Limitad 2830 S84 | Duration: 110 Equated Monthly Instalments | 5 I;n—appli:an::-ﬁlrwal mnmntmnmﬁr_nn:
[EMIs] ({including 12 months maoratordom) Kapoor and Mrs. Rashmi Kapoor and Mr AR,
baginning from 01 April 20158 to 01 May 2027 Kapoor *. SPODC with 51 for all actvites as par
details a3 fofiows-2-11 EMIof T 0.92 million from bank requirement from company  and
01 Aprl 2019 1o 01 Feb 2020, -& months promatars.
moratorium  availed under relief package |8 The cusiomer hasio ensure insurance cover
provided by RE| fram March 20 to Ausgust 2020 - againgt all risk on the equipmant financed
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(All amounts are inT million, unless stated otherwise)

24{a) Terms of repayment and security disclosure for the outstanding long term borrowings (including current
maturities of long term borrowings) Secured term leans from banks

Mame of bank Az at Asal | Rapayment terms Details of security

Fimancial 31 March 31 March

Institution 2023 2022
&1 EMI of 70,92 million from 20th Septembar The said palicy 10 bet andorsed in the name ol
20200 206h September 2026 HOFC Bank Limited Lid )

7. Hedging of Fx exposures as appoinied by the
bank | General Insurance lor all assets o be
lien marked In fevour of HOFC Bank
Limibed Lid. as the Brsl loss payes a&s
apphcatie,

5 Eguiieble mortgage of residential ae well Bs
el prapary as mantionad balow:

|y 117/A-2 Sarvodya Magar, Kanpur

by Mis Abhirev Healthcare Pl Ltd.
[malgsminlad with RW Hospital Lid.)-
117/138 B-2 Sarvodaya Magar Kanpur UP

gl T, K-Biock Kakadeo Hospital Kangur,
9]

Yas Bank Limitad 20.87 2672 | an Equated Monthly Instalments (EMIs) Hypothecation on Orginal Immices and
ranging fram & 00023 millices to 0,11 millon Insurance Coples

HEFG Bank Limilerd L i ;‘;22?::; T;BE::;:&”%LLOfmﬁsgd 1. First and exdusive charge on all current

= . esesis (Stock, coraumables and book debts
instaliments as per repayment schedule given of Regency Hospital Limited | Bath present &
Delow future o WSH)
Year Aepayment 2. Flret and exclusive charge on fised &ssats
Till My 21 il (movable & mmovable) ncuding Land &
June 21 toMay 22 1% af TL with ifarest Buiding of Regsncy Hospital Limited | both
June 22to May 23 4% af TL with inferest current & fubure of MSH)
Jure 23 to May 24 5% ol TLwithinderest | 3. First & exclusive charge through equilable
June 24 toMay 25 &% ol TLwithintarest mortgage of Fegency Hospital Limited
June 25to May 26 Blool TLwithintarest | 4. Hypothecalion and axclugke charge on plant
June 260 May 27 S% of TLwith imarest & machinary & other assats of the company
June 27 to May 28 19% of TLwilh infarest 2 EHL—M?Hiacllrléﬂﬁmh;:umtﬂt-':ﬁumrr:‘J' oy
Juine 28 to May 29 19% ol TLwithinlergst | B-  DO-Applicancy/PRaronal giaranthe of Mr. Al
Jurie 29 ta May 30 24% of TLwith intarest W"W?”SFMD’EE::ETLWHH mm’;‘; ;“;
June 30 1% of TL with imerest Bk FRau T Toom - SomeEHy ana
promolars.

8. The custemer has 10 easu i ingurancs coves

HOFC Bank Limited 95.41 9985 | Loan With a Doos 1o Door tenure of 10.3 years agamst al risk on the aquipmant fmanced ,
Fepayment in 30 quarierty amiad Sructured The eald policy 1o be endorsed in the name of
instalmants as par repayment schaedule given HOFC Bank LimdadLid,

Eglow 7. Hedging of Fx exposuras as appointed by tha
Year Repayment bank, Genaral Insurance for all assats to ba
Till May 21 Ml liem marked in Taver of HDFC Bank
June 21 to May 22 1% of TL with imerest Limited Ltd. as the first loss payse &s
June 22 toMay 23 5% al TLwithinterest eppicable.
June 2310 May 24 &% ol TLwithimerest |8 Equitable morigage of residential as well as
June 2410 May 25 B of TL with Interest commercial property as manticnad balow:
June 2510 May 26 S% ol TLwith intgrest | 30 T170A-2 Sandodya Nagar, Kanpur
June 26t May 27 12% ol TLwith imerest | D) M{s Abhirev Healthcare Pyt Ltd,
June 27 b May 28 23% of TLwithinterast [emalgamated with Regency Hospial Lid)-
June 28 ta May 29 23% af TL withinferest V15190 R CIOUNIR 1RgRE faipu AP
June 23 to May 30 2Rt Thwithintsesst |8 TITHIN ook Kkades Hospi Fareus:
dy 113104, Swarmop Magar Karpure)

. Duration; 70 Equated Monthly instaiments | mum;iﬁaﬂ"ﬁf“m”mm' enana

HDFC Bank Limited 58.80 81.82 {EMis) beginning from 20 Dee 2013 (o 20 Sept L 1
2026 details as follows--3 EMIof T 226 million
on 20 Dec 2019 to 20 Fab 2020, -8 months
mofatorium  avaiked undar meliel  package
provided by RBIHrom March 20 i August 2020 -

&1 EMIoiT 2.26 million from 20 Sept 202010 20
Sapt 2026,
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2d4(a) Terms of repayment and security disclosure for the outstanding long term borrowings (including current
maturities of leng term borrowings) Secured term leans from banks

Meame of bank
Financial
Institution

Az at
31 March
2023

As at
31 March
2022

Repayment terms

Details of secwrity

HOFC Bank Limad

209

Dwraton: 30 Equated Monthly Instalments
(EMIag) bagimning from 20 Dec 2019 10 20 May
2022 datails as follows--1 EMIof T 5.29 million
on 20 Dec 2018 -2 EMIoI T 5.28 milian from 30
Jan 2020 o 20 Feb 2020, -B months
moralonum  avaded wunder elel package
provdided by RE| rom March 20 to August 2020 -
21 EMI A 5,23 million from 20ih Seplember
202010 201h May 2022,

HOFC Bank Limitad

Duration: 113 Months EMIE (Including 12
Maonths Moratorum) beginning from 20 Dec
2012 o 20 Aprl 2029 dotails are as lollows- 1
EMI of ¥ 0.83 millicn on 20 Dee 2020- 1 EMIof 7
0.85 milion on 20 Jan 2021- 3 EMI of T0.88
miionfrom 20 Fab 2021 to 20 April 2021, - 36
EMI= of T .88 million per month from 20 May
2029 bl 20 Apr 2020

HDFC Bank Limitad

28.67

27,562

Dwraton: 895 Months (includieg 12 Monihs
Maratarium) beginning from 20 February 20 to
20 Dec 2027 details are as follows- 1 EMI of
T 045 milllon on 20 Feb 2021 - 82 EMIz of
¥Fo.d6 million per month Baginming Irom 20
March 2021 1l 20 Dec 2027

HOFC Bank Limitad

0.04

11.07

Durabion: &1 Months beginning from 20 Dec
2019 10 20 April 2023 details are a3 follows- 3
EMI of T 0.90 million rom 20 Dec 2019 10 20
Fety 2027- G monihs moratorium avaded undear
relief package provided by R from March 20
o August 2020 - 32 EMIs of T 0.90 million par
manth bagenning fram 20 Sapt 2020 6l 20 Apnl
2023

HIOWC Bank Limited

Duwrabon: 115 EMEs (including 12 Months
Maratarium) beginning from 20 Jan 2020 to 20
Juby 2029 details as follows-:-103 EMI of T 0.05
million on 20 Jan 2021 1o 20 July 20249

HDFC Bank Limited

251

6,37

Dharation: 102 Monthe beginning from 05 July
2019 to 05 Dec 2027 details ars &5 loliows- 8
EnI of T0.08 million from 05 Juby 2019 to 05
Fel 3020 -6 montha moratorum availed under
rellef package provided by REI from March 20
e August 2020 - 26 EMIG of T 0,12 million per
i Baginaing rom 05 Sapt 2020 N 05 Ot
2022- 5 EMis of T0.20 milkon per maonth
bagining from 05 MNow 2032 HILOS Mear 2023- 56
EMIs of T 121 million par manth beginning from
05 Apr 2023 till 05 Noy 2027- 1 EMis of T0.08
milion par manth beginning on 05 Dec 2027

Indusind Bank "

61116

Loan With a Door to Door tenure of 7 years .
Repayment in 24 guartery ended structured
instalmenis as per repayment schedule ghen
below:

Year Repayment

Till Crac 200 Nl

2. Exclusive charge by way of equitables

1. Exclusive charge on tha medical aquipmant
and other moveble fied asssts (both presant
and fulure) in Oncelogy and Gastro Cenire

mortgage on lhe lard and bulldng of the
Onealogy and Gastre Cantra
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2d4(a) Terms of repayment and security disclosure for the outstanding long term borrowings (including current
maturities of leng term borrowings) Secured term leans from banks

Mame of bank As at Asat | panayment terma Datails of sacurity
Financial 31 March 31 March
Imstituticn 2023 2022
Jan 21 to Dac 21 7% of TLwith mberast | 3. Exclusive charge on a8l current assels {both
Jan 22 to Dec 22 10% 0l TL with interast presant & futuse) of Gncology and Gastro
Jan 23 o Des 23 13% of TLwith interest Cantre.
Jan 24 bo Das 24 13% of TL with irberast
Jam 250 Dec 25 13% of TLwith intarast
Jan 26 to Dac 26 34% of TLwith inlerast
. Loan With a Door to Door tenure of 10 yaars
Indusind Bank 42.79 | Bagaymentn 38 quanedy ended struclured
instalmeants 45 per rapayrmeant schedie ghven
Balow
Yoar Repaymaent
Till
Sapt 20 -Mil
Ccd 20 b Sep 21 I
af TLwith imterest
Oct 21 Iz Sep 22 2%
of TLwith in{erest
0122 o Sep 23 5%
of TL wilh interest
Ot 23 1o Sep 24 T
al TLwith interest
Oct24 1o Sep 25 3%
af TL with imleraest
QA 25 bo Sep 26 0%
of TLwith infarest
O 26 to Sep 27 195
of TL with interést
Ot 27 o Sep 28 19%
ol TLwith interast
Ot 28 ko Sep 20 27%
of TLwith inferast
Duralion: 60 Manths (including 12 Months Extension of Second Ranking Chargs over
HOFC Bank Limited a4 77 12225 | Moratorum). Equated Monthly Instalmants axisting primary and colfateral  securities
(EMIs) of 3.05 milian per month beginning Including morgepes created in favourod Bank,
from 07 Fab 2022 (0 20 Jan 2026
r
HOFE Bank Limisd 137.83 17761 | Duration: 60 Months (including 12 Months Eﬂj}f&”%ﬁ:ﬁiﬂ?ﬁﬂ:ﬂﬁ v
Moratorium), Equated Maonfhly  Instalments inchuding mergages creatad in favsirod Bank
{EMIg) of ¥4.44 millicn per month beginning
frcem OF Feh 20224l 20 Jan 2026
. . | Dweration: 79 Months EMlz beginning from 20 1. First and asclusive charge on all cumani
EIREL Rani L) Wow 20200 20 April 2027 detsils are as follows- assets {Stock, consumables and book debis
1TEMI T 0,11 millllon on 20 Mow 2020- 3 EMI of of Regency Hosgital Limited | Both predent &
¥ (.42 millom frgen 20 Dec 2020 ko 20 Feb 2021 - " ::LHU:E;LMSH? e o -
1 EMIof £ 0.50 million [rem 20 March 2021, - 1 s el T MRET - Bim
EMI of 2 0,80 millicn on 20 April 2021- 73 EMIs g‘;mnfnggm“m‘wm"ﬁm mﬂ“:ﬂ;
Zfﬂ;;l&ﬂ million from 20 May 2021 @l 20 Apr Currant & futiire of MSH)
3. First B eclusive charge throagh equitable
mortgage of Aegency Hospital Limited
4. Hypolhecaton and exclusive chame on plant
& machnary & other assets of the company
AHL-MSH factity { Both current & [utura )
5 Coe-applicancyPersenal guarantes of M. And
Kapoor and Mrs. Rashm Kapoor and M. 4R
Kapoor *. SPDC with 51 for all activites as per
bank. reguirement lrom  company  and
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24{a) Terms of repayment and security disclosure for the outstanding long term borrowings (including current
maturities of leng term borrowings) Secured term leans from banks

Name: of bank As at ASA | gapsyment terms Dietails of security
Financial 31 March 31 March
Institution 2023 2022
promolass.
B The customer has o eRSUre insurance cower
mgainsEt all nsk on the squipmant financad.
The sakd pallcy to be endorsed |n the name of
HDFC Bank LimiadLid
7. Hedging of Fx exposures a5 appointed by the
bark, Genaral Insprance lor all assets o be
lien maned in fevor of HOFG Bank Limited
Litd as the first loga payes a8 apicanis.
8 Equitahle maortgage of residential as wall as
commercial property as mantionad below!
&l 1171A-2 Sarvodva Nagar, Kangur
b Mis Abhirev Healthoars Pvt Lid.
{emalgamated with Regency Hosphal Lid -
1171138 B-2 Sarvodaya Nagar Kanpur LIP
ch NP, K-Block Kakaden Hospital Kanpur,
P
dl 1137104, Swaroop Msgar Kanpyr
a] Plot Mo VPS Ambedhkarpuram, Scheme No
3, Katyangpiar, Kenpur
Axis Bank A8 611,16 | Todal Tenure 7 ¥rs, & Monthsinterest payment | Primary.-
o s ad on menihty basis Principal Flepavr?m};t a7 | ‘Exclusive charge on all tha present and future
Quartary Instalments as below:. 2 gquarterly | CUTent asaets of Dncology & Gastro unf.
i i A ‘Exciugivn chargo on al she madicy aquipmeant
insdalments of As. .00 milien Starting from and olher mioviable ixed asssts, preasnt and fubute
_SEII.EIE 2022 1o 30.03.20_2.2- 4 q.uartcriy in Oncalogy & Geslrounit :
instalments of As. 7.50 milion starting M | coaseeal Exciusive: chargs by the way of
31122022 fo 30.0%.2023- 4 quantery | .o ahls mortagage of commercial property-
instalments of As. 10.50 million starbng from | jaemad ar A-4, Sarvadays negar Oncology &
W A2.2023 to 30,09.2024- 4 quarterdy | Gastro unit Kanpur magar Uttar-Pradesh (208005}
instalments of Rs. 12.00 million staing rom | Comapny to maintain  minimum  coliateral
31122024 1o 30.09.2025- 4 quartery | coverage ol 42 50% thoughout the tenar of Baility.
mgdalments of As. 15.00 million starting from | Shortadl, f any. o be made good by way of
31122025 to 30,03.2028- 4 quarterdy |addibonal colisieral sacunly acceplabie io the
instalments ol As. 30.00 milion staring from | bank,
3112202610 30,08, 2027 Guarantore.-
a1 Mr, Al Kapoos
b1 Mrs. Rashmi Kapoor
Axis Bank 3503 4270 | Total Te Frimery
L : nure 5 Yrs, 9 Months Inferest payment *Exciusive charge on all the present and future
on monthly basis Principal Repayrmont 23 current assits of Dncology 8 Gukstro i
Quarterly Instalments as belew:- 15 quarerly | g, o0 chargs on all the madical squipmant
ingtalments of Bs 1.94 milion starting om | 500 ke movabls iked assels, presant and utone
30062022 10 31.12.2025- 3 quarterly in Oncology & Gastro it
instalments of Fs. 2.25 milion starting from | &ollateral Exciusive. charge by the way of
31.03.2026 1o 30.02.2026- § quartery | aquitable mortagage of commercial propay-
nstalments of Bs 1.39 millien starting fom | located at A-d, Sarvodaya nagar Oncology 4
12202610 31 12,2027 Gasiro unit Kanpur nagar Uttar-Fradesh (206005}
Comaprny o maintain minimum ooliateral
coverage of 42.50% thoughout the tenor of facility.
Shordall, If any. 10 be made good by way of
additional collateral secunty accaptabla fo the
bank.
Guaraniars -
al Wr. At Kapoor
by krs. Rashml Kapoor
HOFC Bank Limied nazy 1543 Duration: 8 years and 4 months beginning from |4 groy sy actusive charge on &8 cusant
20 Jay 281 3 20 AP RO YeAllY |10 assets of Aegency Hospital Limited,
repayment schedule-- 2. Firstand exclusive charge on all presant and
Yoar Loan ropaymants future flved assels (movable & immovabie]
2021-22 0.26 million aucludng assets  spocfically charged o
2022-23 4,01 millin othars lender.
2023-24 BBBmillon |3 Hypothecation and sxclusva charga an plant
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2d4(a) Terms of repayment and security disclosure for the outstanding long term borrowings (including current
maturities of leng term borrowings) Secured term leans from banks

Mame of bank As at Asat | Repayment terms Deetalls of security
Financial 31 March 31 March
Imstituticn 2023 2022
2024.25 10,75 million & machinery & oler assels of the company
202526 20,66 million (kb current and fulure)
HPE-27 S0.5Emilleon | 4. Personal guaranies of Mr. Atul Kapoor and
o728 22,84 million Mrs. Rashmi Kapoor and Mr. AR, Kapoos
IPE-29 29,26 milian | 9. Emntable mortgage of residential as well as
commencial propery a8 manticned balow:
) TI7A-2 Sarvadya Magar, Kanpur
by 117138 8-2 Sarvodya Magar, Kanpur
ch 117H0, K-Biock Kakadeo Hospital Kanpur,
LIP*
HEFC Bark Limiled s0.01 FI7 | puration- 10 years beginaing from 20
Fob 2022 1020 Dec 2030
-First Instaiment of As.0.07 millkon on
20,02.2022
“Twr Instalments of As 040 milon on
20,03, 2022 and 20.4,2022
Twr Instaiments of As. 050 milion on
20,05, 2022 and 20.6.2022
“Tw instalments of Bs. 057 milkon on
2072032 10 20.8.2022
~Two nstalments of RAs. 058 milon on
20.9.2022 W0 20.10.2022
One Instalments of As. D78 milion on
20,11.2022
“One nstatments of RS 083 million on
20,12.2022
T instalments of Rs, 086 milkon on
20,01, 2023 10 20.02.2023
24 nEalments ol RS, A7 millienon 2003, 2023
to20.12.2030
ok Duradioe- & years ardd 10 months begimnin
-First Instalment of As, 012 milien on
201712020
Five Instalments of Bs0.42 million on
20,12, 2020 and 20,4, 2021
Four Ingtalments of As. 052 milion on
20,05,2027 and 20082021
One Instabment of As. 0.5% million on
20,09.2021
“One Instalment o As. 070 millien an
20102021
“One Instatment of As. 0.72 millien on
20,11.2021
11 Moathly instaiments of Rs 0.83 million
sharting from 20, 12,2021 1o 20,10,2022
57 Monthly instalments ol Bs. .44 million
starting from 20,11 2022 to 20072027
“One Instatment of As. 0.82 millign on
20,08.3027
i =TI Secured by way of charge on vehicks on vehicla
HOFC Bark Lirmibed .04 1.38 En:ﬁ:“m e Inatamants: (EhMa. oF .00 fimancead through loan taciity.
{Wehicle Loan)
Kotak Mahinra 12.48 1125 | Eguated Monihly Instalments (EMi) ranging Ef:ﬁ;‘;jﬁ;;;ifg’agg‘gﬁ;*“ Eoriochstthaliid
Prime Limided from T 02 million parmonthitoT 0.11 million
{Wahiche Loan)-
Loan fram NBFC
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Total-A 1,566.82 2,379.38

Currant maturities 23818 BE9.86
of long term debt

Total-B 1.328.63 1,489.53

* MrAnant Ram Kapoor has thus deceased on 10th December, 2021.

The above loans camy an interest rate ranging from 6.00 % p.a. to 9.25% p.a. (previous year 6.10% p.a. to 8.40% p.a).

24{a)  Security disclosure for the outstanding short term borrowings (including working capital facilities)

Mame of bank Asat Asat | Details ol security
31 March 31 March
2023 2022
HOFC Bank 210,68 220,83 | 1.Exclusive change onLand & Building located at A-4, Sarnvodaya Magar, Kanpur.

2.Exclusive charge onall movable fixed and current assets (both present & future)

Az Bark 2587 4534 | Sameasabove

239.55 266,17

The above cash credit facilities carry an interest rate ranging from 6.00% p.a 109.25% p.a. (previous year5,.10% p.a. 1o 8.40%)

* Term loans and working capital facilities availed from Indusind Bank have been repaid on Tth April, 2022 and the charge thereon

has been duly satisfied.
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25

Other financial liabilities (non-current)

Annual Report 2022-23

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Sacurity deposit recened (unsecured, considerad good) 28.07 42.22
Creditors for capital goods - 1.00
28.07 43.22
Borrowings- Current
As at As at
3 March 2023 31 March 2022
Waorking capital loans * 238.55 26617
Currant maturities of fong-term debt 236.19 BE0.B6
477.74 1,156.03
“Refer note-24(a) for details.
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities
Long-term Lease liabilities Short-term Interest Total
borrowings {including borrowings
current maturities)
As at 31 March 2022 2,379.39 433.37 266.17 7.02 3,085.95
Cash flows:
Procesds 77.84 57.94 - - 135.78
Repayment of borrowings (830.40) (72.78) (26.62) (146.34) (1,136.14)
Payment of interest on lease obligation - {45.52) - 45.52)
Mon-cash: -
Interest expenses = 45.52 = 143.05 188.57
As at 31 March 2023 1,566.83 418.53 239.55 3.73 2.228.64
Long-term  Lease liabilities Short-term Interast Total
borrewings (including borrowings
current maturities)
As at 01 April 2021 1,804.29 490.38 126.61 4.30 2,425.58
Cash flows:
Proceeds 739.25 - 138.56 - a878.85
Repayment of barrowings (184.20) (68.60) - {132.497) (365.77)
Payment of interast on lease obligation - (51.05) - (51.08)
Mon-cash: -
Interest expenses - 51.06 - 135.69 186.74
Increase in lease Liability - 11.60 - - 11.60
As at 31 March 2022 2,379.38 433.38 26617 7.02 3,085.95
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Trade payables
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Outstanding dues of Micre Enterprises and Small Entarprises 7.5 4.40
Outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro Entarprises
and Small Enterprises 327 .66 273.00
335.17 277.40
Trade Payables Ageing Schedule
As on 31 March 2023
Particulars Outstanding for the following periods from the due date of payment
Less Than 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total
1 year 3 years
ia) MSME 7.51 - - - 7.51
ib) Others 323.51 2.82 0.52 0.81 327.66
Total 331.02 2.82 0.52 0.81 33547
Trade Payables Ageing Schedule
As on 31 March 2022
Particulars Outstanding for the following periods from the due date of payment
Less Than 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total
1 year 3 years
ia) MSME 4.40 - - - 4.40
ih) Others 261.44 8.61 2.26 0.59 273.00
Total 265.84 8.61 2.36 0.59 277.40

Dues to micro and small enterprises pursuant to section 22 of the Micro and Small Enterprises Development Act
{MSMED), 2006

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Madium Enterprises has issued an Office Memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which
racommends that Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with their customers the Entrepreneurs
Mamorandum number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum. Amount due fo entities coverad undar Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprisas as definad in tha Micra, Small, Medium Enterprises Developmeant Act, 2004, have baen idantified on the
basis of information available with the Company.

On the basis of confirmation cbtained from suppliers who have registered themsetves under the Micro, Small and Medium
Emerprises Developmant Acgt 2008 (MSMED Act, 2008) and based on the information available with the comgpany, the
lollowing are tha datails:

i) the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any

supplier asattha end of each accounting period; 7.51 4.40
i} Interest due thereon 0. 0.01
ifi) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16, along with

the amounts of the payment made to the supplierbeyond the appeointed day

during each accounting period; Interest accrued and due thereon remaining unpaid - -
i) the amaount of interest due and payable forthe period of delay in making

paymeant (which have been paid but beyond the appointaed day during the periad)

but without adding the interest specified under this Act; -
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v) the amount of Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each

accounting period; and

vi) the amount of futher interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding periods, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterprise, forthe purpose of disallowance as a
deductible expenditure under section 23.

Other financial liabilities (current)

Interast acorued but not due
Security deposit received
Creditor for capital goods
Consultant fee payable
Employee related payables

Other current liabilities

Advance from customears
Statutary duss
Other abilities

Provisions (current)

Provislon for employee benefits™
Gratuity
Compensated absences

*Refer note 41 for details.

Annual Report 2022-23

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
3.73 7.02
14.65 10,71
23.54 B2.11
114.58 B1.95
8715 7225
243.66 254.33
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
196.53 163.47
21.79 20,26
2.89 4,29
22120 TEE0Z
As at Az at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
0.8z 15.79
5.08 5.40
5.90 21.19
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N Revenue from operations
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Healthcare services 3,880.19 3,369.74
Pharmacy and surgical sales 341.86 2B65.44
Other Operating Receipts 22.50 917
4,244.55 3,644.35
32 Other income
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Interast income on
bank deposits 19.30 32.41
othars 1.75 6.78
Provisicn/liabilities no fonger required written back . 5.25
Profit on sale of mutual funds 1.08 298
Rental Income 12.73 15.81
Miscallaneous incoma 227 3.40
3r. 1 66.63
33 Cost of materials consumed
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Cpening stock 100.59 29118
Add : Purchases during the year 1,017.82 BEG.53
Less : Closing stock (118.51) (100.59)
Cost of materials consumed 999.90 B57.13
34 Employee benefit expenses
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Salaries, wages and bonus 639.51 528.01
Contribution to provident and other funds 22.89 18.56
Gratuity" 7.07 442
Staff welfare expenses 429 395
673.76 554.94
*Hefer note 41 for details.
35 Finance costs
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest expense on
lease obligations 45.52 51.05
term loans 12297 132.06
vehicle loans 112 1.09
working capital facilities 8.05 0.32
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a7

others
Other borrowing cost

Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Depreciation of property, plant and eguipment {refer note 5)
Depreciation on right of use asset (refer note )
Amartisation of intanglble assets (refer note 8)

Other expenses

Doctor and other professional feas
Power and fuel
Bill processing and collection charges
Hent
Repair and Maintenance

on plant and machinery

on building

on vehicles

on others
Insurance
Hates and taxes
Advertisemeant expensas
Travelling and conveyance
Communications
Medical service fea
House keeping expenses

Corporate social responsibilty expenses (refer note 49)

Legal and professional
Payment to Auditors *

Loss on sale /retirement of property, plant and equipment

Security expenses
Printing and stationary

Bad debts and provision for doubtful debts

Bank charges
Bank commission
Miscellaneous expenses

92

0.36 0.03
10,55 2.19
188.57 186.74
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
198.81 180.76
74.69 66.63
8.62 4.13
28212 261.52
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
961.35 B67.35
118.08 114.48
29.51 21.75
9.31 15.45
66.40 54.34
10.71 5.28
768 6.21
51.03 57.97
6.37 5.84
579 5.69
31.60 21.99
17.03 753
2.09 1.64
B3.89 81.81
10155 82.33
2.25 1.50
17.36 16.37
2.78 3.96
Q.82 1.56
25.64 22.67
2512 20.31
84.78 53.43
0.38 0.37
8.33 7.99
12.35 7.26
1,712147 1,485.08
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39

Notes:
* Payments to Auditors’

As Auditors
Statutory audit fee
Tax audit fes
Other services
Reimbursement of expenses

Tax expense

Current tax
Tax pertaining to earlier years
Deferred tax

Annual Report 2022-23

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

259 2.60
0.18 018

- 1.18
0.01 -
2.78 3.96

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
106.24 36.92
(6.34) »
32.61 52.95
132.51 89.87

The major compoenents of income tax expense and the reconciliation of expected tax expense based on the domestic
effective tax rate of the Company and the reported tax expense in profit or loss are as follows:

Accounting profit before income tax
Tax at the applicable rate of tax (25, 168%)

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable)
in calculating taxable income:

Mon-deductible expenses for tax purposes

Reversal of deflered tax assets not eligible for deduction
(including earlier year tax adjustments {net)}

Oithers

Impact of deferred tax on QCI

Unused tax losses and credits
Thera are no unused tax losses and unabsorbed depreciation

Earnings per equity share

a) Net profitf(loss) attributable to equity shareholders
b) Weighted average number of shares
&) Nominal value of shares
d) Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share

Ciluted earnings per share
93

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

425.14 368,57

106.99 92.01

0.58 0.38

23.54 -

012 016

1.28 (2.68)
132,51 89,87

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
283,91 273.02
14,042,779 14,042,779

10 10

20.93 19.44

20.93 19.44
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40 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
The Company provides various category of healthcare services, pharmacy, surgical, pathological and kitchen items.

Description of nature of goods sold
Pharmacy

Surgical, pathologlcal and kitchen items
Other miscellaneous consumable items

Description of nature of services rendered
Healthcare services

a. Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

The Company has performed a disaggregated analysis of revenues considering the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenues. This includes disclosure of revenues by geography and timing of recognition.
For the year ended 31 March 2023

Goods Services Total
Revenue by geography
Domestic 341.86 3,902.69 4,244 85
341.86 3,902.69 4,244.55
Revenue by time
Revenue recognised at point in time 341.86 - 341.86
Ravenue recognised over time 7 3,902.69 3,802.68
341.86 3,902.69 4,244.55

—_— -

For the year ended 31 March 2022

Goods Services Total
Revenue by geography
Domestic 265,44 3,378.91 3,644.95
265.44 3.378.81 3,644.35
Revenue by time
Revenue recognised at point in time 265.44 - 265.44
Revenue recognised over fime - 3.378.91 3.378.91
265.44 3,378.91 3,644.35
b. Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Aszsets
Contract assets
Unbilled revenue
Current 59.65 41.23
Advance from customers
Current 196.53 163.47
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c.

i)

41

411

41.2

(i)

Significant change in contract assets and liabilities
Unbilled revenue

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening balance 41.23 459
Revenue billed during the year {41.23) [45.91)
Additions during the year 59.65 41.23
Closing balance 59.65 41.23

Advance from customers

Faor the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening balance 163.47 113.56
Goods and services dalivered during the period [163.67) (89.88)
Advances received during the period 196.73 139.79
Closing balance 196.53 163.47

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Contract price 4,244 55 3,644.35
Less: Rebates and discounts - -
Revenue from contracts with customers 4,244.55 3,644.35

The Company has not incurred any cost for obtaining contracts except administrative cost required for preparation of
offers and the sama is charged to Statemeant of Profit and Loss.

Employee benefits
The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) - 18 on Employes Benefit as under:

Defined contribution plans
Provident fund

The Company also has certain defined contribution plans. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount
contributed and it has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation. The expense recognized during the period
towards defined contribition plan is $ 22,89 million (31 March 2022: F 18.56 milllon).

Defined benefit plans
Gratuity

The Company operates a gratuity plan wherein every employes is entitled to the benefit equivalent to 15 days of basic
salary last drawn for each completed year of service. Gratuity is payable to all eligible employees of the Company on
retirement or separation or death or permanent disablament in terms of the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act,
1972,

Amount recognized in the balance sheet is as under;

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current Non-current Current Mon-current
Gratuity 0.82 - 15.79 -
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(1i) Amount recognized in the statement of profit and loss and comprehensive income is as under:

Description

Current service cost

Met interest cost

MNet impact on profit (before tax)

Actuanal loss/{gain) recognized during the year
Amount recognized in total comprehensive income

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
6.56 4.31

0.52 0.1

7.08 4.42

{5.07) 10.65

2.01 15.07

{iii) Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation recognized in the balance sheet is as under:

Description

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the
start of the year

Current service cost

Interast cost

Actuarial loss((gain) recognized during the year
Empioyer contributions

Present value of defined benefit abligation as at the
end of the year

(v} Breakup of actuarial (gain)/loss:

Description

Actuarial loss/{gain) on arising frem change in
financial assumption

Return on plan assets less than discount rate
Actuarial (gain) on arising from experience adjustment
Total actuarial loss/{gain}

{v) Actuarial assumptions

Description

Discount rate

Future salary increasa

Expacted average remaining waorking
lives of employees (yoars)

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(15.79) {2.61)

(6.58) (4.31)

{0.52) (0.11)

5.07 (10.85)

16.97 1.88

(0.83) {15.79)

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
{0.83) {1.08)

0.45 0.05

(4.78) 11.67

{5.07) 10.64

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
0.07 0.07

0.05 0.05

Indian Assurad Lives
Maortality (2006-08)

Ultimate

Indian Assured Livas
Martality (2006-08)

Ultimata

Gratuity is payable to the employees on death or resignation or on retirement at the attainment of superannuation age- To
provide forthese eventualities, the Actuary has used Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08) ultimate tabla.

These assumptions ware developed by management with the assistance of independant actuarial appraisars. Discount
factors are determined close to each year-end by refarence to government bonds and that have terms to maturity
approximating 1o the terms of the related obligation, Other assumptions are based on management’s historical

experience,
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(vil} Sensitivity analysis for gratuity liability

Description
Impact of the change in discount rate
- Impact due to increase of 1 %

- Impact due to decrease of 1 %
Impact of the change in salary increase
- Impact dus to increase of 1 %

- Impact due to decrease of 1 %

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(3.76) (3.21)

4.48 3.83

4.30 3.69

(3.66) (3.16)

The above sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In
practice, this is unlikely to occur and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the
sensitivity of the defined banefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present valua of tha
defined benefil chiigation calculated with the projected unit cradit method at the end of the reporing period) has been
applied which was applied while calculating the defined benelit obligation recagnized in the balance shest,

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to prior

period.
(vill) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation
Description
Within next 12 months
Between 1-5 years
Beyond 5 years

B Compensated absences (unfunded)

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1.61 V.45

11.87 10.23

35.88 28.30

Theleave obligations cover the Company's liability for earned leaves. The Company does not have an unconditional right
to deter settlement for the obligation shown as current provision balance below, These are the amounts which have been

recognisad in the statement of profit and loss for the respective years.

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current | Non-current Current MNon-current
compensated absences {unfunded) 5.08 - 5.40 -

42 Financial instruments

i) Financial assets and liabilities

The carrying amounts of financial instruments by category measured at amortised cost®

Financial assets
Investments in Mutual Funds *
Trade receivables

Cashand cash equivalents
Otherbank balances

Other financial assets

Total

97

As at

31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

3.21 271.26
626.04 298,33
354,61 915.25

38.89 0.88
174.43 450.34
1,197.18 1,936.06
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Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Financial liabilities
Barrowings 1,806.37 264556
Lease liabilities 349.44 433.38
Trade payables 335147 277.40
Other financial liabilities 271.73 2097 .56
Total 2,762.68 3,653.90

Ii)

43

‘Investments in Mutual Funds are valued at FVTPL applying level 1 of valuation, remaining zll Financial assets and
Financial liabilities are valued at amortised cost.

Invastment in subsidiaries and associate are measurad at cost as per Ind AS 27, "Separate financial statements’ and
hence, not presented here.

Fair values hierarchy

The Company does not have any financial assets or finangial liabilities carried subsequently at fair value.

The fairvalue of financial instruments as refarred toin note (A) above has been classified into three categories depending
on the inputs used in the valuation technique. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilites [Level 1 measurements] and lowest priority 0 unobservable inputs [Level 3
measurements)].

The categories used are as follows:
Level 1; Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical instruments in an active market;

Level 2: Directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly {i.e. derived from prices) observable market inputs, other than Level 1 inputs:
and

Lewvel 3: Inputs which are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
Financial risk management

Risk Management

The Company's activities expose it fo market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. The Company's board of directors has
overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company risk management framework. This note
explains the sources of risk which the enfity is exposed to and how thie entity manages the risk and the related impact in
the fimancial statemants.

Risk Exposure arising from Measuremant Managemant

Credit risk Cash and cash equivalents,
trade receivables, financial
agsets measurad at amortised cost

Bank deposits, diversification of asset
hase, cradit limits and collateral,

Aging analysis

Liquidity rizk Borrowings and other labilities  Rolling cash flow forecasts Avallabily of committed credil linas and

borrowing facilities

Market nsk-foreign  Recognised linancial assets and  Cash flow forecasting
axchanga liabdlitizs not denominated in
Indlan rupea {INR}

Forward contracthadging, il required

The Company's nsk management is carried oul by a finance department (of the Company) under policies approved by
the board of directors. The board of directors provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as policies
covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, credit risk and investment of excess liguidity,
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a)

i

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty fails to discharge its obligation to the Company. The Company’s exposura to
credit risk is influenced mainly by cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and other financial assets measured at
amortised cost, The Company continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties and incorporatas
this infermation into its credit risk controls,

Credit risk management

Credit risk rating

The Company assesses and manages credit risk based on internal credit rating system. Intermal credit rating is
performed for each class of financlal instrurments with different characteristics. The Company assigns the following credit
ratings to each class of financial assets based on the assumptions, inputs and factors specific to the class of financial
assets. (i) Low credit risk(il) Moderate credit risk(iil) High credit risk. Assets are written off when there is no reasonable
axpactation of recovary, such as a dabtor declaring bankruptcy or a litigation decided against the Company. The
Company continues 1o engage with parties whose balances are written off and attempts to enforce repayment.
Recoveries made ara recognized in statement of profit and loss.

Basis of categorisation Asset class exposed to credit risk Provision for expected credit loss
Low credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, othar bank 12 month expeacted credit loss,
balances, loans and other financial assets

“Financial assels {other than trade receivables) that expose the entity to credit risk (gross exposure) —

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Low credit risk on financial reporting date

Cash and cash equivalents 354,61 815:25

Other bank balances 38.89 0.88

Other financial assets 174.43 450.34

* These represent gross carrying values of financial assets, without deduction for expected credit losses

Cash and cash egquivalents and bank deposits

Credit risk related to cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits is managed by only accepting highly rated banks and
diversifying bank deposits and accounts in different banks across the country.

Loans and other financial assets measured at amortized cost

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost includes secunty deposits, lease recelvables, deposits with rernaining
maturity more than 12 months, accrued revenue and others. Credit risk related to these other financial assets is managed
by monitoring the recoverability of such amounts continuously, while at the same time intemal control system in place
ensura the amounts are within defined limits.

Trade receivables

Life time expected credit loss is provided for trade receivables. Based on business environment in which the Company
operates, a default on a financial asset is considered when the counter party fails to make payments within the agreed
time period as par contract. Loss rates reflecting defauits are based on actual credit loss experience and considering
differences between current and historical economic conditions. Assets are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery, such as a debtor declaring bankruptcy or a litigation decided against the Company. The
Company continues to engage with paries whose balances are written off and attempts to enforce repayment,
Recoveries made are recognised in statement of profit and loss. The Company recognizes lifetime expected cradit losses
on trade receivables using & simplified approach, whergin Company has defined percentage of provision by analysing
historical trend of default relevant to each business segment based on the criteria defined above and such provision
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b)

0]

percentage determined have been considered to recognise life time expected credit losses on trade receivables (other
than those where default criteria are met in which case the full expected loss against the amount recovarable is provided
far).

Expected credit losses for financial assels

As at Estimated gross carrying Expected credit Carrying amount
31 March 2023 amount at default losses  netof impairment

provision
Cash and cash equivalents 354,61 . 354 61
Other bank balances 38.89 - 38.80
Trade receivables 70082 (74.88) G26.04
Other financial assets 174.43 5 174.43
As at Estimated gross carrying Expected credit Carrying amount
31 March 2022 amount at default losses  net of impairment

provision
Cash and cash equivalents 915,25 - 915.25
Othar bank balances 0.88 - (.88
Trade receivables 346.20 (47.87) 298.33
Other financial assets 450.34 - 450.34
Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is tha risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the cbligations associated with its financial
[abilities that are seitled by delivering cash or ancther financial asset,

The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liguidity to meet
its liabifities when they are due.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity positicn and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of
expected cash flows. The Company takes into account the liguidity of the market in which the entity operates.

Maturities of financial liabilities

The tables below analyse the Company’s financial liabilties into relevant maturity based on their contractual maturities
far all non-derivative financial liabilities.

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscountad cash flows, Balances due within 12 months equal
their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

As at 31 March 2023 Less than 1 year 1-5 years More than 5 years Total
Lease liabilities 69.40 288.43 80.70 418.53
Borrowings 477.74 097.95 33068  1,808.37
Trade payables 33517 > - 33517
Other financial liabilities 243.68 28.07 - 271.73
Total 1,125.97 1,314.45 391.38  2,831.80
As at 31 March 2022 Less than 1 year 1-5 years More than 5 years Total
Lease liahilities 69.48 248.27 115.62 433.38
Bormowings 1,156.03 943.67 54586 264556
Trade payables 277.40 - = 27740
Other financial liabilitias 254 34 43.22 . 297.56
Total 1,757.26 1,235.16 661.48  3,653.90
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
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a)

(i}

market prices. [t comprisas of currency nsk, interest rate risk and price risk. The Company does not have any borrowings
which carry variable rate of interest, hence, it is not exposed to interest rate risk. The Company does not have any
financial instrument which exposeas i to price nsk.

Foreign currency risk

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions, primarily with respect to the
US Dollar, EURQ, Singapore Dollar (SGD), Canadian Dollar (CAD) and GBF. Foreign exchange risk arises from
recognised assets and liabiliies denominated in a currency that is not the functional currency of the Company.
Considering the volume of foreign currency transactions, the Company's exposure to foreign currency risk is limited and
the Company has taken forward contracts to manage its exposure. The Company does not hedge theses foreign
currency exposures by a derlvative instrument or otherwise.

Foreign currency risk exposure in USD:
The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period (unhedged) are as follows:

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(Amount in T millien) (Amount in T million)

Payables - 6.22
MNet exposure 1o foreign currency rsk (Habilities) - 6.22
Value in USD - 0.09
Exchange rate (INR per USD) - 69.11
Sensitivity

The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated
financial instruments.

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

USD sensitivity

INRAJSD- increase by 5% - 0.31

INR/USD- decrease by 5% - (0.31)

* Holding all other variables consiant

Capital management

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the carrying ameunt of equity less cash and cash eqguivalents as presented
on the face of balance sheet.

The Company's capital includes issued share capital and all other distributable reserves. The primary objective of the
Company's capital management is to maximize shareholder value and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the costof capital. The Company has long-term and short term borrowings .

Debt equity ratio

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Total Debt* 1,806.37 2,645.56

Total equity 2,040.99 1.743.29

Net debt to equity ratio 0.89 152

* Dabt includes long-term and short term borrowings
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45

Lease related disclosures

The Company has leases for land and office premises. With the exception of shori-term lease underlying assets, each
lease is reflected on the balance sheet as a right-of-use asset and a lease liabifity as a borrowings, Variable lease
payments which do not depend on an index or a rate are excluded from the initial measurament of the lease liability and
right of use assets. The Company classifies its right-of-use assets in a consistent manner 1o its property, plant and
eguipment.

Each lease generally iImposes a restriction that, unless there is a contractual right for the Company 1o sublaase the assetl
to another party, the right-of-use asset can only be used by the Company. Some leases contain an option to extend the
lease for a further term. The Company is prohibited from selling or pladging the underlying leased assets as security. For
leases over pramises, the Company must keep those properties in a good state of repair and return the properties in their
original condition at the end of the lease. Further, the Company is required to pay maintenanca fees in accordance with
the lease contracts.

Lease payments not inciuded in measurement of lease liability
The expense relating to payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability is as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Short-term leases 8.31 15.45
Total 9.31 15.45

Total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31 March 2023 was ¥ 118.30 million (31 March 2022: ¥ 110.66
million)

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabiliies {included under borrowings) and the movements during the
year

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening balance 433.37 490.38
Additions 57.04 11.60
Aecretion of interest 45 52 51.05
Payments {118.30) (119.65)
Closing balance 418.53 433.38

D Maturity of leasa liabilities

The lease liabilities are secured by the related underlying assets. Futura minimum lease payments were as follows:

31 March 2023 Minimum lease payments due

Within 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Lease paymenis 69,40 72.11 72.95 240,07 | 418.53
Total 69.40 7211 72.95 204.07 | 418.53

31 March 2022 Minimum lease payments due

Within 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years | Total

Lease payments 69.49 60.07 60.94 24288 |433.38

Total 69.49 60.07 60.94 24288 |433.38
E Variable lease payments are expensed in the perod they are incurred. Expected future cash outflow as at 31 March 2023

isof T Mil
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F Information about extension and termination options.
Right of use assets Number of Range of Average Number of | Number of | Number of
leases | remaining term remaining leases with |leases with | leases with
{In months) | lease term extension purchase |termination
{In months) option option option
Property leases 14 2-87 34.71 10.00 - 10.00
G The total future cash outflows as at 31 March 2023 for leases that had not yet commenced is of ¥ nil {31 March 2022
Z nil),
H Current and non-current balances
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current 69,12 69.49
MNon-current 349,44 363.80
Total 418.53 433.38
| As alassor

Operating leases

The Company has leased some of its pramises to third parties under the lease agreements that qualifies as operating
lease. Rental income for operating leases for the years ended on 31 March, 2023 and 31 March, 2022 aggregate fo
T12.73millionand T 15.81 million,

103




f&kﬁmmw
HEALTH Annual Report 2022-23

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
{(All amounts are inT million, uniess stated otherwise)

48
a)

b)

Related party transactions

Related parties and nature of the relationship where control exists, irrespective of whether or not there have
been transactions between the related parties:

Subsidiary company

Sibling Lifecare Private Limited

Regency Institute of Nursing

Other related parties and nature of the relationship with whom transactions have taken place during the
year:

Key management personnel

Dr, Atul Kapoor (Managing Diractor)

Dr. Rashmi Kapoor (Whole-time Directorn)

Mr. Rajesh Shroff (Chief Financial Officer)

Ms. Ankita Gupta (Company Secretary upto 25th March, 2023)
Mr. Anil Kumar Khemka (Non Executive Director)

Mr. Rabindra Nath Mohanty (Mon Executive Director)

Mr. Charles Antoine Janssen (Mon Executive Director)

Mr Arun Shrivastava (Mon Executive Diractor)

s, Tanushree Shyam Bagrodia (Mon Executive Director)

Relatives of KMP and relationship
Late Mr. Anant Ram Kapoor

(hence deceasad on 10th December, 2021) - Father of Dr. Atul Kapoor
Mr. Arun Kapoor - Brother of Dr. Atul Kapoor
Mr. Abhishek Kapoor - Son of Dr. Atul Kapoor
and Dr Rashmi Kapoor
Mrs, Jahnvi Kapoor - Wife of Mr. Abhishek Kapoor
Associate Company Regency Nephrocare Private Limited
Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by KMP Amrita Charitable Trust
or their relatives Indcoat Footwear

Transactions with related parties are summarized below:

Mature of transactions For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Lease rent income - from building

Regency Nephrocare Private Limited 7.20 8.10

Regency Institute of Mursing 4.29 496

Maintenance service for building
Hegency Maphrocare Private Limited 018 021

Healthcare services rendered
Employees of Indcoat footwear 12.38

Fee tor medical services received
Fegency Mephrocare Private Limited 83.89 81.81
Dr. Rashmi Kapoaor 16.81 16.54
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Share in investigation charges

Dr. Rashmi Kapoor 3.60 3.60
Purchases
Sibling Lifecare Private Limited 54074 421.71

Lease rent expense

- Late Mr. Anant Ram Kapoor - 6.78
- Dir. Atul Kapoor 4.02 0.96
- Dr. Rashmi Kapoor 3.80 3.80
- Shri Arun Kapoor 4.02 0.98

Payments made on behalf of
-Regency Mephrocare Private Limited 3 0.56
-Regency Institute of Mursing 0.36 0.30

Carporate social responsibility expenses
- Amrita Charitable Trust 225 1.50

Remuneration

- 0. Atul Kapoor 12.45 12.00
- Dr. Rashmi Kapoor 9.47 9.47
= M, Arun Kapoor 1.40 2.49
- Mr. Abhishek Kapoor 6.63 6.63
- Mrs. Janhvi Kapoor 1.85 1.44
- Mr. Rajesh Shroff 5.10 2.20
- Ms. Ankita Gupta 1.1 0.97
Mature of transactions For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Sitting fees
Mr. Anil Kumar Khemka 0.26 018
Mr. Rabindra Math Mohanty 0.26 0.21
Mr. Charles Antoine Janssen .06 0.06
Mr Arun Shrivastava 0.18 015
Ms. Tanushree Shyarm Bagrodia 0.03 0.08
d) Outstanding balances as at the year end
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Payables
Payable for medical services received
- O, Rashmi Kapoor 2.85 1.67
- Regency Mephrocare Private Limited 21.07 20.00
Salary Payable
- Dr. Atul Kapoor 0.93 0.52
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- Dr. Rashmi Kapoor

- Mr. Arun Kapoor

- Mr, Abhishek Kapoor
- Mrs. Janhvi Kapoor

Payable for purchase of pharmacy and surgical items
-Sibling Lifecare Private Limited

Payable for fees received on behalf of
- Regency Institute of Nursing

Receivables
Rent receivable
- Regency Mephrocare Private Limited

Healthcare services
- Employees of Indcoat Footwear

Security deposit receivable
- D. Rashimi Kapaor

Investments in equity shares

- Regency Mephrocare Privale limited
- Sibling Lifecare Private Limited

- Regency Institute of Nursing

0.75

.53
Q.16

170.74

214

12.38

5.83

14.21
010
1.00

0.88
0.23
0.48
0.13

111.37

2.3

2.04

5.83

14.21
0.0
1.00

Certain KMPs also participate in post employment benafits plans provided by the Company. The amount in respect of
these towards the KMPs can not be segregated as these are based on acturial valuation for all the employees of the

Company.

e) Other arrangements

Personal guarantee given by Dr. Atul Kapoor and Dr. Rashmi Kapoor for loans the outstanding balance as on 31 March
2023 of whichis T 1,298.87 million (31 March 2022: T 1,385.99 million) obtained by the Company from various banks.

Personal guarantees have bean given by Mr. Anant Ram Kapoor for loans obtained by the Company from HOFG

Bank againstwhich the balance outstanding as at 31 March, 2023 s NIL (31 March, 2022; 3 732.04 miilion ).

Corporate Guarantee given by the company for Hegency School of Nursing for loans from HDFC bank the
outstanding balance as on 31 March 2023 of which is® 2849 million (31 March 2022:3 NIL).
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The schedule of provisions as reguired 1o be disclosed In compliance with Ind AS 37 on "Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets” isas under:

Particulars Contingent liabilities
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Claims against the Cormpany not acknowledged

as debt [refer note (i) below] 46.90 43.53
Disputed demand of Gustoms Departmant [refar

note (i) below] 1.92 1.82
Bank guarantee furnished to Director, CGHS and ECHS,

Railways and Regency Institute of Nursing 5.96 8.26
Loan outstanding against Corporate Guarantee given by the

company for Hegency Institute of Nursing 29.49 -
Bonus [refer note (i) below] 3.60 3.50
Income taxes (Assessment year 2020-21) 1.56 -
Inland letter of credit - 4.88
Closing balance at the end of year 92.33 62.09
Note

(i) Includes total amount of claims under various legal cases alleging medical negligence against the hospital as on 31
March 2023 is T 40.63 milllon (previous year T 41.68 million). The Company has faken professional indemnity insurance
policy for all cases and basis this professional indemnity policy and historical trend of settlermeant in this matter
management is confident that noliability is likely to devolve on tha Company.,

(i} The Company had deposited an amount of ¥ 1.92 millien (being 50% of disputed amount of T 3.85 million) under
protest with the Commissioner of Custom (Import and general) in accordance with the order dated 05 February 2007
passed by Hon'bie Allahabad high coun, which had been written off in tha previous financial years.

(il The Payment of Bonus {(Ameandment) Act, 2015 dated 31 December 2015 (which was made elective from 01 April
2014) revised the thresholds for coverage of eamployeas aligible for bonus and also enhanced the cailing limits for
computation of bonus. Howevar, taking cognizance of the stay granted by various High Courts and pending disposal of
such matter, the Company has not recognized the differential amount of bonus off T 2,50 million for the pericd 1 April 2014
to 31 March 2015 and accordingly has recognized the expense in accordance with the Payment of Bonus (Amendment)
Act. 2015 w.ef. 1 April 2015 and onwards.

(v} Interest and claims by customers, suppliers, lenders and employees may be payable as and when the cutcomea of tha
related matters are finally determined and hence have not been included above. Management based on legal advice and
historical trends, belleves thal no material liakility will devolve on the Company in respect of these matters.

# The Hon'ble Supreme Court of India pronounced a ruling dated 28 February 2019 in which it was held that "alliowance’
paid to employees, will be included in scope of 'hasic wages' and thus, will be subject to provident fund contributions.
Management believes that this will not result in any material liability on the Company which is also the view of a PF
consultant engaged by the management.
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48

A

49

Commitments:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Estimated amount of contracts remaining fo be exacuted on account

of capital commitments (nat of capital advances) 892.30 21.57
Lease commitments under non-cancellable

lease arrangements - -

In accordance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company had
constituted a Corporale Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee. The details of CSR expenditure are summarised below:;

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

(a) Amount required 1o be spant on C3R as per Section 135 of the

Companies Act, 2013 2.22 1.03
(b) Amount of expenditure incurred 225 1.50
ic) Shortfall at the end of the year - .
(d) Total of previous year shortfall - -

&) Reason far shortfall MLA. MLAL
if} Mature of CER Activities Education Education
(g) Details of related party transactions Amrita Charitable Amrita Charitabla

Trust - Hs. 2.25 million  Trust - Rs. 1.5 million
(h) Liability against contractual obligations for C5R - -
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50 Ratio analysis
ﬁhl Particulars MNumerator Denominator = -H::;;lg‘:f:ﬁrrzz G{};‘ayi Reason for Variance
1 Dbt Equity Ratic Tatal Sharsholders’ total 088 1.52 2% This is due to decraase in debt by 32%
Debte=Borrowings+ | aquily whilaincreasein shareholders” aquity by
Leass Liabilities 18%
Earnings available | papt 17 Raa: There was B8 substential incegss n
€' | HentBaryion Lovacmgs Halo for debt sanaceslnlarest & s g e Principal repaymeant and Interest there
service=Net profit | jpage on by approx, 163%, leaging 1o
after taxss + Mon paymants. prncipal decreaae in DSCH
CREN operating repaymants
Bxpendses
3 | Gurrent Ratio Tatal Curent Total Current 0.93 0.85 ] Refer note 1 balow
HAEsals Liahilitieg
4 | Trade recaivabie REW':"'E from Average trade 4.659 4.42 5% Refer note 1 balow
fumaver ratio bl receivabies
Fevanue from
5 | Invantory Turmaover gty Average mventory A.34 786 5% Refernate 1 balow
ket profit after
& | Ned Profit Ratio b Tatal Revenus f.BE% T.36% T Refernote 1 balow
Purchases This 15 due to ncrease In purchagse by
7 | Trade payabia lumover ratico Average trade 0.78 T8 8% 17 whereas decrease in avarage (rade
payabie payakhe by 5%
Revenue fram aperations has increased
: ; Working by BE%Y and working ocapifal was a
a Met ftal i
- S HE"'B'ET"”E M capital=Current e e asge, | nogative of -Rs28 crore kst year as
AReraRend assets-Curren 268 (4.09) compared to ~Fs 9 crore in the current
liakwlities AT,
This 1= due to increase in profit m FY
9 | Aatum on Capital Employed  |Eamings before Capital 2022-23 by 22%, Earnings before
interest and 18285 | amploved=Tangibis 15.45% [12.32% agm Interest and taxes has increased by 15
net worth+totad %. Howaver, Capital Employed
dekhis decreased by -11%.
10 | Ratum on Equity et profit afier Averags shars
taxss hotdars’ equity 1550%  |1s.95% Py Rafier note 1 balow
Mgt peolit alter Feturn Trom mvestrnants (profil on sale
11 | Retum on Investment |
Toils ! of mutual funds) has decreased
(EREE ol Assels n B 1 656 B

congilarably (865 0 the currant yeaar
8z compargd o the previous year
wharaas ihe '&'-'ﬂi"&gﬂ wvEsiments wWas
almaost the same.

Mote 1:- There is no significant change (25% or more) in financial year 2022-23 in comparison to financial year 2021-22.
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MNotes to the
Summary of

Standalone Financial Statements
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are inT million, unless stated otherwiss)
5 Other Statutory Infarmation

{i)
(if)
(i)
(v}
(v)
i)
(i)
(il
(ix)
(x)
(xi)
(i)

i)

v}

Title deeds of Immovable Properies are in the name of the Company.

The Company does not have any Banami property and no proceedings have been initiated on or are pending
against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of
1988) and Rules made thereunder,

The Company has not been declared a "Wilful Defaulter” by any bank in accordance with the guidelines on willul
defaulters issuad by the Reserve Bank of India.

The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribad under clause (B87) of section 2 of the Act read with
Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies
(ROC) beyond the statutory period.

The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessmants under the Income Tax Act, 1361 (such
as, search orsurvay orany other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1861,

The Company has nottraded orinvested in crypio currency orvirtual currency during the current or previous year,
The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangibla
assets or bath during the current or previous year.

The Company did not have any fransactions with struck off companies under section 248 of the Companies Act,
2013 or gection 560 of Companies Act, 1958,

The Company has not entered into any schemea of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or
pravious financial year,

The Company had not granted any loans or advances in the nalure of loans to promoters, directors, KMPs and the
related parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with any other person.

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested {either from borrowad Tunds or share premium or any other
sources of kind of funds) any funds to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities
(“Intermedianes”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
directly or indirectly land or invest in othar persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the fike on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries,

The Company has not received any funds from any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“funding
parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities idsntified in any manner whatsoever by or on behall of the
funding parties ("Ultimate Beneficlaries”) or provide any guarantes, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

The Company has filed quarterly returns or statements of current assets with the banks in leu of the sanctioned
working capital facilities, which are in agreement with the books of accounts.

52 The figures of the cormesponding previous year have been regrouped wharever considered necassary to correspend o
cumment year disclosures.

53 Mo subsequent event cccumed post balance sheet date which requires adjustment in these standalone financial
statements forthe yearended 31 March 2023,

Fer Walker Chandiok & CoLLP Fir and an behall of the Board of Cinectors of
Charered Accountams Regency Hospltal Limited

Firm's Registration Mo, 001 076R/NE00013

Aaohit Arora Atul Kapoor Rashmi Kapoor
Parinar Managang Director Whala Time Director
Mambearship Mo; 504774 DiN; 01449228 DN G 818323
RAajesh Shrofi Kriti Miara

Chief Financial Officer Company Sacretary

Plage : Gurpsgram Place : Kanpur Plage : Kanpur
Drate = 15 Saptember 2023 Date: 15 September2023 Drate : 15 Septembar 2023

110




EGENCY
r&l'ﬁﬁﬁ‘” Annual Report 2022-23

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Regency Hospital Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion 4. The Holding Company's Board of Directors are
responsible for the other information. The other

We have audited the accompanying consolidated information comprises the |nf:::rmat|on included In:the

financial statements of Regency Hospital Limited ('the "E""”“ﬂ_'l Report, but does not '”dlfd’a e consalidated

Holding Company’) and its subsidiaries (the Holding financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as ‘the

Group’), its associate company, as listed in Annexure 1, Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statemants

which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 does not cover the other information and we do not

March 2023, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the I connection with our audit of the consolidated financial

Consolidated Statement of Changes m_Eqmty for 1I_'|e statements, our responsibility is to read the other

year then end_ed. ar_u:l notes to the mn&uhdamd_ﬁng_nmal information and, in doing so, consider wheather the other

slatemepts, m_uclludmg a summary of the significant information is materially inconsistent with the

accounting policies and other explanatory iInformation. consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears 1o be

I our opinion and to the best of our infermation and materially misstated.

according to the explanations given to us the aloresaid

conspludalel:l financial 5t§tements give .the '"ic’.rmﬂt'un The Annual Repon isnot made avaiiable to us at the date

required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) in the of this auditor's report. We have nothing to report in this

mannar 50 requirad and give a true and fair view in regard

conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind )

AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Fle:.-spansihltities 4f Mansgamant andl Mose Charg?d

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, with Governance for the Consolidated Financial

and ather accounting principles generally accepted In Statements

India of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group, its

associates and joint ventures, as at 31 March 2023, and 5 The accompanying consolidated financial statements

their consolidated profit (including other comprehensive
income), consolidated cash flows and the consolidated
changes in equity for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143{10) of
the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are
turther descnbed in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Staternents section of
our report, We are independent of the Group, and its
associate in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (1CAL)
together with the ethical reguirernents that are relevant to
our audit of the consolidated financial staternants under
the provisions of the Act and the rules theraundear, and wa
have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
far our opinion.

Information other than the Consolidated Financial
Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

11

nave been approved by the Holding Company’s Board of
Directors. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are
responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of
these consclidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position,
consolidated financial perdformance including  other
comprehensive incomea, consolidated changes in equity
and consolidated cash flows of the Group including fts
associales and joint ventures in accordance with the Ind
AS specified under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, Tha respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group and its associates and joint
ventures are responsible for maintenance of adeguate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularnties;
selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adeguate internal financial contrals,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the aceuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant fo
the praparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or error,




which have been used for the purpose of preparation of
the consolidated financial statements by the Board of
Diractors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statemeants, the
respective Board of Directors of the companies included
in the Group and of its associates and joint ventures are
responsible lor assessing the ability of the Group and of
its associates and joint ventures fo continue as a going
concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concem basis of
accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors are also responsible
for overseeing the financial reporting process of the
companies included in the Group and of its associates
and joint venturas.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consclidated financial statements as awhole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Heasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstaternents can arise from fraud or error and are
considered materal If, Individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statemeants.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on
Auditing specified undar section 143(10) of the Act we
exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit, We also.

Identify and assess the risks of materal misstatemeant of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraved or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a matenal misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
arror, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control;

Obtain an understanding of internal control refevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1)

11.
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of the Act we are also responsible for exprassing our
opinion on whether the Holding Company has adeguate
internal financial contrels with reference to financial
statements in place and the cperating effectiveness of
such controls;

Evaluate the appropriateness of ascounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management;

Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’
usa of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncerainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its
associates and joint venlures to continue s a going
concern. [f we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
wa are reguired to draw attention in our suditor's report to
the related disclosures in the financial statemants or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modity our apinian.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
futurs events or conditions may cause the Group and its
associales and Joint ventures to cease to continue as a
going concern; and

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whather the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information/ financial statements of the
entities or business activities within the Group, and its
associale, 1o express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audit of
financial statements of such entities included in the
financial statements, of which we are the indapendant
auditors.

We communicate with those charged with govemance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in intemal control that we
identify during our audit.

Other Matter

The consolidated financial statements also include the
Group's share of net profit (including other
comprenansive incomea) of 7 7.30 millions for the year
ended 31 March 2023, as considerad in the consolidated
finanmal statements, in respect of one associate, whose
financial statements has not been audited by us. These
financial statements are unaudited and have béen
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furnished to us by the management and our apinlon on
the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in
respect of the aforesaid associate, is based solely on
such unaudited financial statements. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us
by the management, these financial statements are not
material to the Group.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial
statements, and our report on other legal and regulatory
requirements below, gre not modified in respect of the
above matter with respact to our reliance on the financial
statements certified by the managemeant,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements

As required by section 197(16) of the Act based on our
audit, we report that the Holding Company incorporated
in India whose financial statements have been audited
under the Act have paid remuneration to their respective
directors during the year In accordance with the
provisions of and limits faid down under section 197 read
with Schadule V to the Act. The subsidiary companies
have not paid or provided for any managerial
remunaration during the year. Further, we report that the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act
are not applicable to associate company incorporated In
India whese financial statements have been audited
under the Act, since the associate company is not a public
company as defined under section 2(71) of the Act.

As reguired by clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 of Companias
{Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 {'tha Order') issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11)
of the Act based on the consideration of the Order reports
issued till date, of companias included in the consolidated
financial statements and coverad under the Act we report
that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks
reported in the respective Order reporis of such
companies. Further, following are the companies
included in the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2023 and covered under that Act
that are audited by us, for which the respective reports
under section 143{11) of the Act of such companies have
not yet been issued by us:

& Mo

Hame CIN Subsidiary! Associatel

Joint Venture

Regency Nephrooare
| Private Limited

UEE191UP20TSPTCOG8ATT | Associale

14,

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our
audit and other financial information of the subsidiaries
and asscciate companies incorporated in India whose
financial statements have bean audited under tha Act, we
report, tothe extent applicable, that:

a)

b)

c)

d)

a)

f)

a

Annual Report 2022-23

We have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of cur knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the
atorasaid consolidated financial statements;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law
relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements have been kept 5o far as it appears
from our examination of those books:;

The consolidated financial statements deaalt with by this
report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statemants;

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial
staternents comply with Ind AS specified under section
133 of the Act read with the Companias (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015;

On the basis of the written representations received from
the directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiary
companies and associate company and taken on record
by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its
subsidiary companies and associate company,
respectively, covered under the Act, none of the directors
of the Group companies and its associate company, are
disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from baing appeinted
as adirectorin terms of section 164{2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the intermal financial
controls with reference to financial statements of the
Holding Company. and its subsidiary companies and
assoclate company covered under the Act, and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in ‘Annexure A’ wherein we have
expressed a unmodified opinion; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the
Auditors Report in accordance with rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as
amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to
us:

The consolidated financial statements disclose the
impact of panding litigations on the consolidated financial
position of the Group, its associates and joint ventures as
detailed in MNote 48 to the consolidated financial
statements;

The Helding Company, its subsidiary companies and
associate company companies did not have any long-
term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31
March 2023;
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There were no amounts which were required to be
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Holding Company, and its subsidiary
companies and associate company covered under the
Act, during the year ended 31 March 2023,

Tha respective managemeants of the Halding Company
and its subsidiary companies, associate company
incorporated in India whosa financial statemants have
been audited under the Act have represented fo us
respectivaly that, to the best of their knowladge and belief
, as dizclosed in note 53(xil) to the consolidated financial
staterments, no funds have been advanced or loanéd or
invested (either from borrowed funds or securities
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Holding Company or ifs subsidiary companies, its
associate companies or ils joint venture companies fo or
in any persons or entities, including foreign entities (the
intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether
recorded In writing or otherwise, that the intermediary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Holding Company, or any such
subsidiary companies, its associate companias or its joint
venture companies ('the Ultimate Beneficlaries”) or
prowvide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

The respective managements of the Holding Company
and its subsidiary companies, associate companies and
joint venture companies incorporated in India whose
financial statements have been audited under the Act
have represented to us respectively that, to the best of
their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the note
53(xiil) to the accompanying consolidated financial
statements, no funds have been received by the Holding
Company or its subsidiary companies, or its associate
companies or its joint venture companies from any
persons or anfities, including foreign entities ('the
Funding Partigs’), with the understanding, whether
recorded in wrting or otherwise, that the Holding
Company, or any such subsidiary companies, its
associate companies orits joint venture companies shall,
whether diractly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Pary {(‘Ultimate
Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantes, security or the
like on behall of the Ultimate Benaficiaries: and

Based on such audit procedures performed by us, as
considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the management
representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) abowve
contain any material misstatement.

The Helding Company, its subsidiary companies,
associate companies and joint venture companies have
not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended
31 March 2023.

Vi,
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Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 requires all companies which use accounting
software for maintaining their books of account, to use
such an accounting software which has a feature of audit
trail, with effect from the financial year beginning on 1
April 2023 and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 [as
amended)is not applicable for the current financial year.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076M/MN500013

Rohit Arora

Partner

Membership Mo.: 504774
UDIN: 23504774BGTGSFO616

Place: Gurugram
Date: 15 September 2023

Annexure 1

List of entities included in the consolidated financial
statements
Mame of the Holding Company

1.

Regency Hospital Limited

Name of the Subsidiaries

1. Sibling Lifecare Private Limited
2. Regency Institute of Mursing
MName of the Associate
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Regency Nephrocare Private Limited




Annexure A

Independent Auditor’s report on the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of Regency Hospital Limited {‘the Holding
Company') and its subsidiaries ('the Holding Company’
and its subsidiaries together refamred to as "the Group®),
its associates as at and for the year ended 31 March
2023, we have avdited the internal financial contrals with
reference to consolidated financial statements of the
Holding Company, its subsidiary companies, which are
companias covered underthe Act, as atthat date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged
with Governance for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and its subsidiary companies, which are
companies covered under the Act, are responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Holding Company and its
subsidiary company considering the essential
components of intermnal control stated in Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Control over Financial
Reparting ('the Guidance Mote'} issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAl'Y. Theze
responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adaguate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of the Company's business, including
adherence o the Company’s policies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeneass of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act,

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal
Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
staternents of the Holding Company and its subsidiary
company, as aforesaid, based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing Issued by the ICAI and prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Act, 1o the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements, and the Guidance Note issued by
the ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Mote
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require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls with
referance to consolidated financial statements wers
establishad and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively inall material respeacts.

Owr avdit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls  with reference to consclidated financial
staterments and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements includes obtaining an undarstanding
of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that
a material weaknass exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of intemal control
based on the assessed risk, The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whather dua to fraud
Qr 2rror,

We balieve that the audit evidence wa have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for cur audit
opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements of the Holding
Company and [ts subsidiary company, as aforesald.

Meaning of Intermal Financial Controls with
Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of consclidated
financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements include those policies
and proceduras that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
refiect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of consolidated financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or limely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the consolidated
financial statements.
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inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls
with Reference to Ceonsclidated Financial
Statements

7. Because of the inherant limitations of intermal financial
controls  with reference to consolidated financial
staternents, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls with reference o consclidated
financial statements to future periods are subject to the
risk that intemal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policles or procedures may
detariorate,

Opinion

8.  Inour opinion the Holding Company, and its subsidiary
companias, which are companies covarad under the Act,
have in all maternal respects, adequate internal financial
controls  with reference 1o consolidated financial
statements and such controls were operating effectively
as at 31 March 2023, based on internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the company
considering the essential components of Internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over financial controls over financial reporting
{the "Guidance Mote") issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountant of India(* ICAI")

For Walker Chandiok & CoLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/NS00013

Rohit Arora

Partner

Membership Mo.: 504774
UDIN: 235047 74BGTGSFo616

Place: Gurugram
Date: 15 September 2023
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023
(Al amounts are in T million, unless stated otherwise)

Notes As at As at
31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
ASSETS
MNon-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5 2.928.02 200749
Right of use assel G 402.34 414.58
Capital work-in-progress 7 45921 90.90
Other intangible assets 8 12.78 9.08
Intangible assets under development g 6.32 6.67
Financial assefs
Investments 10 28.15 20.86
Other financial assets 11 115.18 406.93
Income tax assets (net) 12 39,24 B0.38
Other non-current assets 14 53.75 21.46
Total non-current assets 4,054.99 4,048.36
Current assets
Inventories 15 150.33 132.75
Financial assets
Investiments 16 3.21 27127
Trade receivables 17 62961 302.76
Cash and cash aguivalents 18 358.70 924 88
Other bank balances 19 44,96 4.93
Crher financial assets 20 59 65 4379
Other cumrent assets 21 51.17 39.85
Total current assets 1,297.63 1.720.01
Total assets 5,352.62 5,768.37
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 22 140.43 14043
Other equity 23 1.843.00 162525
Total equity 2,083.43 1,765.68
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 24 1.357.12 1.4581.06
Lease labilities 352.74 36410
Othar financial liabilities 25 28.95 4382
Deferred 1ax iabilities (net) 13 143.06 110.10
Total non-current liabilities 1,881.51 009,
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 26 480.26 1,156.41
Lease liabilities G958 TOET
Trade payvables 27
{2) tolal outstanding dues o micro and
small enferprises 19.95 6.03
(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other
than micro and small enterprises 333.07 288.39
Other financial liabilities 28 245.70 25586
Income tax liabilities (net) 29 0.91 273
Other current liabilities 30 231.39 182.19
Provisions n 6.12 21.23
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023

Summary of significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes are an integral par of the consolidated financial statements,

Notes As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Total current liabilities 1,387.28 1,993.51

Total liabilities 3,269.19 4,002.69

Total equity and liakilities 5,352.62 5,768.37
3

This is the Consolidated Balance Sheel referred (o in our report of even date,

For'Walker Chandick & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Ragistration Mo, SOT0TENMNE00013

Rohit Arora
Partner
Membsarship No: 504774

Place 1 Gurugram
Dt : 15 Septarmbar 2023
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Forand on behali of the Board of Directors of

Al Kapoar
Managing Diractor
DI 01440229

Rajesh Shroff
Chief Financial Officas

Place : Kanpur
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in ¥ millien, unless stated otherwise)

Far the For the
Notes year ended year anded
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Income
Revenua from oparations 32 4,280 52 3677.26
Other income a3 32.74 61.71
Total income 4,322.26 3,738.97
Expenses
Caost of materals consumed a4 989.57 B49.30
Employee benefit expenses 35 693,63 568.11
Finance costs as 188.96 187.03
Drepreciation and amortisation expenses a7 28367 262.89
Other expenses a8 1,723.61 1,494,758
Total expanses 3,879.44 3,362 11
Profit/(Loss) before tax and share of profit of
associate sccounted for using the eqguity method 442.82 376.86
Share of profit of associate accounted for using the aguity method 7.209 4.74
Profit/{Loss) before tax attributable to the shareholders
of the Parent company 450,11 381.60
Tax expense 39
Currant tax 110.44 40.14
Ingome tax relating to earlier year {5.94) Q.06
Delarrad tax 31.68 55.40
136.18 95.60
Profit/{Loss) for the year attributable to the shareholders
of the Parent company 313.93 286.00
Other comprehensive income
hems that will not be raclassified to prafit or loss
Re-meazuremant (lossag) on post employment
benefit oblgations 510 (10.65)
Income tax relating lo abovea ifams {1.28) 2.68
Other comprehensive incomef{loss) for the year attributable
to the shareholders of the Parent company 3.82 {7.97)
Total comprehensive income floss) for the year attributable
to the shareholders of the Parent company 775 278.03
Earnings per equity share
Basic 40 22.36 20.37
Diluted 22.36 20.37

Summary of significant accounting policies 3
The accompanying notes form an intagral part of these consolidated financial staterments

This is the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss refarred to in our report of even date
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and an behalf of the Board of Direciors of
Charared Accountants Regency Hospital Limited

Firm's Registration Mo, 001 0FEMNMNS00013

Raohit Arora Atul Kapoor Rashmi Kapoor
Partrer Marnaging Director Whale Tirme Direcior
Membership Mo: 504774 DM 1448229 Ciin: D1B418323
Rajesh Shroff Kriti Misra

Chigl Financial Officar Company Secratary

Place : Gurugram Place : Kanpur Place : Kenpur
Date : 15 Saptamber 2023 Date: 15S5Septembsr 2023 Date: 15 Septembar 2023
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in Tmilllon, unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 442 B2 376.86
Adjustments for :
Other comprehensive income 5.10 (10.65)
Depreciation and amortisation sxpanse 283.67 262,80
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment {net) .82 1.56
Financs cost 143.29 135.77
Interest income (21.16) [39.24)
Profit on sale of mutual funds {1.06) {2.97)
Bad dabis and provision for doubtful dabits 89604 54.41
Interest on leasa Hability 45.67 51.25
Operating profit before working capital changes 995,19 820.88
Adjustments for :
{Increase) ininventaries (17.38) (15.08)
{Increase) in trade receivables [482.28) (124.13)
{Increasze) in financial & othar assels (23.82) (15.76)
Increasef{decrease) in trade payables 115.73 (44.00)
Increasa ! (decraasea) in financlal & other habilities 7E.14 112.88
Increase ( (decraase) in provisions (15.30) 13.42
Mowvemant in Loans 291.77 102,84
Cash generated from operations 940.07 86017
Inecme tax paid, nat of refund (B5.18) (27.10)
Met cash generated from operating activities B74.89 833.07
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of propery, plant and aquipment {including movament In
capital work-in-progress, payable for capital creditors and
capital advances) (B04.B5) (277.27)
Proceads from sale of property, plants end equipment 3.78 4,93
Purchase of intangible assats [5.64) (0.06)
Intangibles under development [6.32) (1.70)
ROU related payments (1.57) .
Purchase of current investiments [(325.08) (284.33)
Proceeds from sale of cumrent investiments 584,19 20,00
Mavement in Deposits {39.86) {4.08)
Interest received 20.68 3524
Met cash (used In) Investing activities {3E4.57) {503.33)
C. Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of principal component of lease cbligation (¥4.05) (69.73)
Payment of interast on lease obligation (45.66) (51.25)
{Repayment)’ proceeds from short-term borrowings inet) (26.62) 129,56
Procaads from loan taken 107.74 741.39
Repaymant of principal component of borrowings (891.21) (164.38)
Interest Paid (146.58) (133.04)
Met cash (used in)/generated from financing activities {1,076.38) 462.55
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) [5E6.16) 792,29
Cash and cash equivalants at the beginning of tha year 924,86 132.57
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year F58.10 Gea.06
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For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Caszh and cash equivalent above are comprisa the
following - {refar note no-18)
Balances with banks:

- in cument accounts 85.16 910.84
Cashin hand 7.6 5.76
Chegue in Hand 0.04 .
Term Daposits (with maturity up to 3 months) 265 86 B 26
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 358.70 924.86

Note:

The ahove Cash Flow Statement has been preparad under the indirect method as set out in the applicable Indian Accounting Standard [Indian
Accounting Standard - 7 on “Slalement of Cash Flows" spocified under saction 133 of the Companias Act, 2013 {the ‘Act’) read with the
Companies (Indian Accournting Standards) Rules, 2015,

This is the Consolidated Cash Flow Statameant refarrad to in aur rapart of even data

For Walker Chandiok & CoLLP For and on bahall of the Board of Diractors of
Chartersd Accoundants Regency Hospital Limited

Firm's Registration No.: D0107EM/ME00013

Rohit Arora Alul Kapoor Rashmi Kapoar
Parner Managing Director ‘Whole Time Diractor
Marmibership Moo $04774 DIM: 01 448325 Din: 01818323
Rajesh Shiot Kriti Migra

Chiet Finencial Officer Company Secratany

Plage ; Gurugram Place : Kangur Plage ; Kanpur

Date ;15 Seplembor 2023
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Regency Hospital Limited (Consolidated)
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Allamounts in T milion, uniess othenyise stated)

1.

Corporate information

Regency Hospital Limited 15 a Company domiciled in
India, incorporated on 8 June 1987, The shares of the
Company were listed at Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE)
and stand delisted with effect from 18 November 2015 on
receipt of notice from BSE dated 3 November 2015 in
response to the Company’'s application for delisting
under Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting
of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 and Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
tAmendment) Regulations, 2015. The Company
provides a wide range of super specialty services in tha
figld of healthcare.

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (hereinafter refarred to as the 'Ind AS") as
notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to
saction 133 of the Companias Act, 2013 read with Rule 3
of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendrment Rules, 2016.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on accrual and going concern basls. The
accounting policies are applied consistently to all the
periods presented in the consoclidated financial
staterments. All assets and liabilities have been classifiad
as current or non-current as per the Group’s nommal
operating cycle and other criteria as set out in the
Division Il of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013,
Based on the nature of products and the time between
acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation
im cash and cash equivalents, the Group has ascertained
its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of
current or non-cumrent classification of assets and
liabilities.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under historical cost convention basis except
for the following -

Cerain financial assets which are measured at fair
value;

Defined banefit plans - plan assets measured at fair
value;

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
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financial statements of Hegency Hospital Limited
(*Regency” or the *Parent Group® or the "Group®), its
subsidiaries and associate (collectively referred to as
*Group").

Subsidiaries are all entities {including structured antities)
overwhich the Group has control, The Group controls an
entity whan the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect thoss retums through its power to
direct the relevant activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from
the date that control ceases. Statement of profit and loss
(including other comprehensive income ("OCI)) of
subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the period
are recognised from the effective date of acquisition, or
up to the effective date of disposal, as applicable. All the
consolidated subsidiaries have a consistent reporting
date of 31 March 2023.

The Group combines the financial statements of the
Holding Company and its subsidiaries line by line adding
together like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income
and expenses. InterGroup transactions, balances and
unrealisad gains on transactions between group
companies are sliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unlass the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed wheare
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adoptad vy the Group.

Mon-controlling interests, presented as part of eguity,
represant the portion of a subsidiary's statement of profit
and loss and net assets that is not held by the Group.
Statement of profit and loss balance (including each
component of OCI) is attributed 1o the equity holders of
the Holding Company and to the non-controlling
interests basis the respective ownarship interests and
the such balance is attributed even if this results in the
non-contralling interests having a deficit balance.

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the group, Such a
change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
contrelling interests to reflect their relative interasts in the
subsidiary. Any differance betwean the amount of the
adjustment to non-controlling  interests and any
consideration paid or received is recognised within
eqLity.




Regency Hospital Limited (Consolidated)
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Allamounts in T milion, uniess othenyise stated)
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Recent pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has notified the
following new amendments to Ind AS which the
Company has not applied as they are effective for annual
periods baginning on or after April 1, 2023.

Amendment to Ind AS 1 "Presentation of Financial
Statements"

The amendments require companies to disclose their
material accounting policies rather than their significant
accounting policies. Accounting policy Information s
material if, together with other information can
reasonably be expected to influence decisions of
primary usars of general purpose financial statements.
Tha Company does not expect this amendment to have
any significantimpact in its financial statements.

Amendmentto Ind AS12 "Income Taxes"

The amendments clarify how companies account for
deferred tax on transactions such as leases and
decommissioning obligations. The amsndments
narrowed the scope of the recognition exemption in
paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition
exemption) so that it no longer applies to transactions
that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary diffterences,

Amendment to Ind AS 8 "Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors"

The amendments will help entities to distinguish
between accounting policies and accourting estimates.
The definition of a change in accounting estimates has
been replaced with a definition of accounting estimates.
Under the new definition, accounting estimates are
"monatary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty®. Entlities use
measurement technigques and inputs to develop
accounting estimates if accounting policies require items
in consolidated financial statements to be measured in a
way that involves measurement unceriainty. The
Company does not expect this amendment to have any
significant impact in its consoclidated financial
staternents.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Property plant and equipment
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Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of
acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price,
borrowing cost if capitalization critera are met and
directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its
working condition for the intended use. Any trade
discount and rebates are deducted in amiving at the
purchase price, Subsequent costs are included in the
assel's carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it Is probable that future
economic benafits attributable to such subsequent cost
associated with the item will flow to the Group. All other
repair and maintenance costs are recognised in
statement of profit and loss as incurred,

In case an item of property. plant and equipment is
acquired on deferred payment basis, interest expenses
included in deferred payment is recognised as interest
expense and notincluded in cost of assat.

Subsequent measuremen! (depreciation and uselful
lives)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
provided using written down value method over the
estimated useful life ofthe assets in amanner prescnbed
in Part C of Schedule |l of the Companies Act, 2013,

The identified components are depreciated separately
over their useful lives, The remaining componenis are
depreciated over the life of the principal propary, plant
and eguipment.

The residual values, useful lives and method of
depraciation are reviewad at 2ach financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriale.

Where, during any financial year, any addition has been
made to any asset, or where any asset has been sold,
discarded, democlished or destroyed, or significant
components raplaced; depreciation on such assets is
calculated on a pro rata basis as individual assets with
specific useful life from the month of such addition or, as
the case may be, up to the month on which such asset
has been sold, discarded, demolished or destroyed or
replaced.

De-recognition

An itern of property, plant and equipment and any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset} is included in the income
staterment when the asset is derscognised.




Regency Hospital Limited (Consclidated)
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al amounts in T milion, unless othenwise stated)

b.

Intangible assets

Recognition and initial measurement

Purchased intangible assets are stated al cost less
accumulated amortization and impairment, if any.

Subsequen! measurament (amorlisalion)

All finite-lived intangible assats are accounted for using
the cost mode! whereby capitalised costs are amortised
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
The estimated usaful life of an identifiable intangible
asset is based on a number of factors including the
gffects of obsolescence, demand, competition, and
other economic factors (such as the stability of the
Industry, and known technological advances), and tha
level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain the
expected future cash flows from the asset.

Residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each
reporting date. Intangible assets are amortised over the
pariod of 5 years on a straight ling methad,

Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses,

De-recognifion

Gains or losses arsing from de-recognition of an
intangible asset are measurad as the difference betweaen
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and
loss whanthe asset is de- recognized.

Leases
The Group as a lessee

The Group's lease asset classes primarily consist of
leases for land and buildings. The Group assesses
whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a
contract, A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a peried of time in exchange for consideration. To
assess whether a contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses
whather: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified
assal (i) the Group has substantially all of the economic
banefits from use of the asset through the period of the
lease and (i) the Group has the right to direct the use of
the asset.
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At the date of commencement of the lease, the Group
recognises & right-of-use asset ("ROU") and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements
in which it is a lesses, except for leases with a term of
twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value
leases. For these shor-term and low value leasas, the
Group recognizes the lease payments as an cperating
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to
extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease
term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these
options when it is reasonably certain that they will be
axercised.

The night-of-use assats ara initially recognized at cost,
which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the
commencemeant date of the lease plus any initial direct
costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairmant losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the
commencemeant date on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease term and useful life of the undariying
asgetl.

The lease liability is intially measured at amortized cost
al the present value of the fulure lease paymants. The
lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, If not readily determinable, using
the incremental borrowing rates in the country of
domicile of these |eases. Lease liabilities are
remeasurad with a corresponding adjustment to the
related right of use asset if the Group changes its
assassment if whather it will exercise an extension or a
termination option.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a gualifying asset are
capitalized during the period of ime that is necessary to
complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or
sala, A gualifying asset is one that necessarily takes
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended in
the period during which the active development is
delayed due to, other than temporary, interruption. All
other borrowing costs are charged to the statement of
profit and loss as incurmed,




Regency Hospital Limited (Consclidated)
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al amounts in T milion, unless othenwise stated)

a.

a)

B)

Financial instruments

Financial instruments are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrurment and are measured initially at farr value
adjusted for transaction costs, except for those carried at
fair value through profit or loss which are measured
initially at fair value.

If the Group determines that the fair value at initial
recognition differs from the transaction price, the Group
accounts for that instrument at that date as follows:

at the measurement basis mentioned above if that fair
value is evidenced by a quated price in an active market
tor an identical asset or liability {i.e. a Level 1 input) or
based on a valuation technigue that uses only data from
observable markets, The Group recognises the
difference between the fair value at inifial recognition and
the fransaction price as a gain or loss,

in all othver cases, at the measurament basis mentioned
above, adjusted to defer the difference betweaen the fair
value al initial recoegnition and the transaction price, After
initial recognition, the Group recognises thatl deferred
difference as a gain or loss only to the extent that it arises
from a change in a factor (including time) that market
participants would take into account when pricing the
assatorliability.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities is dascribed below.

Financial assets
Classification and subseguent measurament

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial
assels are classified into the Tollowing categories upon
initial recognition:

Financial assets at amortised cost - a flinancial
instrument s measured at amortised cost if both the
following conditions are mat:

The asset is held within a business model whose
objactive is fo hold asseats for collecting confractual cash
flows, and

Contractual terms of the asset give nse on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interast (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

Aftar initial measurement, such financial assets are
subseqguently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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De-recognition of financial assets

A financial asset is primarnly de-recognised when the
rights to recsive cash flows from the assel have expired
or the Group has transferred its rights o receive cash
flows fromthe asset.

Financial liabilities
Subseguent measurement

After initial recognition, the financial liabilites are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using
effective interest method. Amorised cost is calculated
after considering any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The
effect of EIR amorization is included as finance costs in
the staternent of profit and loss.

De-recognition of financial iabilities

A financial Fability s de-recognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing lability are substantially
madified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
the de-recognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts s recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
nat amount is reported in the balance sheet it there is a
currently enforceabla legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a nat basis,
o realise the assets and sattle the liabilities
simultansously.

Impairment of financial assets

All financial assets except for those at FVTPL are subject
to review for impairment at least at each reporting date to
identify whathar there is any objective evidenca that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.
[ifferant criteria to determine impairment are applied for
each category of financial asssts.




Regency Hospital Limited (Consclidated)
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al amounts in T million, uniess othenwise stated)

(i)

(i)

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Group applies
gxpected cradit loss (ECL) modal for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss for financial assets
carried at amortised cost.

ECL is the weighted average of difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects 1o receive, discounted at the arginal
effective interest rate, with the respective nsks of defaul
occurring as the weights,

When estimating the cash flows, the Group is required to
consider -

All contractual terms of the financial assets (including
prepayment and extension) over the expected life of the
assels,

Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancemants that are integral to the contractual terms.

Trade receivabies

For debtors that are not past due - The Group applies
approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial
Instruments, which requires lifetime expected credit
losses to be recognised upon initial recognition of
receivables, Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses
resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument.

The Group uses the expected credit loss model to
assess any required allowances and uses a provision
matrix to compute the expected credit loss allowance for
trade receivables. Life time expected credit losses are
assessed and accounted based on Group’s histarical
collection experience for customers and forecast of
macro-economic factors for each identified segment.

The Group defines default as an event when the financial
asset is past due for more than 365 days. This definition
is based on management's expectation of the time
period beyond which if a receivable is outstanding, it is
an chiective evidence of impairment.

For debtors considered past due - any enhancemant
in the accrual done for expected credit loss on
individually significant receivables is made lo recognisa
any additional expected credit loss on amount
recoverable. The Group writes off trade receivables
when there is no objective evidence that such amounts
would not be recovered. Financial assets that are
written-off are still subject to enforcemant activity by the
Group.
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Cither financial assets

For recognition of impairmant loss on other financial
assets and nsk exposure, the Group detenmines whether
there has been a significant increase In the credit risk
since initial recognition. It the credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal
fo 12-month expected cradit losses, else at an amount
equal tothe lifetime expected credit losses.

Whan making this assessmant, the Group uses the
change in the risk of a defaull cccurring over the
expected life of the financial asset. To maks that
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial asset as at the balance sheet
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
asset as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information, that is
available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of
slgnificant Increases in credit risk since initial
recagnition. The Group assurnes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the financial assetf is determined to have
low credit risk at the balance sheet date.

Impairment of non-financial assets

For impairment assessment purposes, assels are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are largely
independent cash inflows (cash generating units). As a
result, some assets are tested individually for
impairment and some are tested at cash-generating unit
lavel.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
thare is any indication based on intaral/external factors,
that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication
exists, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which
the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount is reduced to ts recoverable amount
and tha reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. If, at the
reporting date there is an indication that a previously
assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the
recoverable amount is reassessad which is the higher of
fair value less costs of disposal and value-in-use and the
asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subjectto a
maximum of depreciated historical cost. Impairment
losses previously recognised are accordingly reversed
inthe statemant of profit and loss.
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
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To determine value-in-use, managemesant estimates
expected future cash flows from each cash-generating
unit and determines a suitable discount rate inorder to
calculate the present value of those cash flows. The data
used for impairment testing procedures are directly
linked to the Group’s latest approved budget, adjusted
as necessary to exclude the effects of future re-
organizations and asset enhancemsents. Discount
factors are determined Individually for each cash-
generating unit and reflect current market assessment of
the time value of money and asset-specific risk factors,

Fairvalue measuremant

The Group measures certain financial instruments, such
as, investmants at fair value at each balance sheat date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to trangier a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the
asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

Inthe princlpal market for the asset or liability, or

In the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or Hability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use
whan pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
parficipants act in their economic best intarest,

Retfernote 43 for fair value hierarchy.
Investmentin subsidiaries

In accordance with Ind AS 27 - Separate Financial
Statements, investments in equity instruments of
subsidiaries can be measured at cost or at fair value in
gecordance with Ind AS 109, The Group has opted to
measure such investments at cost at initial recognition.

Subsequently. such investments in subsidiaries is
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Where an indication of impairment exists, the
carrying amount of the investment is assessed and
written down immediately to its recoverable amount. On
disposal of these investments, the difference between
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are
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recognisedin the statement of profit and loss.
Inventories

Inventories comprise of pharmacy, drugs, consumable
and implants which are valued at lower of cost and net
realizable value. The cost of inventories comprises of all
costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventones to their prasent
location and condition. Costs of inventories are
computed using weighted average cost formula.
However, raw materials and other items held for use in
the production of inventories are not written down below
cost if the finished products in which they will be
incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost,

Met realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less any applicable selling
expenses. Provision for obsolescence and slow-maoving
inventory is made based on management's best
estimates of net realisable value of such inventories,

Revenue recognition

Revenue arises mainly from the sale of goods. To
determine whether 1o recognise revenue, the Group
follows a 5-step process:

Identifying the contract with a customer
ldentifying the performance obligations
Determining the transaction price

Allocating the transaction price to the pedormance
obligations

Recognising revenue when/as performance
obligation{s) are satisfied.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized
whan control of the goods or services are transferrad to
tha customer at an amount that reflects the consideration
1o which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services net of retums and allowances,
trade discounts and volume rebates, The Group has
generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue
arrangemeants because it typlcally controls the goods or
services before transterring them fo the customer
Revanue is usually recognized when it is probable that
economic benefits associated with the transaction will
flow to the entity, amount of revenue can be measurad
reliably and entity retained neither ownershig nor
effective control over the goods sold or services
renderad.
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Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over
time, when (or as) the Group satisfies performance
obligations by transterring the promised goods or
services to its customers,

The Group recognises contract liabilities for
consideration received in respect of unsatisfied
parformance obligations and reports thase amounts as
other liabilities in the statement of financial position,
Similarly, if the Group satisfies a periormance obligation
before it receives the consideration, the Group
recognises either a contract asset or a receivable in s
statement of financial position, depending on whethar
something other than the passage of time is reguired
before the consideration is due.

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of pharmacy and pharmaceutical
supplies is recognized at the pointin time when control of
the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on
delivery of the pharmacy and pharmaceutical iterns. The
Group collects goods and service tax (GST) on behalf of
the government and, therafore, these are not economic
benefits flowing to the Group and thus excluded from
revenue, Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at
the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and
volume rebates.

Revenue from healthcare services

Revenue from rendering of healthcare services
(imciuding drugs, consumables and implants used in
delivery of such services) is recognized over the time
based onthe performance of related senvices to the

customers as per the terms of contract.  Income from
medical services and operation and management fee is
recognised as and when obligations arising out of the
contractual arrangements are fulfiled and services are
provided in terms of such agreements

Revenue fraom other services

Income from other services like sponsorship income,
education income, clinical trials and other ancillary
activities is recognized based on the terms of the
contract and it is probable that economic benefits
associatad with the transaction will flow to the entity and
amount of revenua can be measured reliably.
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Other income
Interest

Interest income s recognized on time proportion basis
taking into account the amount outstanding and rate
applicable, For all financial assets measured at
amortised cost (refer ‘e’ above), interest income is
recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) i.e. the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial assetto
the net carrying amount of the financial assets. The
futura cash flows include all other transaction costs paid
orreceived, premiums or discounts if any, etc.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand,
demand deposits with banks/corporations and short-
term highly liquid investments (onginal maturity less than
3 months) that are readily convertible into known amount
of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of change
inwvalue.

Foreign currency transactions and translations
Functional and presenfation currancy

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Indian Rupee (') and are rounded to two decimal
places of lakhs, which is also the functional and
presentation currency of the Group.

Transactions and balances

Foreign cumency transactions are recorded in the
functional currency, by applying to the exchange rate
between the functional currency and the foreign
currency atthe date of the transaction.

Foreign currency monetary items are converted to
functional currency using the closing rate. Non-monetary
items denominated in a foreign cumency which are
carried at historical cost are reported using the exchange
rate at the date of the transactions.

Exchange differences ansing on monetary items on
settlenent, or restatermneant as at reporting date, at rates
different from those at which they were initially recorded,
are recognised in the staterment of profit and loss in the
year inwhich they ansa.
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Post-employment and short term employee benefits

The Group provides post-employment benefits through
vanous defined contribution and defined benefit plans.

Defined contribution plans

Adefined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit
plan under which the Group pays specified contributions
to a separate entity and has no obligation to pay any
further amounts. Specified monthly contributions to the
recognised provident fund and approved
superannuation schemes, which are defined
contribution schemes, are charged to the statement of
profit and loss during the period in which the employea
renders the related service.

Defined banafit plans

The defined benefit plans sponsored by the Group define
the amount of the benefit that an employee will recaive
on completion of services by reference to length of
sarvice and last drawn salary. The legal obligation for
any benefits remains with the Group,

Gratuity is post-employment benefit and is in the nature
of a defined benefit plan, The liability recognised in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of gratuity is
the present value of the defined benafit obligation at the
reporting date, together with adjustments for
unrecognised actuarial gains or losses and past service
costs. The defined benefit obligation is calculated at or
near the reporting date by an independent actuarny using
the projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from past experience
and changes in actuarial assumptions are credited or
charged to the statement of OClin the yvear in which such
gains or losses are determined.

Leave encashment benafits

Provision for compensated absences when determined
ta be short term benefit is made on the basis of Group
policy as at the end of the year. Provision related to short
term compensated absences of employees is provided
on actual basis,

Short-fenm employes benafits

Expense in respect of other shor-term benefits is
recognised on the basis of the amount paid or payabla
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for the period during which services are rendered by the
employes,

Income taxes

Tax expense recognised in profit or loss comprises the
sum of deferred tax and current tax not recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current income tax is measured at the amount expected
to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the
Income-tax Act, 1961, Current tax items are recognised
in correlation to the undedying transaction sither in ofher
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recagnised in full far
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
underdying tax loss, unused tax credits (Minimuom
alternate tax credit entitemant) or deductible tempaorary
differance will ba utilised against future taxable incoma.
This is assessed based on the Group’s forecast of future
operating results, adjusted for significant non-taxable
income and expenses and specific limits on the uss of
any unused tax loss or credit. Unrecegnised deferred
tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and
ara recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that future taxable profits will allow deferred tax asset to
be recovered,

Deferrad tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is setfled, based on tax
rates (and tax taws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax
iterms are recognised in comelation to the underlying
transaction aither in other comprehansive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and cument tax liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right 1o set off the
recognized amounts and there Is an intention fo settle
the asset and liability on a net basis. Deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabiliies are offsel when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities; and the deferred tax assets
and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
lavied by the same taxation authority,

Segment reporting
Business segments:

Segments have been identifiad and reported basad on
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a)

b}

cl

the nature of the products and services, the risks and
returns, the organisation structure and the Internal
linancial reporting systems.

Geographical segments

In terms of geographies, the Group sells its products and
services within India and naither identifies nor analyses
risk based on different geographical regions.

Otherinformation

Revenues and éxpenses have been identified to
sagments on the basis of their relationship to the
operating activities of the segmant.

Revenues and expensas, which relate to the Group as a
whole and are not allocable fo segments on a
reasonable basis, have besn included under
"Unallocated corporate expenses”.

Assets and liabilities, which relate to the Group as a
whole and are not allocable to segments on reasonable
basis. are shown as unallocated corporate assets and
liahilities respectively.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net
profit or loss for the perod attributable to eguity
sharehoiders (after deducting atiributable faxes) by the
weighted average number of eguity shares outstanding
during the period. The weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted
forevents including a bonus issue.

For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per
share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number
of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Provisions,
liakilities

contingent assets and contingent

Provisions are recognised only when there |5 a present
obligation, as a result of past events, itis probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation, and when a reliable
estimate of the amount of obligation can be made at the
reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
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estimates. If the effect of the time value of moneay is
material, provisions are discounted to reflect its presant
value using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the current
market assessments of the ime value of money and the
risks specific to the obligation. When provisions are
discounted, the increase in the provision due to the
passage oftime is recognised asa finance cost,

Contingent liability is disclosed for:
Possible obligations which will be confirned only by
future events not wholly within the control of the Group or

Present obligations arising from past events where itis
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the
amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assels are not recognised. However, when
inflow of economic benefits is probable, related asset is
disclosed.

Significant management judgements in applying
accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The following are the critical judgments and the key
estimates conceming the fulure that management has
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that may have the most significant effect on
tha amounts recognised in the consclidated financial
Statements or that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounis of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year.

Significan! managemeant eslimales

Allowance for doubiful debts - The allowance for doubiful
debts reflects management’s estimate of losses inherent
in its credit portfalio. This allowance is based on Group’s
estimate of the losses to be incurred, which derivas from
past experience with similar receivables, current and
historical past dus amounts, daalar tarmination rates,
write-0ffs and collections, the careful monitoring of
porfolio credit quality and current and projected
economic and market conditions.

Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets -
Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of
depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date.
baszed on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties
in these estimates relate to technical and economic
obsolescence that may change the wtility of certain
software and other plant and equipment.




Regency Hospital Limited (Consclidated)
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al amounts in T milion, unless othenwise stated)

Annual Report 2022-23

Defined bensafit obligations (DEQ) - Management's
estimale of the DBO is based on a number of critical
underlying assumptions such as standard rates of
inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of
future salary increases. Vanation in these assumptions
may sighificantly impact the DBO amount and the annual
defined benafit expenses,

Provisions - The Group estimates the provisions that
have present obligations as a result of past events and it
is probable that outflow of resources will be required 1o
settla the obligations. These provisions are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and are adjustad to
reflect the current best estimatas.

Significant managament judgments

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of non-financial
asseis - The evaluation of applicability of indicators of
impairment of assels requires assessment of several
gxternal and internal factors which could result in
deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets.

Leases - The Group evaluates if an arrangement
qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS
116, |dentification of a lease requires significant
judgement. The Group uses significant judgemant in
assessing the lease term (including anticipated
renewals) and the applicable discount rate.

The Group determines the lease term as the non-
cancellable period of alease, together with both periods
covered by an option to extend the lease it the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods
coverad by an option to terminate the lease if the Group
is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In
assessing whether the Group is reasonably cerain to
exarcise an option to extend a lease, or not fo exercise
an option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant
facts and circumstances that creale an economic
incentive for the Group to exercise the oplion to extend
the leasa, or not to exercisa the option to terminate the
leasa. The Group revises the leasa tarm if there is a
changein the non-cancellable period of a lease,

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental
bormowing rate specific 1o the lease being evaluated or
for a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

Contingent liabilities - The Group uses significant
judgements to disclose contingent labilities. Contingent
liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible
obligation arising from past events, the existence of
which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-

13

occurrence of one of more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Group ar a present
obligation that arises from past events where it is either
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the
amount cannot ba made. Contingent assets are neither
recognised nor disclosed in the consclidated financial
statements.
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A. Equity share capital

Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2021 140.43
Equity share capital issued during the year -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 140.43
Equity share capital issuad during the year :
Balance as at 31 March 2023 140.43
B. Other equity
General Securities Retained Total
reserve Premium earnings
Balance as at 01 April 2021 418.74 981.26 (52.78) 1,347.22
Profit for the year - - 286.00 286.00
Other comprehensive income! {loss) (net of tax) - - {7.87 {7.87)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 418.74 981.26 225.25 1,625.25
Profit for the year o = 313.93 313.83
Other comprehensive Income! (loss) (net of tax) - - 3.82 3.82
Balance as at 31 March 2023 418.74 981.26 543.00 1,943.00
This is the Censolidated Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date.
For'wWalker Chandiok & Co LLP Forand on balad of he Board af Dirgcions of
Chartered Accountants Aegency Hospltal Limited
Firm'e Regietration Mo O0H0FEMNNS00TS
Rohit Arora Atul Kapoor Rashmi Kapoor
Partnar anaging Diractor Wihole Tiena Director
Membagship Mo: 504774 DM 01448239 DM 01E1B323
Rajesh Shroff Kriti Misra
Chial Financial Dficar Company Secratary
Place : Gunigram Place: Kanpur Place : Kanpur
Dete : 15 September 2023 Date: 15Saptember 2023 Date: 15 Septembar 2023
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Al amounts in T million, uniess stated otherwise)

Right of use asset

Gross carrying value

Balance as at 01 April 2021
Addition during the yvear
Balance as at 31 March 2022
Addition during the year
Disposal during the year
Balance as at 31 March 2023

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at 01 April 2021
Charge for the year

Balance as at 31 March 2022
Charge for the year
Adjustment for disposals
Balance as at 31 March 2023

MNet hlock
Balance as at 31 March 2022
Balance as at 31 March 2023

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work in progress
Flant and machinary pending installation
and building under construction

Movement in capital work in progress:

Particulars

Balance as at 01 April 2021

Add: Additions during the year
Less: Capitalisation dunng the year
Balance as at 31 March 2022
Add: Additions during the year
Lass: Capitalisation duning the year
Balance as at 31 March 2023
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ROU- Land ROU- Building Total
105.76 438.78 544.54
- 11.60 11.60
105.76 450.38 556.14
- 70.00 70.00
- {6.50) (6.50)
105.76 513.88 619.64
0.74 73.03 73797
0.74 67.05 67.79
1.48 140.08 141.56
76.45 T6.45
. {0.71) (0.71)
1.48 21582 217.30
104.28 310.30 414.58
104.28 298.06 402.34
As at As at

a1 March 2023 31 March 2022

48012 80.50

469.12 90.90

Amount
64.22

59.93
{33.25)
90.90
417.05
(38.74)

T a69.21
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(Al amounts in T million, uniess stated otherwise)
Capital work in progress Ageing Schedule

As at 31 March 2022 Amount in CWIP for a period of
Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
year years
Frojects in progress 418.04 33.62 17.55 - 489.21
Projects tamporarily suspended . . - - .
Total 418.04 33.62 17.55 - 469.21
As at 31 March 2021 Amount in CWIP for a period of
Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years Maore than 3 Taotal
year years
Projects in progress 58.03 30.97 - - 50.90
Projects temporarnly suspended - - - - -
Total 59.93 30.97 - - 90.90
8 Other intangible assets
Intangible Total
Grose carrying value
Balance as at 01 April 2021 17.07 17.07
Additions during the year 0.06 0.06
Balance as at 31 March 2022 17.13 17.13
Additions during the year 12.3 12.31
Balance as at 31 March 2023 29.44 29.44
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 01 April 2021 3.91 3.91
Charge for the year 413 413
Balance as at 31 March 2022 8.04 B.04
Charge for the year 862 8.62
Balance as at 31 March 2023 16.66 16.66
Met block
Balance as at 31 March 2022 9.09 8.09
Balance as at 31 March 2023 12.78 12.78
9 Intangible assets under development
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Intangible assets under development 6.32 6.67
6.32 6.67
Movement in intangible assets under development:
Particulars ~ Amount
Balance as at 01 April 2021 4.97
Add: Additions during the year 1,70
Less; Capitalisation during the year .
Balance as at 31 March 2022 6.67
Add: Additions during the year 6.32
Less; Capitalisation dunng the year (6.67)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 6.32
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10

1

12

Intangible assets under development Ageing Schedule

As at 31 March 2023 Amount in Intangible assets under development for a period of
Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
year years
Projects in progress 6.32 - - - 6.32
Projects tempararily suspended = - = - -
Total 6.32 - - - 6.32
As at 31 March 2022 Amount in Intangible assets under development for a period of
Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
year years
Projects in progress 1.70 1.42 3.55 - 6.67
Projects temporanly suspended - - - - B
Total 1.70 1.42 3.55 - 6.67
Mote:

Intangible assets under davelopmeant represents the cost incurred for the purpose of new software being developad by the
Group. The Group has incurred $6.32 million on the same during the current yvear and the development is in process,

Investments (non-current) As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Investment in equity shares (unguoted, at cost)

Associate (Uinquoted)

Regency Nephrocare Private Limited 14.21 14.21

1,421,000 {31 March 2022: 1,421,000} Equity shares of T 10 each fully paid up

Add : Share in opaning reserves 6.65 1.9

Add : Shara in current year profits 720 4,74
2815 20.86

Other financial assets (non-current)

(unsecured, considered good) As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Saecurity deposits 98.90 G4.22
Deposits with maturity more than 12 months® 16.21 338.83
Interast accruad but not due on othars 0.07 3.88
115.18 406.93

“Total deposits of T 1.44 milllond 31 March, 2022 T 9.93 million) are pledgad with Bank HDFC Bank Limited against fund
baszed and non fund based limit.

Income tax assets (net)

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Income tax assets (nel)

Advanca income tax 184.47 119,36
Less: Provision for income tax 145.23 38.98
39.24 B0.38
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13 Deferred tax liabilities (net)

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Deferrad tax liakilities {net) 143.06 110,10
Deferred tax asset arising on account of :
Provision for employee banefits {0.28) (4.36)
Allowance for expected credit loss (18.85) {12.08)
Provision for bonus/Praliminary expense - (8.15)
Expenses incurred on capital raising * (7.06)
{19.14) (31.62)
Deferred tax lability arising on account of :
Tampaorary difference on account of property, plant and
equipment (including Right of use assets, related lease
liabilities and deferred lease rent recoverable) 16220 141.02
Fair value measuremant of investment . 0.70
162.20 141.72
Nel deferred tax liabilities 143.06 110.10
Notes:
(i) Movement in deferred tax assets/(liabilities) for year ended 31 March 2023:
As at Recognised Recognised As at
M1 April 2022 in other in statement 31 March 2023
comprehensive of profit
income and loss
Deferred tax asset/{liability) arising on :
Provision far employes benefits 4,36 (1.28) (2,79} D29
Allowance for expected credt loss 12,05 - 5,580 18.85
Provision far bonus B.15 - {8.15) -
Expenses incurred on capital raising T.06 - {7.06)
Fair value measurement of investmeant (0.7 - 0.70
Temporary difference on account of proparty, plant
and aquipmant {incleding Right of use assals, relatad
leasa abilities and daferred laase rent recoverabla) (141.02) = {21.18} (162,20}
Met deferred tax assets/{liabilities) (110.10) (1.28) (31.68) (143.086)
(il Movement in deferred tax assets/{liabilities) for year ended 31 March 2022:
As at Recognlsed Recognlsed As at
01 April 2021 in other in statement 31 March 2022
comprehensive of profit
income and loss
Deferred tax assetf{llability) arlsing on account of :
Provision for employee benefils 0.75 2.68 0.93 41.36
Allowancea for expected credit loss 14.55 - 12.51) 12.05
Provisicn for bonus 4.21 - 3.84 B8.15
Expensos incurred on capital raising T.27 (21) 7.08
Unabsorbed deprectation as per the Incoma- tax Act, 1951 44 B2 {44.62)
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14

15

16

17

Fair value measurement of invasimeant - - (0. 70) (0,70}
Temperary difference on account of property, plant and eguipment
(including Right of use assets, related lease liabilities and deferred
lzase rent recoverable) (128.79) - {12.23} (141,02}
Met deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (57.38) 2.68 (55.40) {110.10)

Maote: Adeferred lax shall ba racognised for all deductibla temporany differances to the extend that it is probabls that taxabila profit will ba
available against which the deductible temporary differance can be utllised.

Other non-current assets

As at As at
3 March 2023 31 March 2022
(Unsecured, considered good)
Deferred lease rant recoverable 5.54 8.07
Advance 1o others 2.06 2.23
Capital advances 43.15 11.16
53.7T5 21.45
Inventories (valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)
As at Asal
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Pharmaacy 777 57.82
Surgical, pathological and kifchen items 61.41 fi2. 04
Other miscellaneous consumable items B.85 10,35
150.03 131.11
Goods in transit 0.30 1.64
150.33 132.75
Investments (currant) As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Irvestment in Mutual Funds (quoted, &t fair value)
HDFC Low Duration Funds - LT - Growth - 20.48
Axis Treasury Advantage Fund - Regular Plan - Growth 3.21 118.72
Reliance Low Duration funds - 132.07
3.21 271.27
Trade receivables
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Unsecurad, considersd good G20.61 302,76
Credit impairad 74.88 a7 .87
Less: Allowance lor expected credit loss (74.88) {47 .87)
529.61 302.76
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(AN amounts in ¥ miflion, unless slated olherwiss)

18

19

21

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks:
- in current accounts *
Cash in hand
Chegue in Hand
Term Daposits {with maturity up to 3 months)*”
Interast gecrued but not due on fived deposits

Annual Report 2022-23

As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
85.16 910.84

764 576

0.04 .

265.84 8.24

0.02 0.02

358.70 924.86

“Total deposits of 2,77 million (31 March, 2022 T 4,24 million) are pledgad with HDFC Bank Limited against fund-based

and non fund-basad limits.

Other bank balances

Deposits with maturity mare than three months but less than 12 maonths®

Interest accrued but not due on fixed deposits

As at As at

3 March 2023 31 March 2022
4438 4.87

0.57 .06

44.96 4.93

“Total deposits of T 2,05 million (31 March, 2022 T 0,87 milllon) are pledged with Bank HDFC Bank Limited against fund

bazad and non fund based limits.

Other financial assets (current)
iUnsecured, considered good)

Accrued ravenus
Interast accrued on Income Tax Refund

Other current assets

Prapaid axpenses

Advances to vandor

Advance o employees

Advances to othars

Balances with statutory and govemment authorities
Deferred lease rant recoverable

Expenses incurred for raising equity share capital

Equity share capital

Authorised equity share capital

55,000,000 (31 March 2022 : 55,000,000} Equity shares of Rs 10 each
Authorised preference share capital”

15,00,00.000 (31 March 2022 : Nil) Preference shares of Rs 10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid up equity share capital
14,042,779 (31 March 2022 ; 14,042,779) Equity shares of Rs 10 each

140

As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
59.65 41.23

= 2.56

59.65 43.79

As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
26.84 21.37

4.35 13.98

2.83 3.13

0.26 43

0.60 316

0.81 0.58

15.68 -

5117 39.65

As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
550.00 550.00
1.500.00 -
2,050.00 550,00
140,43 140,43

140.43 140.43
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
{All amounts in T million, unlass stated otherwise)

*{The Authorised Share Capital of the Holding Company has increased from Rs. 550.00 million (¥ Five hundred Fifty
million) divided inte 5,50,00,000 (Fifty five milllon) Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- (¥ Ten) to Rs. 2,050.00 million (¥ Two
thousand Fifty million only) divided into 5,50,00,000 (Fifty five million) Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- (% Ten) each and
15,00,00.000 {one hundred fifty million) Preference Shares of face value of Rs, 10/ (T Ten) each vide the Ordinary Resolution
passed inthe Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Regency Hospital Limited dated 21 March 2023.)

i} Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares:

As per the Memgrandum of Association, the Holding Company’s authorised share capital consists of equity shares. All equity
shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the Company's residual assets, The equity shares are entitled 1o
receive dividend as declared fram time to time. The voting rights of an equity shareholder on show of hand or through proxy shall
be in proportion to his share of the paid-up equity capital of the Company. On winding up of the Holding Company, the holders of
equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the Holding Company, remaining after distribution of all preferential
ameunts in proportion to the number of equity shares held.

li) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Mo. of shares Amount  Mo. of shares Amount

Balance at the beginning of the year 14,042,779 140,43 14,042 779 140,43
Add: Issusd during the year = = - 1
Balance at the end of the year 14,042,779 140.43 14,042,779 14043

iii} Shareholders holding more than 5% of share / Promoters with any number of shares of the Company as at

balance sheet date:

Name of Shareholders As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
No. of shares % holding Mo. of shares % holding

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up held by:

Promoters and Promoter group {(with any number of shareholding)

Dr. Rashmi Kapoor 3,433,502 24.45% 3.433 502 24.45%
Dr. Atul Kapoor * 3,145,386 22.40% 2,702,260 19.24%
Atul Kapoor (HUF) 1,182,523 B.42% 1,182,523 B8.42%
Anant Ram Kapoor * - 0.00% B86 252 6.31%
Soni Kapoor 649,210 4.62% 649,210 4.62%
Abhishek Kapoor 177,508 1.26% 177,508 1.26%
Arun Akshat Kapoor HUF 67,200 0.48% 67,200 0.48%
Arun Kapoor HUF 52,272 0.37% 52,272 0.37%
Arun Kapoor * 448 126 3.19% 5,000 0.04%

Others (with shareholding more than 5% of share)

International Finance Corporation 2,802,217 19.95% 2802217 19.95%
Kois Holdings 208,580 6.47% 208,590 65.47%
Healthquad Fund 770,832 5.49% Tr0,eaz2 5.49%

* Shares held by Mr. Anant Ram Kapoor, who deceased on 10 December 2021, have been transferred equally in the
names of his legal heirs Mr, Atul Kapeor and Mr, Arun Kapooron 07 April 2022 and 29 June 2022 respectively,
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iv) The Holding Company has neither issued equity shares pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash
or any bonus shares nor has there been any buy-back of shares in the current year and five years immediately
preceding the balance sheeat date,

23 Other equity

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Securities Premium
Opening balance 981.26 931.26
Additions during the year 2 =
981.26 981.26

General reserve
Opening balance 418.74 418.74
Add: Transferred frem statement of profit and loss - -

418.74 418.74
Retained earnings
Opening balance 225.25 (52.78)
Proiit for the year 31393 286.00
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) 3.82 {7.97)
543.00 22525
1,943.00 1,625.25

Nature and purpose of reserves :
Securities Premium: Securities premium reserve represents premium received on issue of shares, The reserveis utilised
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 201 3.

General Reserve : General reserve represents profits transferrad from retained earnings from time to time to general
reserve for appropriale purposes based on the provisions of the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956, Consaquent to
introduction of the Companies Act 2013, the requirement to mandatorily transfer a specified percentage of the net profit to
general reserve has been withdrawn. It can be wtilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Retained Earnings : Retainad eamings are the profits of the Group eamed till date net of appropriations.

24 Borrowings - Non-current *

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Secured
Term loans #
- from banks 1.582.83 2,368.67
Vehicle loan
- from banks 252 1,38
- from others 12.48 11.25
1,597.83 2,381.30
Lass: Currant maturities of long-tarm borrowings (refer note 26) (240.71} {B90.24)
1,357.12 1,491.06

“‘Refer note 24{a} for terms of borrowings.

# Term Loan from Banks as on 31 March, 2022 includes Term Loan from Indusind Bank Limited amounting to
653,95 million which has been fully repaid on 7th April, 2022,
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24(a} Terms of repayment and security disclosure for the outstanding long term borrowings (including current
maturities of long term borrowings) Secured term loans from banks

Mame of bank Az at Az al | Rapayment terms Details of security
Financial 31 March 31 March
Institution 2023 2022
HOFC Bank imitad : 004 | Duration; B1 months (includieg 6 months | Secured By way of charge on movabile plant and
micratenum) baginning lrom 20 Aug 2015 te 20 machinery, and othar fixed assets.
April 2022-- 49 Equated Monthly Instalments
(EMIs) of T0.43 million per month baginning
from 20 Feb 2016 to 20 Feb 2020 - & months
maoratorium  availed under relel packags
provided by BBE 20 EMIs of T0.43 mifion per
monith from 20 Sapt 2020 Gl 20 April 2022
Dweration: 101 Months (including 12 Months
HOFC Bank limited 1587 2343 Moratorium) baginning from 01 Oct 209610 01 | 1. First and exclusive charge on all curant
Feb 2025 dstalls as follows:- 2% Equated asseds of Hagency Hospial Limaied.
Monthly Instalments of TO.7E million from @1 |2 Firsl and sxclusive changa on all present and
Oct, 217 o 01 Feb, 2020- & months future fixed assets (movable & Immovabies)
moratorium  availed under relisf package eiclisding assets specifically charged 1o
provided By RBI from March 2020 1o August atars landar
2020-54 Equated Monthly [nstahments i 80,76 | 3- ?ﬂgfﬁ“‘;ﬂﬁ?fgi’g mimmgf:t
Y assats o i ¥
millan from 01 Sapt, 2020 to 158 Fab, 2025, {both current and uture)
4. Personzl guaranbes of Me Al Kapoor and
HOFC Bank lanitad %77 46399 | Duration: 107 morths (ncluding 15 months | gon, SR PR AR L L ICRL
maratceiim) beginaing from 01 Ot 2016 1o commerclal property as mentionad el
Aug 2025 details as fofliows:—- 3 (EMIs) af al 117082 Sarvodya Nagar, Kargur
¥ 067 milion e ot from 01 Jan 200 6 1o 01 b 11?.-'1‘3-EB-EBBNEI|1!|I'E. NEB“ }{E-n-pm
March 2020- 23 (EMIs) of T1.34 million per | ey 1171101, K-Block Kakadeo Hospital Kanpur,
manth  from 01 April 2018 to 01 Fab 2020 & up
months moratorivm  availed under relief
package provided by ABElfrom March 20 to Aug
2020 - 60 EMI= af T 1,34 million per month from
01 Sept 202040 01 Aug 2025
HOFC Bank Nl 3337 AT | puration: 105 months Equated Maonthly
Instalmants {EMIs) baginming from 05 Oct 2016
io 05 Jung 2022 detsils as follows:- - 41
Equated Monthly Instalments (EMIs) of T 1.38
million par manth beginning from 05 Oct 201610
05 Feb 2020 - & months moretorium availed
under relie! package provided by REl from
March 20 to August 2020 - 58 EMIs of T0.43
millian per manth from 05 Sept 2020 18 05 Juns
2022
HDFC Bank limited 20,72 o608 | Duration: 105 Equated Monthly Instalments | 1. First and exclusive: charge on all cument
(EMdI=) beginning from 20 January 2018 1o 20 aeapts (Stock. consumables and book debls
Sepl 2026 delaits &5 lolows-+6 EMI of ¥ 0.56 af Regancy Hospital Limited (Both present &
milion from 20 January 2018 1o 20 June 2018, - Aot M)
20 EMI of 20,59 million from 20 July 2018to 2 St and suclisve charge on fuac ssscis
20l February 20206 months mesaterum e YRS S eliiing
avaed under retiel package provided by REI Efﬁ::&?:ﬂmﬁm,_:”m“' Himted. fncth
from March 20 to August 2020 -73 EMI T 059 49  Eeet & exclsive char ;
charge through saquitabie
milion from 20th Seplember 2020 o 20th martgage of Regency Hospital Limited
Saptamber 2026, 4 Hypolheeation and exclusie charge on plant
& machinary & othaer assats of the company
HOFE Bank fmitad 2840 dBa4 AHL-MEH facility {Both currant & future )

Dwration; 110 Equated Monthly Instalments
[EMIs] ({including 12 months maoratordom)
baginning from 01 April 2018 o 01 May 2027
details as fiollovs--11 EMIof T 082 million from
01 Aprl 2019 10 01 Feb 2020. -6 months
moratarium  availed under relief package
provided by RBI from March 20 to August 2020 -

5 Goapplicancy/Personal guaaantee of Mr Abu
Kapoor and Mrs. Rashmi Kapoor and Mr AR,
Kapoor *. SPODC with 51 for all actvites as par
bank requirement from company and
promotars,

8 The cuslomer has b ensure iNgurancs cower
against all risk on the equipmant financeas
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts are in¥ million, unless siated otherwise)

24(a} Terms of repayment and security disclosure for the outstanding long term borrowings (including current
maturities of long term borrowings) Secured term loans from banks

Mame of bank Az at Asal | Rapayment terms Details of security
Fimancial 31 March 31 March
Institution 2023 2022
&1 EMI of 70,92 million from 20th Septembar The said palicy 10 be andorsed in the name ol
20200 206h September 2026 Hdfic Blank Lid. )
7. Hedging of Fx exposures as appointed by the
bank | Ganeral Insurance lor all assets 1o be
lien marked In fawour of HOFC Bank Lid. &5
the first logs payes g applicable
5. Equstable morlgage of residential as wall as
commercial prope y as mantanad balaw:
a) 11702 Sarvodya Nagar, Kanpur
by M!s Abhirav Healthcare Pwt Ltd.
{amalgamated with Regency Hospdal Lid.)-
117138 B-2 Sarvodayd Magar Kangir LIP
o} 1T, K-Block Kaksdeo Hospital Kanpur,
ue
Yes Bank Linded 2087 26.72 | a5 Equated Monthly Instalments (EMls) | Hypothecation sa Original lnvaices and Inadrancs
ranging from ® 0.0023 millicn ¥ 091 milllan Copias
e 1. First and exchushe cha on al currant
HOFC Bank limited 11010 114.23 Lﬂﬂn‘.ﬂ.l'dl‘l-ﬁ: Door o Doortenure of 10,42 years | st (Stock, cnmumahlrg:and ok b
Repayment in 37 quarterly ended structured of Regency Hospital Limited | Both present &
instalments as par repayment schedule given futuire of MSH)
Below 2. First and exclusive charge on hked fgsaly
Tear Reparmenl imaovable & immovable) incuding Land &
TillMay 21 il Bufding of Regency Hospital Limitad | bath
June 21 to May 22 1% o TL with intarast current & huture of MSH)
June 22 toMay 23 4% ol TLwithimerest |3 First & exclrsive charga through aquitabia
June 23to May 24 5% af TL with inferest morgage of Regency Hospital Limited
June 24t May 25 E%ol TLwithinterest [ 4 Hypothesation and exclusive charge on plan
June 25to May 26 B% al TLwith intarest & machinery & other assats of the company
June 26 to May 27 9% of TLwith imerest RAHL-ASH tacility § Both current & fulure )
June 27 o May 28 19% of TLwith imarest | 5 Co-applicancy/Personal guarantas of Ms, Atul
June 2810 May 29 19% of TLwith interest Kapoor ard Mrs. Rashm| Kagoor and Mr. A R
June2StoMay 30 24%of TLwith interest FAne 3t Lty Wi 31 Tor vl ot ns pee
Jupe a0 15 ol TL with ireresd bank roguirement: from company and
promoters.
B, Tho custermer hps o ensung ingurmnGg sowes
epgainst all risk on the equipmant financed |
HOFC Bank limited 95.41 99.85 | Loan With a Door o Doorterure of 10.3years, | o b o 10 be endarsedinihe name of
Fepayment in 36 quarterly endad Sructured |+ Hadning of Fx exposures as appointed by the
instalmanis as por repayment schedule givan Eard, Ganeral Insurance lor &l assats o be
below lizrs miarked i favor of HOFC: Bank Lid. as the
Year Repayment firat loss payee a8 Bppicabis,
Tilrkay 21 Nil 8. Eguitable mortgage of residential g well as
June 21 to May 22 1% of TL with Inerest commercial property as mantonsd balow:
June 22 toMay 23 Sl Thwithimterest | a)  117/A-2 Sarvadya Nagar, Kanpur
June 23 ta May 24 E%al TLwithinterest [ b)Y M{s Abhirev Healthcare Pyl Ltd,
June 24 toMay 25 &% of TLwith interest (amalgamatad with Regenoy Hospial Lid -
June 2510 May 26 9% of TL wilh interest 1TH1388-2 SarvodaiaMagar ianpur LUF
June 26t May 27 12% ol TL with Imeress | ©) LE'*‘U‘- K-Biock Kalkadeo Hospital Kanpur,
June 27 toMay 28 23% ol TLwith inlargst :
June 28 ta May 29 23% af TL withinferest :; ;_1;’ ul:]?;gr;ieugﬁ:;;ﬂ’:;”n’gmm i
June 23 to May 30 13% ol TLwith Interest 3. Kalyangur, Kanpue
HOFC Bank limited 59.80 B1.82 | piration: 70 Equated Monthly Instaiments
{EMis) beginning from 20 Dec 2019 to 20 Sept
2025 dedails as oows--3 EMIof T 226 million
ofi 20 Dec 201% to 20 Fab 2020, -6 months
moratorfium  availed under relisl  package
provided by RB from March 20 to August 2020 -
&1 EMIafT 226 million from 20 Sept 2020 fo 20
Sept 2025,
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24(a} Terms of repayment and security disclosure for the outstanding long term borrowings (including current
maturities of long term borrowings) Secured term loans from banks

Meame of bank
Financial
Institution

Az at
31 March
2023

As at
31 March
2022

Repayment terms

Details of secwrity

HOFC Bank Bmidad

209

Dwraton: 30 Equated Monthly Instalments
(EMIag) bagimning from 20 Dec 2019 10 20 May
2022 datails as follows--1 EMIof T 5.29 million
on 20 Dec 2018 -2 EMIoI T 5.28 milian from 30
Jan 2020 o 20 Feb 2020, -B months
moralonum  avaded wunder elel package
preveided by RB from March 20 toAugust 2020 -
21 EMI A 5,23 million from 20ih Seplember
202010 201h May 2022,

HOFG Bank Bmilad

2867

27562

Durabion: 95 Maonths (Including 12 Months
Meraterium) begisning from 20 Febwary 20 i@
20 Do 2027 delails are as lolows- 1 EMI of
0,45 million on 20 Feb 2021 - 82 EMis of
TO46 million per month beginning from 20
March 2021 1ill 20 Dec 2027

HDFC Bank Emifad

Q.04

107

Dherabon: 41 Months beginning from 20 Dec
2015 to 20 April 2023 details ara as follows- 3
Ehl of .0.90 million from 20 Dec 2019 10 20
Feln 2021- 6 months moratorium svailed under
relief package provided by RBI from March 20
o August 2020 - 32 EMis of 70,90 million per
manth beginning from 20 Sept 2020 tll 20 Apnil
2023

HOFC Bank hmited

f.s1

537

Dhgration; 102 Monthe  beginming fram 05 July
2019 1o 05 Dec 2027 detalls are as folowa- 8
EMI al ¥0.08 millkan fram 05 July 2019 to 05
Fed 2020 -6 monihs moratoium availed undes
relied package provides by REI rom Mareh 20
o August 2020 - 26 EMIz of 2012 million per
meath Deginning from 05 Sept 2020 til 05 Oct
2022- 5 EMIs of T0.20 millon pef manth
beginning from 05 Nowv 2022 till 05 Mar 2023- 55
EMls of T 3.21 millicn par maonth beginming from
05 Apr 2023 1l 05 Now 2027- 1 EMis of 70,08
million per month beginning on 05 Dec 2027

Indusied Bank Limied™

BNAG

Loan With a Door to Doar tenure of 7 years
Repayment In 24 gquarterdy ended structured
instalments as per repayment scheduls ghven
Dalow

Year Repayment

Tl e 200 i

Jan 21 o Dag21 1745 of TL with interast
Jan22toDec 22 0% af TLwith interest
Jan 23 to Dec 23 13% of TL with interest
Jan 24 to Dac 24 13% of TL with interest
Jan25toDec2s 13% af TLwith interest
Jan 26to Dec 26 34% of TLwith interast

2 Exclusive charge by way of equitabie

4 Euclusive charge on all gurreni assels (both

Incluslmd Bank Limied™

42,78

Loarn With a Door to Door tenure of 10 years .
Aepayment In 36 quartery ended struciured
ingtalments a8 per repayment schedile gen
below
Year

Aepayrment
T Sep 20— il

1. Emclesive charge on the medical equipment
and odher movable fixed assats (bodth prasant
and future} in Oncology and Gastro Centre.

on the land and buiklng of the
Oncalogy and Gastro Cantre

prasant & futura) of Cncology and Gastro
Centre.”
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24(a} Terms of repayment and security disclosure for the outstanding long term borrowings (including current
maturities of long term borrowings) Secured term loans from banks

Mame of bank As at Asat | panayment terma Datails of sacurity
Financial 31 March 31 March
Imstituticn 2023 2022
Qe 2010 Sep 21 A% al TLwith inlerast
QA 211 Sep 22 2% of TLwith inlerast
Ot 2210 Sep 23 5% af TL with mberast
Ot 2310 Sep 24 T of TLwith intarast
Q24 Sep 25 B% of TLwith interast
QA 25 tr Sep 26 10% of TLwith nbensst
Qe 26 to Sep 27 19% of TLwith interast
QA 2T e Sep 28 18% of TLwith interast
Qcd 28 e Sep 29 27% of TLowith inbsrest
Duration; 60 Months (including 12 Months | Exjansion of Second Rarking Chargs ouer
HD¥FC Bank Brited 77 12223 | Moratorium). Equated Monthly Instalments | cysting primary and coliateral wtinrphidie ?,I-.cmdh-,g
(EMIs) of ¥ 3.05 mifion per month beginning | mongages created in laweir ol Bank
lroam OF Feh 2022 10 20 Jan 2026
HOFC Bank himiiad 137,83 17781 | Durabion: 60 Months (including 12 Months | Extension of Second Fanking Charge over
Moratorium),  Equated  Manthly  Instalmants | @istng pamary and callataral securifias including
{EMIa) of T4.44 mifiion per month baginning | MoMg&agescreated infavourofBank
from 07 Feb 2022 1l 20 Jan 2026
Primary:-
Axis Bank Limited" 534,16 611,16 | Totl Tenure 7 Yrs. & Months Inferest paymant | ve, . ciue charge on all the prassnt and ftue
on monthly basis Principal Repayment 22 1 gesats of Oncalogy & Gastrs unil
Quarterly Instalments as below:- & quarterly | -Eyessiva charge on all the medical aquipmant
inetalments of Re. 6.00 million starting from | and sher movable fed assets, present and lutine
30.06.2022 to 30.09.2022- 4 quarterly | inCneology & Gastro unit
instalments of Rs. 7.50 million starting from | CollateralExclusive charge by the way of
31 .12.2022 to 30.06.2023- 4 gquarterly | equilable moragage o commersial propady-
instalments of As. 10.50 milion starting from | lecated at A-4, Sarvedaya nagar Oncology &
31122023 to 30.09.2024- 4 quarterdy | Gasio umil Kanpur nagar Ultar-Pradesh (208005}
instalments of Rs. 12.00 milion staring frorm | -Coemapny ta  maintain  minimum  collatera
122024 to 30092025 4 quarterly coverage of 42.50% thoughout the tenar of Eazility.
instaiments of Rs. 15.00 million starting from | Shorttall, it any, 1o be made good by way of
51.12.2025 to 30.08.2026- 4 quarerdy |2dditional collateral securty. acceptabie to the
instalments of Ra. 30.00 million starting from :::::-anlnrs.--
3112 2026810 30,00, 2027 a)Mr, At Kapoor
b Mrs. Reahmi Kapoor
Axizs Bank Limited*” 35.03 4279 | Total Tenure 5 Yre. @ Months Interaet payment | ogjepggy:.
on monthly basis Principal Repayment 23 | Euosive charge on all the prasent and futum
Quartary Instalments as below:- 15 quarterly | gurrent assets of Oncology & Gestre unit
instaliments of Rs. 1.94 million starting from | “Exetusive charge on all the metskes) aquipmant
30.06.2022 to 31.12.2025- 3 quarterly | andcthermavable fixed assats, present and futurs
instalments of Rs. 2.25 millon starting from | in Oncology & Gasatro unid
31.03.2026 to 30.09.2028- 5 quarterdy | CollateralExciusive charge by the way of
instalments of Rs. 1.3% million starting from | squitabla mortagage of commescial property-
311220961031 122027 lacated at A-4, Sarvodaya nagar Oncology &
Gastro unil Kanpur nagar Ultar-Pradesh (208005}
LComapny o maintaln  minimum  colzteral
covarage of 42.50% thoughout the tenar of Bazlity.
Shortlall, if amy, to be made good by way of
additicnal collelersl securiy accepiabks o the
Bank.
Guarantors:-
a1, At Kponr
B Mrs Rashmi Kapaaor
HOFC Bank Bmitad 1227 1593 | Duraton: & yesars and 4 months beginning from |1, First and euclusive charge on all current
20 jan 2021 to 20 April 2029 assets of Aegency Hospital Limited.
Yearty loan repayment schedula-- 2 First and exclugivg change on all presant and
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24(a} Terms of repayment and security disclosure for the outstanding long term borrowings (including current
maturities of long term borrowings) Secured term loans from banks

Mame of bank
Fimancial
Institution

Asg al
31 March
2023

As al
31 March
2022

Repayment terms

Details of secwrity

Yoar

202122
202223
2023-24
202425
202526
2026-27
202728
2028-29

Loan repaymants
046 million

4.01 million

5,88 million

10.75 million
2066 miflion
3058 millkan
22 .84 million
21.26 milion

HIOFC Bank kmitad

B0

Duration:- 10 years baginning from 20
Faip, 2022 to 20 Dec, 2030

=First Instalmeént of RAs.0.07 million on
20.02.2022

“Twa Instalments of Rs. 0.40
20.03.2022 and 20.4 2022

-Two  Instalments of Rs. 0.50
20.05.:2022 and 20062022

<Two instalments ol As. 057
20.7.202210 20.8.2022

Two instalments ol RAs. 058
20.9.202210 20.10.2022

“Ona instalments of Rs. 0.78
20.11.2022

-Ona instalments of Rs. 083
20.12.2022

“Two instaiments ol As. 086
20.01.2023 to20.02.2023

B4 instalmants of As. 0.87 millsen on 20.3.2023
o20.12.2030

million  on

millicn

5

million  on

million  on

million - on

million  on

million  on

HOFC Bank limitad

42,88

Duration:- 6 years and 10 months baginning
roem 20 Moy, 202010 20 Aug. 2027

-First Instalmant of Rs. 012 milllon on
20.11.2020

-Fiva Instalments of Rs.0.42 million on
20.12.2020 and 20.4.2021
=Four Instalments of RAs
20.05.2021 and 20.8.2021
-Ona |nstalmerd of As. 0.58 millkon on
20.08.2021

Ona  Instalmermt of Rs, 70 million  on
20.10.2021

Oné  Instalmernt of Rs, 072 million on
20112021

=11 Maonthly inslalments of RBs. 0.83 million
starling irom 20.12.2021 to 20, 10,2022

57 Monthly instalmants of Bs..44 million
starbing trom 20.11.2022 10 20,07 2027

JOne  Instalmert of RAs, 0EE millon on
20.08.2027

052 milien on

future: lixed assels (movable & imrmovabis)
euclsding assels specifically charged o
otfars landen

a1 Hypothecation and sxclusive charge an plant
& machnary & other assats of the company
(both current and fubuee)

4. Personal guarantes ol Mr Atul Kagoor and
Mrs. Rashmi Kapoor and Mr. AR Kapoor *

5. Equitable morgage of residential as well as
cormimercial property as mentionad below!

a) 117A-2 Sarvodya Magar, Kanpur

Bl 117138 B-2 Sarvodya Nagar, Kanpur

ok N0, K-Biock Kakadeo Hospital Kanpurn
u#

HOFC Bank fimited

Dueradicon: 121 Maonths (including 18 Maonths
Moralonum) beginning trorm 30 Moy 2022 to 20
Mow 2032 details as loflows-, -5 Uneguabed
Monthiy Instaiments of frorm 20 Moy, 2022 to 20
Mar, 2023-115 Equatad Maonthly Instalments of
T 0,37 million from 20 Ape, 2023 bo 20 Oct, 2032,
-1 Last Inatalment of T 0.03 milion on 20 Moy,
2033,

1-Frgl and primary charge on land situated at plot
no-1/PS, Schemea nao - 3, Ambedkarpuram Yojana
-3, Kalyangur

2-Pereonal guarentes of Or Atul kapoor and D,
Rashm| Kapoord-Corporate guarantee of

Ragency Hospital Lid.
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24(a} Terms of repayment and security disclosure for the outstanding long term borrowings (including current
maturities of long term borrowings) Secured term loans from banks

Mame of bank As at Asat | Repayment terms Dratalls of security

Financial 31 March 31 March

Imstitution 2023 2022

HOFC Bank limited 009 1.38 | Eguated Manthly Instalments (EMIs) of ¥.04 | Secured by way of charge on vehicss on vahicie

(Wahachs Loan) million limancad thraugh laan facility,

HOFS Bank Limited 1.53 181 | 5% Equaled Monthly Instalments (EMIs) of

W L oan) T0.04 mifion per month beginning from Secured by way of {:har.g!a on vehicie on wehicle
O OV2021 to 1l DEOE 006 francad Ihrough loan Bacilily.

. Secured by way of  charge on vehice on vehicla

Equated Monthly Instalmants (EMis} ranging | fnancedin b loan Bacili

“".T“ M.ahlndra 1eAR Mty from T 02 million permonth o ¥ 011 millian bl e Lokl

Prime Limitad

{Vehicle Loan)-Loan

irom NBFC

Total-A& 1,587.83 2,381.30

Current maturities

of long term debls 24071 80024

Total-B 1.357.12 1,491.06

* Mr. Anant Ram Kapoor has thus deceased on 10th December, 2021.

The above loans carry an interest rate ranging from 6.00 % p.a. o 9.25% p.a. (previous year 8.10% p.a. to 8.40% p.a).

24(a) Security disclosure for the outstanding short term borrowings (including working capital facilities)
MName of bank As at As al | Details of security
31 March 31 March
2023 2022
HOFC Bank MOE8 220,83 | 1. Exclushee changa onLand & Buildirg kecatad at A4, Sanvodaya Magar, Kanpur
2 Exclusive charge on all movablie fixed and currant assets (both presant & future)
Az Bank 28,87 a5.3q | Sameasabove
239.55 26617

The above cash credit facilities carry an interest rate ranging from 6.00% p.a.t093.25% p.a. (previous years.10% p.a. to 8.40%)

** Term loans and working capital faclities availed from Indusind Bank have been repaid on Tth Aprl, 2022 and the charge
thereon has been duly satisfied.
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25

26

Other financial liabilities (non-current)

Report 2022-23

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Security deposit (unsecurad, considerad good) 28.89 4202
Craditors for capital goods 0.10 1.00
28.99 43.92
Borrowings- Current
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Waorking capital loans * 239.55 26617
Current maturities of long-term debts {refer note 24) 240,71 B800.24
480.26 1,156.41
*Refer note 24(a) for terms of borrowings.
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities
Long-term Lease liabilities Short-term Interest Total
borrowings borrowings
{including current
maturities)
As at 01 April 2022 2,381.30 434.77 266.17 7.03 3,089.27
Cash flows:
Proceeds 107.74 . - - 107.74
Repayment of bomowings (891.21) (74.05) (26.62) (146.51) (1,13B8.39)
Payment of intarest on lease obligation - (45.66) - = [45.68)
Non-cash:
Interast expenses - 45.66 - 143.29 188.95
Increase in lease Liability - 59.45 - - 59.45
As at 31 March 2023 1,597.83 42017 239.55 381 2261.36
Long-term Lease liabilities Short-term Interest Total
borrowings borrowings
{including current
maturities)
As at 01 April 2021 1,804.29 492.91 126.61 430 24281
Cash flows:
Proceeds 741.39 - 138.56 - 880.95
Repayment of borrowings (164.38) (69.73) - (132.96) (367.07)
Payment of interast on lease obligation 51.25) . (0.08) (51.33)
Non-cash:
Interest expenses - 51.25 - 136,77 187.02
Increase in lease Liabllity - 11.59 - - 11.59
As at 31 March 2022 2,381.30 434.77 26617 7.03 3,089.27
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27 Trade payables

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and

Small Enterprizes 19.95 6.03
Cutstanding dues of creditors other than Micro
Enterprises and Small Enterprises 333.07 268.38
353.02 294.42
Trade Payables Ageing Schedule
As on March 31, 2023
Particulars Qutstanding for the following periods Total
from the due date of payment
Less Than 1 year 1-2 years | 2-3 years | More than 3 years
ia) MSME 18,95 - = ® 19.95
by Others 328.40 3.08 0.74 0.85 S333.07
Total 348.35 3.08 0.74 0.85 353.02
Trade Payables Ageing Schedule
As on March 31, 2022
Particulars QOutstanding for the following periods Total
from the due date of payment
Less Than 1 year 1-2 years | 2-3 years | More than 3 years
(&) MSME .03 - = - 6.03
(b) Others 27617 9.19 2.44 0.59 2B8.35
Total 282.20 9.19 2.44 0.59 294.42
a. Dues to micro and small enterprises pursuant to section 22 of the Micro and Small Emterprises Developmant Act

(MSMED), 2006

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an Office Memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which
recommands that Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with their customers the
Entreprenaurs Memaorandum number as allocatad after filing of the Memorandum, Amount due 1o enlities covered undear
Micra, Small and Meadium Enterprizes as defined in the Micro, Small, Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, have
baen identified an tha basis of information available with the Group.

Cn the basis of confirmation obtained from suppliers who have registerad themselves under the Micro and Small
Enterprices Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2008) and based on the information available with the company, the
following are the details:

i} the principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each

accounting perod; 19.95 6.03
ii} Interest due thereon 0.02 0.02
iii} the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16, along with the amounts

of the paymeant made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting

pericd; Interest accrued and due thereon remaining unpaid -

iv) the amount of interest due and payable for the penod of delay in making payment

(which have bean paid but beyond the appointed day during the pariod) but without

adding the interest specified under this Act; -

v) thie amount of interest accrued and remaining ungaid at the end of each accounting perod; and

vi] the amount of furthar interest remaining due and payable even in the succeading pariods, until

such date when the inferest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise. for the purpose

of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23.
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28

a1

Other financial liabilities (current)

Interest accrued but not due

Securty deposit received (unsecured, considered good)
Creditor for capital goods

Consultant fee payable

Emploves related payables

Gratuity payable

Income tax liabilities (net)

Frovision for tax (net of advance tax)

Other current liabilities

Advance from customers
Satutory dues

Othar liabilities

Income received in advance

Provisions (current)
Provision for employes benefits®
Gratuity

Compensated absences

* Refer note; 42 for datails
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As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
3.81 7.03

14.73 10.80

23.54 2.1

114680 B1.85

88.82 T3.84

0.20 0.13

245.70 255.86

As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
0.91 2.73

0.91 2.73

As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
204 52 166.54

22.40 20.52

280 4.29

1.58 .84

231.39 192.19

As at As at

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

0.84 15.80
528 5.43
6.12 21.23
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a2

33

34

a5

36

7

Revenue from operalions

Healthcara sarvices
Pharmacy and surgical sales
MNursing school

Other Oparating Recalpts

Other income

Interest income on
bank deposits
others
Provisionfiabilities no longer requirad written back
Profit on sale of mutual funds
Rent incoma
Miscallaneous incomsa

Cost of materials consumed

Opening stock

Add : Purchasaes during the year
Less : Closing stock

Cost of materizls consumed

Employee benefit expenses

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds
Gratuity”

Staft wellare expenses

* Refar nota-42

Finance costs

Interest expensa on
leasa abligations
term loans
vehicla lgans
working capital facilities
other's
Other borrowing cost

Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Depreciation of proparty, plant and equipmant {refer note-5)

Dapraciation on right of use asset (rafar nota-6)
Amortisation of intangible assets {refer note-B)

Annual Report 2022-23

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
3,B880.36 3.360.74

341.86 26544

44,98 32.91

2232 917

4,289.52 3.677.26

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
19.41 a2 .46

1.75 678

0.02 5.25

1.06 247

7.67 10:85

283 3.40

3274 61.71

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
120.76 106.04

1.010.10 BE4.02

(141.29) (120.76)

989.57 £49.30

For the year ended For the year endec
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
850.09 540.84

23.06 18.74

718 4.56

4.29 3.97

£93.63 568.11

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

A5 BE 5125

122.97 132.06

1.33 117

B.05 032

0.39 0.03

10,56 2.20

188.96 187.03

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
199.31 190.97

7574 6778

.62 4.13

283.67 262.89
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38

39

Other expenses
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For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Doctor and othar professional feas 9g1.35 BE7.35
Bill processing and coflection charges 20.51 21.75
Power and fusl 118,74 115.05
Fent 0.3 15.45

Rapair and Mainlenance
on plant and machinery BEB.40 54,34
on building 10,77 528
on vehicles 7.68 6.21
on othars 52,16 58.97
Insurance 6.38 5.B6
Rates and taxes 6,03 505
Advertisarment axpenses 3200 20 29
Travelling and conveyancea 17.09 7.58
Communications 209 1.64
Medical senvice fee B83.89 81.81
Houses keeping expenses 101.88 g2.79
Corporate social responsibilty expanses (rafer nofa 50) 2.25 1.50
Lagal and professional 20.87 18.01
Payment o auditors 3.35 4.52
Loss on sale /retirement of propedy, ptant and equipment 0.82 1.56
Securty expensas 26.56 £3.59
Printing and stationany 25.58 20,70
Bad debils and provigion for doubtiul debits 06, 044 5,41
Bank chargas 0.44 01
Bank commission B.33 7.99
Misceflaneous expenses 14,09 B.B3
1,723.61 1.494.78

Tax expense

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Currant tax 110.44 a0.14
Tax pertaining to earlier years {5.94) 0.06
Deferred tax 32.96 B2.72
137.46 82,92

The major components of income tax expense and the reconcifiation of expected ax expense based on the domestic efective tax
rate of the Group and the rapored tax expense in prafit or loss are as lollows:

Accounting profit before income tax
Tax at the applicable rate of tax (25.188%)

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in
calculating taxable income:

MNon-deductible expenses lor tax purposes

Ravarsal of defferad lax assets nal aligible for deduction
{including earller yaar tax adjusiments (netj)

Others

Impact of deferred tax on OCI

Tax pertaining to earlier years

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
443,20 arr.o2

111.52 04 B9

0.60 0.38

2354 0.09

0.2 0.8

1.28 (2.68)

0,40 0.06

137.46 8282

Unused tax losses and credits
Thera are no unused 1ax losses and unabsorbad depraciation
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40

a1

Earnings per equity share

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

a) Net profitf (loss) attributable to equity shareholders 313.093 286,00

b) Weighted average number of shares 14,042 775 14,042 775

c) Nominal value of shares 10 10
d) Earnings per share

Basic earmings par share 2236 2037

Dilisted eamings par share 22.36 2037

Revenuea from Contracis with Customers
The Group provides various category of healthcare services, pharmacy, surgical, nursing, pathologecal and kitchen items,
Description of nature of goods sold

Pharmmacy

Surgical, nursing, pathological and kitchen items

Other miscallaneous consumable items

Descriplion of nature of services rendered
Haalthcare servicas
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
The Group has pedformed a disaggregated analysis of revenues considenng the nature, amaount, timing and uncertainty of revenues.
This includes disclosure of revenuss by geography and timing of recognition.

For the year ended 31 March 2023

Goods Services Total
Revenue by geography
Domestic 341.86 3,947 66 4 2R8 .52
341.86 3,947.66 4,289.52
Revenue by time
Revenue recognized at point in time 341.86 - 341.86
Revenue recognised over time # 3,947 .66 3,247 66
341.88 3,947.66 4,289.52
For the year ended 31 March 2022
Goods Services Total
Revenue by geography
Dormestic 26544 341182 3ETTOE
265.44 3.411.82 3.677.26

Revenue by time

Revenue recognisad at point in time 26544 . 26544
Revenue recognised over time - 3,411.82 3.411.82
265.44 3.411.82 3.677.26
Assets and liabilities related to contracts with cusiomers
As at As ot
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Assets
Contract assets
Unbilled revenue
Caurrant 59,65 41.23
Advance from cuslomers
Currant 20610 167.38
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C.

i

42.2

0]

(i)

Significant change in contract assets and liabilities
Unbilled revenue

Cpaning balanca

Revenue billed during the year
Additions during the year
Closing balance

Advance from customers

Opening balancea

Goods and services delivered during the year
Advances recaived during the year

Clasing balance

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price

Contract price
Less: Rebates and discounts
Rewvenue from contracts with customers

Annual Report 2022-23

As al Az al

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
41.23 4591

[41.23) (45.91)

59.65 41,23

59.65 41.23

As at Asg at

31 March 2023 3 March 2022
167.38 119.28

(167.58) 195.60)
206,30 143,70

206.10 167.38

As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
4.2R9 52 3.677.26
4,289.52 3.677.26

The Growp has not incurred any cost for obtaining contracts except administrative cost reqguired for preparation of offers and the same is

charged to Statemant of Profif and Loss.

Employee benefits

The Group has adopted Indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS) - 12 on Employes Benefit as undar :

Defined contribution plans
Provident fund

The Group also has certain defined contnbution plans, The obligation of the Group is limited to the amaount contributed and it has no
further contractual nor any constructive abligation. The expense recagnized during the yaartowards defined contribution plan is < 23.06

million (31 March 2022: T 1874 million).

Defined benefit plans
Gratulity

Tha Group oparates a gratuity plan whasain avary employea iz antitied to tha banafit aguivalent to 15 days of basic salary last drawn for
each completed year of service, Gratuity s payable to all eligitle employees of the Group on retirement ar separation or death or
parmanan] dizablameant in lerms of the provisions of the Payment of Gratulty Act, 1972,

Amount recognized in the balance sheet is as under:

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current Non-current Current MNon-current
Gratuity 0.B4 0.20 15.80 0.13
Amount recognized in the statement of profit and loss and
comprehensive income is as under:
Description 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Currant service cost .66 4.44
Mat interest cost 0.53 012
Net impact on profit (before tax) 7.19 4.56
Actuarial loss/{gain) recognized during the year {5.10) 10.65
Amount recognized in total comprehensive income 2.09 15.21

155




Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Annual Report 2022-23

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Al amounts in T million, unless stated otherwise)

{iii} Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation
recognized in the balance sheet is as under:

Description 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Prasent value of defined benefil ohligation as at the start of the year (15.93) (2.61)
Current service cost (B.66) (4.44)
Interast cost {0.53) (012
Actuarial loss/{gain) racognized during the year 5.10 (10.65)
Employer contributions 16.97 1.84
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year (1.05) (15.93)
{iv) Breakup of actuarial (gain)/loss:
Description 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Actuarial lossf(gain) on ansing from change in financial assumption (0.B3) {1.08)
Return on plan assets less than discount rate 0.54 0.06
Actuarial lossf(gain) on ansing from exparience adjustmant {4.81) 11.67
Total actuarial loss/{gain) (5.10) 10.65
{v) Actuarial assumptions
Description 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Discount rate 7.30% 7.10%
Future salary increase 5.00% 5.00%

Indlan Assured Lives  Indian Assured Lives
Mortafity (2006-08)  Markafity(2006-08)

Expected average remaining working lives of employees (years)

Gratuity is payable to the employees on death or resignation or on retiremeant at the attainmeant of superannuation age. To provide
for these eventualities, the Actuary has used Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08) ultimate table,

These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance of indepsndant actuarial appraisers, Discount factors
are determined close o each year-end by reference to government bonds and that have terms to maturity approxamating to the
terms of the related obligation. Other assumptions are based on management's historical experience.

(wi} Sensitivity analysis for gratuity liability

Description 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Impact of the change in discount rate
- Impact due to increase of 1 % (3.78) (3.23)
- Impact due to decrease of 1 % 4.51 3.85
Impact of the change in salary increase
- Impact due to increasa of 1 % 4.34 3.72
- Impact due to decrease of 1 % {(3.69) (3.18)

The above sensitivity analysis are basad on a change in an assumplion while holding all ather assumptions constant. In practice,
this is unlikely to occur and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the
defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation
caleulated with the projectad unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has bean applied which was applied while
caloulating the defined beneafit obligation recognized inthe balance sheat,

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did notchange compared to prior penod,

{vii)  Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

Description 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Within next 12 months 1.63 746
Betwaen 1-5 years .92 10.26
Beyond 5 years 3622 28.52
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43
i)

i)

Compensated absences (unfunded)

The leave obligations cover the Group's liability for earmed leaves. The Group does nol have an unconditional nght to defer
settlement for the obligation shown as current provision balance below. These are the amounts which have been recognised in
the statemeant of profit and loss for the raspactive years.

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Currant Mon-current Current Mon-current
Compensated abssncas (unfunded) 5.28 - 543 -

Financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities
The carrying amounts of financial instruments by category measured at amortised cost*
As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Financial assets

Investments in Mutual Funds * 3.2 271.27
Trade recelvables 629,61 302,76
Cash and cash equivalents A58.70 g24.66
Other bank balances 44,96 4,93
Other financial assets 174.83 450,72
Total 1,211.31 1,954.54

Financial liabilities

Bomowings 1.837.38 2,647.47
Lease liabilittes 422 .62 434.77
Trade payables 353.02 204 .42
Cthar financial Habilities 274.69 299.78
Total 2,887.71 3,676.44

*Investments in Mutual Funds are valuad at FYTPL applying level-1 of valuation, remaining all Financial assets and Financial
liabilities are valued at Amortised cost.

Investment in associates are measured at cost as perind AS 27, 'Separate financial statements’ and hence, not presented here.

Fair values hierarchy
The Group does not have any financial assets or financial fiabilities carried subsequenthy at fair value,
The fair value of financial instrumeants as refarmed to in nofe (A) above has been classified into three categories depanding

on the inputs used in the valuation technique. The hierarchy gives the highest priorty to quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets orliabilites [Level 1 measurements] and lowest prionity to unobservable inputs [Level 3 measurements).

The categornes used are as follows:
Leval 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical instruments in an active market;

Leval 2: Directhy (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derved from prices) observable market inputs, other than Level 1 inputs:
and

Levial 3: Inpuls which are not based on observable market data {unobservable inputs).

Financial risk management
Risk Management
The Group's activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. The Group's board of directors has overall
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responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group risk management framewaork. This note explains the sources of
risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and the related impact in the financial statements.

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management
Cradit risk Cash and cash aquivalents, Aging analysis Bank deposits, drversification of asset
trada recaivables, financial basze, cradit limits and coltateral.

assets measurad at amortised cost

Liquidity rigk Borrowings and other liabilities  Rolling cash flow forecasts Availability of committed credit lines and
barrawing facilities

Market risk-foreign  Recognised financial assets and  Cash flow forecasting Forward contract'hedging, if requined
exchange liabilities not denominated in
Indian rupee {INR}

Tha Group's risk managemeant is carried out by a linance department (of the Group) under policies approved by the board of direciors.
The board of directors provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign
exchange nsk, credit rigk and investment of excess liguidity.

I Credit risk
Cradil risk is the risk that a counterparty fails o discharge its oblination 1o the Group. The Group's axposure 1o cradit risk is influsnced

mainly by cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and other financial assets measured at amodised cost. The Group continuowsky
maonltors defaults of customers and other counterpariies and incorporates this information Info 1z cradit risk controls.

a) Credit risk management

(I}  Credit risk rating
The Group assesses and manages credit nsk based on intemal credii rating system. Intemal credit rating is performed for each class of
financial instrumeants with different charactgristics. The Group assigns the following credil ralings to each class of inancial assets based on
the assumptions, inputs and factors specific to the class of financial assets (i) Low credit nsk(ii) Moderate credit rizki{iii) High cradit risk
Assets ara written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor declanng bankruptey or a litgation decided
against the Group. The Group conlinues to engage with parties whose balances are written off and attempis 1o enforce repaymant.
Recovaries madea are recognized n statamant of profit andloss.

Basis of categorisation Asset class exposed to credit risk Provision for expected credit to loss
Low credit risk Cash and cash equivalants, oihar bank balancas,
lzans and other financial assels 12 month expected credit loss.

Financial assets (other than trade receivables) that expose the entity to credit risk (gross exposure) —
Particulars

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Low credit risk on financial reporting date

Cash and cash equivalents 358.70 92486
Cther bank balances 44.96 4,83
Cher financial assets 174.83 450,72

* These represent gross carrying values of financial assets, without deduction for expected credit losses

Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits

Cradit risk related to cash and cash aquivalents and bank deposits is managed by only accepting highly rated banks and
diversifying bank deposits and accounts in different banks across the country.

Loans and other financial assets measured at amortized cost

Cther linancial assets measurad at amortised cost includes security deposits, lease recsivablaes, deposits with remaining
maturity more than 12 months, accrued ravenue and othars. Cradit fsk ralated to these other financial assets is managed by
monitoring the recoverability of such amounts continuously, whils at the same time intemal control system In place ensure the
Bmaounts are within defined limits.
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b)

(i)

Trade receivables

Life time expected credit foss is provided for trade receivables. Based on business erwvironment in which the Group operates, 8
default on a financial asset is considered when the counter party fails to make paymeants within the agreed time penod as per
contract. Loss rates reflecting defaults are basad on actual credit loss expariance and considering differances betwean currant
and historical economic conditions. Assets are written off whean thers is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor
declaring bankruptcy or a litigation decided against the Group. The Group continues to engage with parties whose balances are
written off and atternpts to enforce repayment. Recoveries made are recognised in statermnent of profit and loss.

The Group recognizes lifelime expected credit losses on trade recevables using a simplified approach, wherein Group has
defined percentage of provision by analysing historical trend of default relevant to each businass sagment based on the criteria
defined above and such provision percentage determined have been considerad to recognisa lite time expected credit losses on
trade recelvables (other than those where default eriteria are met in which case the full expected lozs against the amaount
recoverahble is provided for).

Expected credit losses for financial assats

As at 31 March 2023 Estimated gross Expected credit Carrying amount

carrying amount losses  net of impairment

at default provision

Cash and cash equivalants 358.70 - 358.70
Othar bank balances 44,96 - 44,96
Trade receivablas 0.4 (74, BE) 629,61
OMherfinancial assets 174.83 - 174.83

As at 31 March 2022 Esiimated gross Expected credit Carrying amount

carrying amount losses  net of impairment

at default provision

Cash and cash eguivalants 824 86 . 924 86
Other bank balances 4.93 - 4,93
Trade receivables 3a0.63 (47.87) 302.76
Otherfinancial assets 450.72 = 450.72

Ligquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated withits financial liabilities that
are setfied by delivering cash or anothar financial asset.

The Group's approach to managing lguidity is (o ensure as far as possibla, that it will have sufficiant liguidity to meat its Habilities
whenthey are due,

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group's iquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expacied
cash flows, The Group iakes into account the liquidity of the market in which the entity operates.

Maturities of financial liabilities

The tables below analysa the Group's financial liabilities info relevant maturity based on their contractual maturities for all non-
derivative inancial lizbilities.

The amounts disclased in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, Balances due within 12 months aqual their
carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

As at 31 March 2023 Less than 1 year 1-5 years More than 5 years Total
Lease liabilities 70.16 201,78 &60.70 422 62
Borrowings 480.26 1,026.45 330.67 1,837.38
Trade payables 353.02 - = 353.02
Cther financial liabilities 246.61 28.08 - 274 69
Total 1,150.05 1,346.29 391.37 2,887.M
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As at 31 March 2022 Less than 1 year 1-5 years More than 5 years Total

Lease liahilities T0.67 248.48 115.62 43477

Borrowings 1,156.41 445,20 545,86 2.847.47

Trade payablas 294,42 - - 204 .42

Other financial liabilties 256 56 43.22 - 209,78

Total 1,778.06 1,236.90 661.48 3,676.44
1 Market risk

Market risk is the sk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. lcomprises of currency risk, interest rale risk and price risk. The Group does nol have any borrowings which carry
variable rate of interest, hence, it is not exposed to interest rate risk. The Group does not have any financial instrument which
exposes itto price risk.

a) Foreign currency risk
The Group is exposed to foreign exchanga risk arising from foreign currency transactions, primarily with respect tothe US Dollar,
EURDG, Singapars Dollar (SG0), Canadian Dollar (CAD) and GEF. Foreign exchange risk anses from recognised assets and
liabilities denominatad in a currancy that is not the functional currency of the Group. Considaring tha voluma of foreign currancy
transactions, the Group's exposure 1o foreign currency risk is limited and the Group has taken forward contracts to manage s
exposure, The Group does not hedge theses foreign currency exposures by a derivative instrument or otherwise,

(i) Foreign currency risk exposure in USD:
The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk atthe end of the reporting period (unhedged) are as follows:

Particulars
For the year ended Far the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Payables B 622
Met exposure o foreign currency risk (liabilities) - 6,22
Value in USD - 0.09
Exchange rate (INR per USD) . 62,11
Sensitivity
The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated financial
instruments.
Particulars
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
LISD sensitivity
INRALISD- Increase Dy 5% B 0.3
INR/ISD- decrease by 5% . (0.31)

* Holding all other variables constant

45 Capital management
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of equity less cash and cash egquivalents as presented on the
face of balance sheat.
The Group's capital includes issued share capital and all other distributable reservas. The primary objective of the Group's
capital management i to maximize shareholder value and to maintain an optimal capital structure o reduce the cost of capital.
The Group has long-termand short term borrowings .
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E

Debt equity ratio

Particulars Faor the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Total Debt* 1,837.38 2,647 46
Total equity 208343 1,765.68
Net debt to equity ratio 0.88 1.50

* Dabt includes long-term and short temm borrowings

Lease related disclosures

The Group has leases for land and office premizes. With the exception of shori-term lease underying assets, each lease is refiected on
ihe balance shast as a right-of-use asset and a lease liability as a borrowings. Variable leass payments which do nol dapend on an index
or a rata are excluded from tha initial measurameant of the lease liability and right of use assats. The Group classifies its right-of-use
assats ina consistent mannertoits propery, plant and equipment,

Each lease generally imposes & restriction that, unless there is & contractual right for the Group to sublease the asset to another party,
lhe rght-of-use assatl can only be used by the Group. Some leases canfain an oplion 1o exiand the lease for a further tem. Tha Group is
prohibited from selling or pledging the underlying leased assets as securty. For leases over premises, the Group must keep those
praparties in a good state of rapair and retum the propartias in their eriginal condition at the and of the leasa. Further, the Group is
required 1o pay maintenance fees in accordance with the lease contracts.

Lease payments not included in measurement of lease liability
The expense relating to payments not included in the measurameant of the leasa hability is as lollows:

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Short-tarm leases 9.3 1545
Varae lease paymenis - =
Total 9.31 15.45

Total cash outflow for leases for the year endad 31 March 2023 was T 118,71 million (31 March 2022: T 120,98 million)

Set out below are the carrying amounis of lease liabilities (included under berrowings) and the movements during the year
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Opening balance 434.77 492.91
Additions G61.590 11.58
Accretion of interest 45.66 81.25
Fayments 1118.71) {120.98)
Closing balance 422 62 434.77

Maturity of lease liabilities
The lgasa labilities are sacurad by the related underlying assats. Futurg minimum leass paymeants ware as follows:

31 March 2023 Minimum lease payments due

Within 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 yaars Maore than 3 years Tatal
Leasa payments 70.16 7277 73.75 205,94 422 82
Total 70.16 7277 73.75 205.94 42262
The | lighifities are se orlying AE5sts, . ’
31 March 2022 Minimum lease payments due

Within 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Lease paymanls T0.67 &0.28 60.94 242,88 43477
Total T0.67 80.28 60.94 242.88 434,77

Yariahle lease paymenis are expensad in the pariod they are incurred, Expected future cash outflow as at 31 March 2023 is of T Nil
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F Infarmation about extension and termination options
Right of use assets Number of Range of Average Mumber of | Number of | Mumber of
leases | remaining term remaining leases with | leases with | leases with
{In months) | lease term extension purchase |termination
(In months) option option option
Froparty leasas 17 73 84,90 11 o 12

G The total future cash cutflows as at 31 March 2023 for leases that had not yet commenced is of T nil (31 March 2022: T nil),

H Current and non-current balances

Particulars
Currant
MNon-current
Total

| As a lessor
Operating leases

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
£5.88 TO.E7

352.74 364.10

42262 434.77

The Group has leased some of its premises to third parties under the lease agreements that qualifies as operating
lease. Hental income for operating leases for the years ended on 31 March, 2023 and 31 March, 2022 aggreagata to
T 7.67 million and ¥ 10.85 million.
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47 Related party transactions

a) Related parties and nature of the relationship where control exists, irrespective of whether or not there have
been transactions between the related parties:
Subsidiary company Sibling Lifecare Private Limited

Regency Institute of Mursing

b) Other related parties and nature of the relationship with whom transactions have taken place during the
year:

Key management perscnnel

Dr. Atul Kapoor (Managing Director)

Dr. Rashml Kapoor (Whaole-time Director)

Mr. Rajesh Shroff (Chiet Financial Officer)

Ms. Ankita Gupta (Company Secretary upto 25th March, 2023)
mir. Anil Kumar Khemka (Mon Executive Director)

Mr. Rabindra Nath Mohanty (Mon Executive Director)

Mr. Charles Antoine Janssen (MNon Executive Director)

Mr Arun Shrivastava (Mon Executive Director)

Ms. Tanushree Shyam Bagrodia {(Non Executive Director)

Relatives of KMP and relationship

- Father of Or. Atul Kapoor Late Mr. Anant Ram Kapoor (upto 10th December, 2021)
- Brother of Dr. Atul Kapoor Mr. Arun Kapoor

- Son of Dr. Atul Kapoor and Dr Rashmi Kapoor Mr. Abhishek Kapoor

- Wife of Mr. Abhishek Kapoor Mrs. Janhvi Kapoor

Associate Company Regency Mephrocare Private Limited

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by

KMP or their relatives Amrita Charitable Trust

Indcoat Foobwear

c) Transactions with related parties are summarized balow:

Mature of transactions For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Lease rent income - from building

Regency Nephrocare Private Limited 7.20 8.10

Maintenance service for building

Regency Mephrocare Private Limited 0.18 021

Healthcare services rendered

Employees of Indcoat footwear 12.38 -

Fee for medical services received

Regency Mephrocare Private Limited 83.89 81.81

Dr. Rashmi Kapoor 18.81 16.54

Share in investigation charges

Dr. Rashmi Kapoor 3.60 3.60
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Lease rent expense

- Late Mr. Anant Ram Kapoor - 6.78
- D, Atul Kapoor 4.02 0.96
- Dr. Rashmi Kapoor 3.80 3.80
- Shri Arun Kapoor 4.02 0.96

Payments made on behalf of
- Regency Nephrocare Private Limited = 0.56

Corporate social responsibllity expenses

- Amrita Charitabie Trust 225 1.50
Remuneration
- Dr. Atul Kapoor 12.45 12.00
- Or. Rashmi Kapoor 947 9.47
- M. Arun Kapoor 1.40 249
- Mr. Abhishek Kapoor 6.63 6.63
- Mrs. Janhvi Kapoor 1.85 1.44
- Mr. Rajesh Shroff 5.10 2.20
- Ms. Ankita Gupta 1.11 0.97
Mature of transactions For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Sitting fees
Mr. Anil Kumar Khemka 0.26 .18
Mr. Rabindra Math Mohanty 0.26 0.21
Mr. Charles Antoine Janssen 0.06 0.06
Mr Arun Shrivastava 0.18 0.15
Ms. Tanushrae Shyam Bagrodia 0.03 0.06
d) Quistanding balances as at the year end
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Payables
Payable for medlcal services recelved
- Dr. Rashmi Kapoor 2858 1.67
- Regency Mephrocare Private Limited 21.07 20,00
Salary Payable
- Dr. Atul Kapoor 0.83 0.52
- Dr. Rashmi Kapoor 0.75 .68
- Mr. Arun Kapoor - 0.23
- Mr. Abhishek Kapoor .53 0.48
- Mrs. Janhw Kapoor 016 013

Receivables
Rent receivable

- Regency Mephrocare Private Limited 214 204
Healthcare services
-Employees of Indcoat footwear 12.38 -
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€}

Security deposit receivable
- Dr. Rashmi Kapoor 5.83 5.83

Investments in eguity shares
- Aegency Mephrocare Private limited 14.21 14.21

Carain KMPs also participate in post amployment benefits plans provided by the Group. The amount in respect of these
towards the KMPs can not be segregated as these are based on acturial valuation for all the employeas of the Group,

Other arrangements

Personal guarantee given by Dr. Atul Kapoor and Dr. Rashmi Kapoor for loans the outstanding balance as on 31 March 2023 of
which s T1,329.36 million {31 March 2022: T 1,385.99 million) obtainad by the Group from various banks.

Parsonal guarantees have baen given by Mr. Anant Ram Kapoor for loans obtained by tha Group from HDFC Bank against
which the balance outstanding as at 31 March, 2023,is T NIL (31 March, 2022: T732.04 milion ).

The schedule of provisions as required to be disclosed in compliance with Ind AS 37 on "Provisions, Confingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets” is as under:

Particulars Contingent liabilities
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Claims against the Group not acknowledged
as debt [reter note (i) below] 46,90 43.53
Disputed demand of Customs Depariment
[reter note (i) below) 1.82 1.92
Bank guarantee fumished to Director, CGHS
and ECHS, Railways and Regency Institute of Mursing 8.96 8.26
Loan outstanding against Corporate Guarantes given by
the holding company for Regency Institute of Nursing 29.49 -
Bonus [refer note (i) below) 3.650 3.50
Income taxes (Assessment year 2020-21) 1.56 -
Intand letter of credit - 468
92.33 62.09
Mote

(i} Includes total amount of claims under various legal cases alleging medical negligence against the haspital as on 31 March
2023 is T 40.53 million (previous year ¥ 41.68 million). The Group has taken professional indemnity insurance policy for all
cases and basis this profassional indemnity policy and historical trand of settlemeant in this mattar managament is confident that
nadiability is likely to devalve on the Group,

(i) Thie Group had deposited an amount of  1.92 million (being 50% of disputed amount of ¥ 3.85 million) under protest with the
Commissioner of Custom (Impon and general} in accordance with the order dated 05 February 2007 passed by Hon'ble
Allahabad high court, which had been written aff in the previous financial years.

(i) The Payment of Bonus (Amendment) Act, 2015 dated 31 December 2015 (which was made elective from 071 Aprl 2014)
revised the thresholds for coverage of employees eligible for bonus and also enhanced the ceiling limits for computation of
banus, However, taking cognizance of the stay grantad by varouws High Courts and pending disposal of such matter, the Group
has not recognized the differential amount of bonus off ¥ 3.50 million for the perod 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015 and
accordingly has recognized the expense in accordance with the Payment of Bonus (Amendment) Act, 2015 wee .1 April 2015
and onwards.
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{iv) Interest and claims by customers, suppliers, lenders and employees may be payable as and when the outcome of the
refated mattars are finally determined and hence have not been included above. Management based on legal advice and
histarical rends, balizves that no material liability will devolve onthe Group in respect of these matters.

# The Hon'ble Suprame Court of India pronounced a ruling dated 28 February 2015 in which it was held that ‘allowance' paid to
employees, will be included in scope of 'basic wages' and thus, will be subject to provident fund contributions. Management
believes that this will not result In any material liability on the Group which is also the view of a PF consultant engaged by the
managemeant.

Commitments:
Particulars As at Asg at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Estimated amaount of contracts remaining to be axecuted on
account of capital commitments (net of capital advances) B92.30 21.57
Lease commitmeants under non-canceliable lease arrangamants = .

In accordance with the provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, the Board of Dractors of the Group had constitutsd
a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSH) Committes. The details of C5R expenditure are summarisad below:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

(a) Amount required to be spent on C5A as per Saction 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013 2.22 1.03
() Amount of expenditure incurred 2.25 1.50
() Shortfall at the end of the year 3 -
(d) Total of previows year shortfall = i
(e} Reason for shortfall M.A, M.A.
if) Mature of CSR Activities Educaton Education

() Details of ralated party transactions

(h) Liability sgainst contractual obligations for CSR
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SL Year ended Change =

. Particulars Numerator Denominator T ar-23 [31-Mara2 (%) FReason for Variance

1 D= Expusty Hatic Tutal Shareholders tatal 088 1,50 A41% This is due to decrease in debl by 32%
Debls=Borrowings | equity while inerease in sharaholders” equily by

18%

2 | Dabt Sarvice Coverage Ratic Earnings available | Debt 068 1.76 B 'I'nsrg Wa3E 8§ aube‘.,ansia_l mCeEse N
for debt sanvice=interast & Principal repayment and intérast thara
sarvice=Met profit | lease on by approx, 163%, leading to
after taxes + Mon paymente+pancipal decreasain DECH
cEsh operating repayments
BEpEnEEs

3 | Cusrenl Batio Tatal Curment Total Current 054 0,86 3% Raler Mote-1 bealow
Assels Liabilities

4 | Trade roceivabie Fieneniie from Average trade 474 4m 10% Rafar Mate-1 helow

furnaver rafic opesatona recaivaties
Revanus from

5 | Inventory Tumeves il Average invantcy | g ag 6,78 e RraferMate-1 halow
Mt profit aft

& | Net Proft Ratio ) BRTLGEr Total Revenue 7.26% | 7.65% 5% Fiafer iola-1 bk
Purchases ReferMote-1 balow

7 | Trade pavahle tumover ratic Average trade 430 3.49 8%

payabie
Warkin Revanua from operations has incraased
8 | Net capilal turnowver ralio Wi e i i italECurrPnt (24.687) 4.22) 485% by B8% and working capital was a
opsrations EREETR-_CU _' negalive of -Rs.28 crore. last yaar as
r compared 1o -R5.9 crorg in the current
liakuilitses
YEar
. - . This 15 due to increase in profit in FY
3 | Retum on Capital Employed  |Earnings bafore Capital 15.80% 12.62% 25% 2&22123 by 22%, EEI.{I'III'I:QS ::ﬂfnre
interest and 1axes | employed=Tanginle interast and taxes has increased by 15
nat veorif-iotal % However, Capiial Employed
daiiz decreazed by -11%.
. : Average share . ;

10 | Returm on Equity Met profit afier : 16.31% 17.58% T Rafer Mote-1 below

i holders’ equity
Fetam trom mvestments {profit on sale

11 | Retum on Investment Net profit after 070% | 1.90% wqn | o mulval funds) hag decreased

tanes Tatal Assets considerabhy (B5%) In the current year
a5 comparsd o the previogs year
whereas the average imwesiments was
almost the same.

Mote 1 :- There is no significant change {25% or more) in financial year 2022-2023 in companson to 2021-22.
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52. Additional Information for the year ended on 31 March 2023

Hol Assel Le.lotal assels Share in other Share in tolal
h Ii fit ar |
minus total liablities ShareinprofRorloss | . aprehensive income | comprahensive inconia
Name of the entity in the Group As %ol
As %ol As %ol consolidated As T of total
consolidated) Amount consolidated | Amouni ather Amount |comprehensive|l Amount
net assets profit or loss comprehensive| income
incoma
Parent
FRegency Hospital Limited o7 165 2,024,568 B3.62% 283,80 Bo 484 360 &5,60% 28770
Subsidiaries
ﬁhllng Lifecare Private Limited OL3a% 796 1.14% 3.58 0.00% - 1.13% 3.58
Regency Institute of Mursing 1.10%: 2204 2.92% 916 0.52% 0.0z 2.89% 918
Associale
Regancy Mephrocare Frivate Limibed 1.365% 28,13 2.32% 779 0.00%; L 2.29% 728
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
{All amounts in T million, unlass stated otherwise)

53
(i)
(i)
(i)
(iv)
(v)
(vi)
(v}
(viil)
(ix)
(%)
(i)

(i)

[l

(xiv)

54

55

Other Statutory Information

Titlle deeds of Immovable Properties are inthe name of the respective Companies in the Group.

The Group does not have any Benaml properly and no proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against tha
Group for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made
thereunder.

The Group has not been declared a "“Wiltul Defaulter’ by any bank in accordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters
issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

The Group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with
Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

The Group does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to ba registered with Registrar of Companies (ROC)
beyond the statutory period,

The Group does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surmenderad
ordisclosed asincome during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survay
orany other relevant pravisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

The Group has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year,

The Group has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both
during the current or previous year.

The Group did not have any transactions with struck off companias under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or
section 560 of Companias Act, 1956.

The Group has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous
financial year.

The Group had not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related
partigs (as defined under Companias Act, 2013}, either severally or jointly with any other person.

The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or
kind of funds) any funds to or in any other persons or entities, including foraign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recordad in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
ather persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group ["Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behall of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

The Group has not received any funds from any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (funding parties™),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Group shall, directly or indirectly lend or Invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding parties {(*Ultimate
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantes, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiares.

The Group has filed quarterly retumns or statements of current assets with the banks in lieu of the sanctioned working
capital facilities, which ara in agreement with the books of accounts.

The figuras of the corresponding previous yaar have baen regrouped wharever considered necassary o correspond o
cumrent year disclosuras.

Mo subsequent event occurred post balance sheet date which reguires adjustment in these Consolidated financial
statements far the year endead 31 March 2023,

For Walker Chandiok & CaLLP Fiw and an behall of the Board of Direciors of
Chanered Accountanis Regency Hospital Limited

Firm's Registration Mo 001 07FeMNS500013

Rohit Arara Atul Kapoor AashmiKapoor
Piartng: Managing Director Whitle Tirrs: Direbor
Mambership Mo: 504774 CHN: 01448220 DiN: 01818323
Rajesh Shroff Kriti Misra

Chied Financial Officer Company Sacratary

Place : Gurugram Place : Kanpur Place : Kanpur
Date : 15 September 2023 Date: 15Soptember 2023 Date : 15 September 2023
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Form AOC-1 : Statement containing salient features of the Financial Statement of
Subsidiaries / Associate Companies / Joint Ventures

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Part “A": Subsidiaries
{Information in respect of each Subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Mn)

1. | Name of the Subsidiary Sibling Lifecare Private Limited Regency Institute of Nursing
2. | Reporting period for the Subsidiary
concamed, if different from the 1Apnl 2022 to 31 March 2023 1April 2022 to 31 March 2023
Holding Company's reporting period
3. | Reporting currency and Exchange rate as MA MNA
on the last date of the relevant financial
year in the case of Foreign Subsidiaries
4, | Share Capital 0.10 1.00
5. | Reserves & Surplus 7.84d 14.74
6. | Total Assets 200,71 120.77
7. | Total Liakilities 200.71 120,77
8. | Investments Z
9, | Turnover 540,73 44,97
10.| Profit /{Loss) before taxation 544 10.37
11. | Provision for taxation 1.50 2 89
12.| Profit /{Loss) after taxation 3.94 7.48
13. E'mp-useu:l Dividend - -
14.| % of shareholding 100 100
Motes:

1, Mamas of Subsidiaries which ara yet fo commence operations - None
2. Mames of Subsidiaries which have been liguidated or sold during the year - None

On behall ol the Board of Directars ol
Regency Hospital Limited

Atul Kapoor Rashmi Kapoor
Chairmmian & Wik Time Diracior
Menaging Diraclor

Date : 15 Seplember 2023 Rajesh Shrott Kriti Misra
Place : Kanpur Chief Financial Officar Company Secratary
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Part "B": Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act,
2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures
{Information is presented with amounts in Mn)

Mame of Associates/Joint Ventures Regency Mephrocare Private Limited
1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31 March 2023
2. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the

Company on the year end

Mo, of Shares 14,21,000

Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture 14.21

Extent of Holding®: 49
3. Description of how there is significant influance Shareholding more than 20%

of total voting power of Company

4, Reascn why the Associate/Joint Venture is not consolidated Mot Applicable
5. Mat worth attributable to shareholding as per 55.40

latest audited Balance Sheet
6. Profit / Loss for the year

i. Considered in Consolidation 7.18

ii. Not Considered in Consolidation 7.48

Notes:
1. Mames of Assoclates or Joint Ventures which are yet to commence operations - None
2. MNames of Associates or Joint Ventures which have been liguidated or sold during the year - None

On bahalf of the Board of Directors of
Regercy Hospital Limited

Atul Kapoor Rashmi Kapoor
Chairman & ‘Whola Time Diractor
Managing Director
Date: 15 September 2023 Aajesh Shrofl Kriti Misra
Place: Kanpur Chief Financial Officer Compeny Secretary
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